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Item 1.01. Entry into a Material Definitive Agreement.

On May 31, 2019, i3 Verticals, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), through i3 Verticals, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company (“i3 LLC”), i3-SDCR, Inc., a Delaware corporation and wholly owned subsidiary of i3 LLC (the “Buyer”), and i3
Merger Sub, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Merger Sub”) completed its acquisition of Pace Payment Systems, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Pace”), and
Pace’s wholly owned subsidiary, Pace Payments, Inc., a Delaware corporation, pursuant to the terms of an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger
Agreement”), dated May 31, 2019, by and among Buyer, Merger Sub, Pace, i3 LLC as guarantor and 3S Advisors, LLC, an Ohio limited liability company
(“3S Advisors”), as representative. Pace is engaged in the business of marketing, distributing and selling payment processing products (including software
products) and services, including through integrated partnerships in the public and education sectors. Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, Merger
Sub merged with and into Pace (the “Merger”), with Pace surviving the Merger as a wholly owned subsidiary of i3-SDCR, Inc. The aggregate purchase price
was $52.5 million in cash consideration paid at closing and $0.2 million restricted shares of Class A Common Stock, subject to certain pre- and post-closing
working capital adjustments set forth in the Merger Agreement. In addition, the former Pace equity holders are eligible to receive, subject to the satisfaction
of certain growth metrics set forth in the Merger Agreement related to the financial performance of Pace in the 24 months from January 1, 2020 through
December 31, 2021, additional consideration of up to $20.0 million. The Merger Agreement contains representations and warranties and covenants of the
parties customary for a transaction of this nature.

The foregoing description of the Merger Agreement does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the Merger
Agreement, a copy of which is filed herewith as Exhibit 2.1 and incorporated herein by reference in this Item 1.01. The Merger Agreement has been included
as an exhibit hereto solely to provide investors and security holders with information regarding its terms. It is not intended to be a source of financial,
business or operational information about the Company, i3 LLC, the Buyer, Merger Sub, Pace, 3S Advisors or their respective subsidiaries or affiliates. The
representations, warranties and covenants contained in the Merger Agreement are made only for purposes of the Merger Agreement and are made as of
specific dates; are solely for the benefit of the parties; may be subject to qualifications and limitations agreed upon by the parties in connection with
negotiating the terms of the Merger Agreement, including being qualified by confidential disclosures made for the purpose of allocating contractual risk
between the parties rather than establishing matters as fact; and may be subject to standards of materiality applicable to the contracting parties that differ from
those applicable to investors or security holders. Investors and security holders should not rely on the representations, warranties and covenants or any
description thereof as characterizations of the actual state of facts or condition of the Company, i3 LLC, the Buyer, Merger Sub, Pace, 3S Advisors or their
respective subsidiaries or affiliates. Moreover, information concerning the subject matter of the representations, warranties and covenants may change after
the date of the Merger Agreement, which subsequent information may or may not be fully reflected in public disclosures. The Company acknowledges that,
notwithstanding the inclusion of the foregoing cautionary and qualifying statements, it is responsible for considering whether additional specific disclosures
of material information regarding material contractual provisions are required to make the statements in this Current Report on Form 8-K not misleading.

Item 2.01. Completion of Acquisition or Disposition of Assets.
See Item 1.01 of this Current Report on Form 8-K, which is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 7.01. Regulation FD Disclosure.

On June 3, 2019, the Company issued a press release announcing the execution of the Merger Agreement and the completion of the Merger. A copy of
the press release is furnished as Exhibit 99.1 hereto.

The information furnished pursuant to this Item 7.01 and Exhibit 99.1 shall not be deemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), and shall not be deemed to be incorporated by reference in any filing of the Company under the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act except as shall be expressly set forth by specific reference in such filing.



Item 9.01. Financial Statements and Exhibits.
(a) Financial statements of businesses acquired

Pace's audited consolidated financial statements for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, and unaudited consolidated financial
statements of Pace for the three months ended March 31, 2019 and 2018, are attached as Exhibits 99.2 and 99.3 to this Form 8-K, respectively, and
incorporated herein by reference.

(b) Pro forma financial information

The Company and Pace's unaudited pro forma combined financial information as of and for the three months ended March 31, 2019 and for the year
ended December 31, 2018, are attached as Exhibit 99.4 to this 8-K and incorporated herein by reference.

(d) Exhibits.

Exhibit No. Description

2.1%+ Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated May 31, 2019, by and among i3-SDCR, Inc., as buyer, i3 Merger Sub, Inc., i3 Verticals, LLC, as
guarantor, Pace Payment Systems, Inc. and 3S Advisors, LLC, as representative.

23.1 Consent of Lattimore Black Morgan & Cain, PC, Independent Auditor of Pace.

99.1 Press Release dated June 3, 2019.

99.2 Interim Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements of Pace Payment Systems, Inc. for the three month periods ended March 31, 2019
and March 31, 2018.

99.3 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of Pace Payment Systems, Inc. for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.

99.4 Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Information as of and for the three month period ended March 31, 2019 and for the year ended

December 31, 2018.

+ Certain portions of this exhibit have been omitted.

* Schedules and exhibits have been omitted pursuant to Item 601 of Regulation S-K. i3 Verticals, Inc. hereby undertakes to furnish supplementally a copy of any of the omitted
schedules and exhibits upon request by the Securities and Exchange Commission.



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

Date: June 3, 2019

i3 VERTICALS, INC.
By: /s/ Clay Whitson
Name: Clay Whitson

Title: Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 2.1

EXECUTION VERSION

AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER
BY AND AMONG
i3-SDCR, INC.

AS BUYER,
i3 MERGER SUB, INC.

AS MERGER SUB,
i3 VERTICALS, LLC
AS GUARANTOR,

PACE PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC.
AS COMPANY,

AND
3S ADVISORS, LLC

AS REPRESENTATIVE

MAY 31,2019

Certain portions of this document have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K and, where applicable, have been marked with “[****]” to
indicate where omissions have been made. The marked information has been omitted because it is (i) not material and (ii) would likely cause competitive
harm to the registrant if publicly disclosed. The registrant hereby undertakes to provide further information regarding such marked information to the
Commission upon request.



AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER

THIS AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER (this “Agreement”) is dated as of May 31, 2019, by and among (i) i3-
SDCR, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Buyer™), (ii) i3 Merger Sub, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Merger Sub”), (iii) Pace
Payment Systems, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Company”), (iv) solely for purposes of Section 9.12 of this Agreement, i3
Verticals, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Guarantor”), and (v) 3S Advisors, LLC, an Ohio limited liability company
(“Representative”). Together, Buyer, Merger Sub, Company, Guarantor, and Representative shall be referred to as the “Parties”.

RECITALS

A. Company and its subsidiary, Pace Payments, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Subsidiary” and together with
Company, the “Company Group Members” and each a “Company Group Member”) are engaged in the business of marketing,
distributing and selling payment processing products (including software products) and services, including through integrated
partnerships in the public and education sectors (collectively, the “Business”).

B. Buyer desires to acquire 100% of the issued and outstanding capital stock of Company in a reverse triangular merger
transaction, on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth herein.

C. The Parties intend that Merger Sub be merged with and into Company, with Company surviving that merger on the
terms and subject to the conditions set forth herein (the “Merger”).

D. The board of directors of Company has (1) determined that this Agreement and the Contemplated Transactions,
including the Merger, are in the best interests of Company and its Stockholders, (2) approved and declared advisable this
Agreement and the Contemplated Transactions, including the Merger, and (3) recommended adoption of this Agreement by the
Stockholders in accordance with the Delaware General Corporation Law (the “DGCL”).

E. The Company has delivered to Buyer contemporaneously with the execution and delivery of this Agreement, one or
more written consents representing the Requisite Company Vote approving this Agreement and the Contemplated Transactions,
which written consents will be effective as of immediately after the execution of this Agreement in accordance with Section 228(c)
of the DGCL (the “Stockholder Consent™).

F. The Parties desire to enter into this Agreement for the purpose of setting forth their mutual understandings and
agreements with respect to the foregoing.

NOW, THEREFORE, intending to be legally bound and in consideration of the foregoing premises, the representations and
warranties, mutual covenants and other agreements set forth herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties covenant and agree as follows:



ARTICLE I - DEFINITIONS

For purposes of this Agreement, the capitalized terms and variations thereof not otherwise defined herein shall have the
meanings ascribed to them in Schedule 1 attached hereto.

ARTICLE II - THE MERGER

2.1 The Merger. On the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement, and in accordance with the DGCL,
at the Effective Time, (a) Merger Sub will merge with and into Company, and (b) the separate corporate existence of Merger Sub
will cease, and Company will continue its corporate existence under the DGCL as the surviving corporation in the Merger
(Company, after the consummation of the Merger, sometimes referred to in this Agreement as the “Surviving Corporation”).

2.2 Closing;_Effective Time. The closing of the Contemplated Transactions (the “Closing”) will take place immediately
following the delivery by the Parties of the documents specified in Sections 2.10 and 2.11, subject to Section 8.3. The date on
which the Closing occurs is referred to herein as the “Closing Date”. Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, at the Closing,
Company, Buyer and Merger Sub shall cause a certificate of merger (the “Certificate of Merger”) to be executed, acknowledged
and filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware in accordance with the relevant provisions of the DGCL. The Merger
shall become effective at such time as the Certificate of Merger has been duly filed with the Secretary of State of the State of
Delaware or at such later date or time as may be agreed by Company and Buyer in writing and specified in the Certificate of
Merger in accordance with the DGCL (the effective time of the Merger being hereinafter referred to as the “Effective Time”).

2.3 Effects of the Merger. The Merger shall have the effects set forth herein and in the applicable provisions of the DGCL.
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, from and after the Effective Time, all property, rights, privileges, immunities,
powers, franchises, licenses and authority of Company and Merger Sub shall vest in the Surviving Corporation, and all debts,
liabilities, obligations, restrictions and duties of each of Company and Merger Sub shall become the debts, liabilities, obligations,
restrictions and duties of the Surviving Corporation.

2.4 Certificate of Incorporation; By-laws. At the Effective Time, (a) the certificate of incorporation of Merger Sub as in
effect immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be the certificate of incorporation of the Surviving Corporation until thereafter
amended in accordance with the terms thereof or as provided by applicable Law, and (b) the by-laws of Merger Sub as in effect
immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be the by-laws of the Surviving Corporation until thereafter amended in accordance
with the terms thereof or as provided by applicable Law; provided, however, in each case, that the name of the corporation set forth
therein shall be changed to the name of Company.

2.5 Directors and Officers. The directors and officers of Merger Sub, in each case, immediately prior to the Effective Time
shall, from and after the Effective Time, be the directors and officers, respectively, of the Surviving Corporation until their
successors have been duly




elected or appointed and qualified or until their earlier death, resignation or removal in accordance with the certificate of
incorporation and by-laws of the Surviving Corporation.

2.6 Effect of the Merger on Capital Stock. At the Effective Time, as a result of the Merger and without any action on the
part of Buyer, Merger Sub, Company or any Securityholder:

(a) Cancellation of Certain Company Common Stock. Shares of Company Common Stock owned by Company (as
treasury stock or otherwise) shall automatically be cancelled and retired and shall cease to exist, and no consideration shall be
delivered in exchange therefor.

(b) Conversion of Merger Sub Capital Stock. Each share of capital stock of Merger Sub issued and outstanding
immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be converted into and become one newly issued, fully paid and non-assessable share
of common stock of the Surviving Corporation, and the shares of the Surviving Corporation into which the shares of capital stock
of Merger Sub are so converted shall be the only shares of capital stock of the Surviving Corporation issued and outstanding
immediately after the Effective Time.

(c) Conversion of Company Capital Stock. Each share of Company Capital Stock issued and outstanding
immediately prior to the Effective Time (other than (i) shares to be cancelled in accordance with Section 2.6(a) and (ii) shares that
are Dissenting Shares) will cease to be an existing and issued share and shall be converted, by virtue of the Merger and without any
action on the part of the holders thereof, into the right to receive the amount per share of the Merger Consideration (including with
respect to the Closing Merger Consideration and amounts paid after the Closing in accordance with the terms of this Agreement) as
set forth on the Distribution Schedule as payable with respect to Company Common Stock, Company Series A Preferred Stock or
Company Series B Preferred Stock, as applicable.

2.7 Settlement of Company Options and Warrants.

(a) Effective immediately prior to the Effective Time, each Warrant, whether or not then exercisable, shall no longer
be outstanding and shall be cancelled and converted into the right to receive, with respect to each share of Company Common
Stock subject to such Warrant, that amount of the Merger Consideration as set forth on the Distribution Schedule, which amount
shall take into account the applicable per share exercise price applicable to each Warrant (the “Warrant Merger Consideration”).
Upon and after the Effective Time, all Warrants shall expire and each holder of any certificate representing any such Warrants shall
cease to have any rights with respect thereto, except for the right to receive the Warrant Merger Consideration. For the avoidance of
doubt, in no event shall any such Warrant be deemed to have been exercised.

(b) As of the Effective Time, by virtue of action of the Board of Directors of Company in accordance with
Company’s 2010 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended (the “Company EIP”), each outstanding Company Option shall be cancelled
and retired by virtue of the Merger, and each Optionholder shall cease to have any rights with respect thereto, other than



the right to receive the i3V Restricted Stock at Closing, such i3V Restricted Stock to be allocated among the Optionholders in
accordance with Annex B. Company shall have taken all actions necessary to cause the Company EIP to terminate at or prior to the
Effective Time.

2.8 Dissenting Shares.

(a) Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, shares of Company Capital Stock issued and
outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time (other than shares cancelled in accordance with Section 2.6(a)) and held by a
holder who has not voted in favor of adoption of this Agreement or consented thereto in writing and who has properly exercised
appraisal rights of such shares in accordance with Section 262 of the DGCL (such shares being referred to collectively as the
“Dissenting Shares” until such time as such holder fails to perfect or otherwise loses such holder’s appraisal rights under the DGCL
with respect to such shares) shall not be converted into a right to receive a portion of the Merger Consideration, but instead shall be
entitled to only such rights as are granted by Section 262 of the DGCL; provided, however, that if, after the Effective Time, such
holder fails to perfect, withdraws or loses such holder’s right to appraisal pursuant to Section 262 of the DGCL or if a court of
competent jurisdiction shall determine that such holder is not entitled to the relief provided by Section 262 of the DGCL, such
shares shall be treated as if they had been converted as of the Effective Time into the right to receive the portion of the Merger
Consideration, if any, to which such holder is entitled pursuant to Section 2.6(c), without interest thereon. Subject to Section 9.2(h),
following the Effective Time, the Surviving Corporation shall be responsible to the holders of Dissenting Shares in accordance with
the DGCL.

(b) Following the Closing, Buyer and Representative will mutually prepare a written statement in form mutually
acceptable to Buyer and Representative (the “Notice of Appraisal Rights™), and, no later than five (5) days following the Closing,
Buyer shall cause the Surviving Corporation to deliver the Notice of Appraisal Rights to each of the Stockholders who has not then
signed the Stockholder Consent notifying each such Stockholder of (i) such Stockholder Consent, which notice will be in
accordance with Section 228 of the DGCL, and (ii) such Stockholder’s appraisal rights under the DGCL, which notice will be in
accordance with Section 262(b) of the DGCL. The Notice of Appraisal Rights and Letter of Transmittal provided in accordance
with Section 2.9(d) will be delivered to such Stockholder as part of the same transmittal.

(¢) Buyer shall provide Representative prompt written notice of any demands received by the Surviving Corporation
or Buyer for appraisal of shares of Company Capital Stock, any withdrawal of any such demand and any other demand, notice or
instrument delivered to the Surviving Corporation that relates to such demand, and Representative shall have the opportunity and
right to direct all negotiations and proceedings with respect to such demands. Except with the prior written consent of
Representative (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed), the Surviving Corporation shall not make
any payments with respect to, or settle or offer to settle, any such demands.

2.9 Surrender and Payment.




(a) At the Effective Time, all shares of Company Capital Stock outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time
shall automatically be cancelled and retired and shall cease to exist, and, subject to Sections 2.6(c) and 2.7, each Stockholder and
each holder of record of a Company Option or Warrant shall cease to have any rights as a stockholder of Company or a holder of
Company Options or Warrants.

(b) The total merger consideration payable by Buyer is the Merger Consideration. The Closing Merger
Consideration will be paid in accordance with Section 2.9(c). Any positive Final Adjustment Calculation will be payable by Buyer
in accordance with Section 3.6. Any released Aggregate Escrow Amount will be payable by Escrow Agent following the Closing in
accordance with the Escrow Agreement and Section 9.7. Any Contingent Consideration will be payable by Buyer in accordance
with Article IV.

(c) At the Closing, as more specifically provided in the Funds Flow Statement (as defined below), including the
accounts designated therein, (i) Buyer shall pay to the Exchange Agent by wire transfer of immediately available funds the (A)
Closing Merger Consideration, less (B) the Transaction Bonus Plan Closing Amount (the “Net Closing Merger Consideration™), (ii)
Buyer shall pay the Aggregate Escrow Amount to the Escrow Agent by wire transfer of immediately available funds, (iii) Buyer
shall pay the Transaction Bonus Plan Closing Amount to Company by wire transfer of immediately available funds, which will
thereafter be paid by the Surviving Corporation to the Transaction Bonus Plan Participants in accordance with Section 2.13, (iv)
Buyer shall pay the Estimated Transaction Expenses to the payees thereof reflected on the Funds Flow Statement by wire transfer
of immediately available funds, (v) Buyer shall pay the Estimated Indebtedness to the holders thereof as reflected on the Fund Flow
Statement by wire transfer of immediately available funds, and (vi) Buyer shall pay the Representative Expense Fund to
Representative in accordance with Article XI hereof. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, the Parties
acknowledge that the employer portion of payroll tax component of the Transaction Bonus Plan Closing Amount delivered to the
Surviving Corporation at Closing is an estimate, and if the actual Transaction Bonus Plan Closing Amount (including employer
payroll taxes actually payable therewith) differs from the Transaction Bonus Plan Closing Amount delivered to the Surviving
Corporation at Closing, then (x) in the event the actual Transaction Bonus Closing Amount is greater than the estimate delivered to
the Surviving Corporation at Closing due to an under-estimate of employer payroll tax actually payable therewith, Representative,
will, upon receipt of written documentation from Surviving Corporation evidencing the employer payroll tax amount, promptly
deliver written notice to the Escrow Agent directing the Escrow Agent to pay any such payroll Taxes out of the Purchase Price
Adjustment Escrow Fund or (y) in the event the actual Transaction Bonus Closing Amount is less than the estimate delivered to the
Surviving Corporation at Closing due to an over-estimate of employer payroll tax actually payable therewith, then Buyer shall pay
the amount of such difference to the Escrow Agent which amount will be added to and included within the Purchase Price
Adjustment Escrow Fund.

(d) Promptly following the Closing, but in any event within five (5) days following the Closing, Buyer shall cause
the Surviving Corporation or Exchange Agent to deliver to each holder of Company Capital Stock (other than any such holder that
has previously



executed and delivered a Letter of Transmittal) a letter of transmittal in substantially the form attached as Exhibit A (a “Letter of
Transmittal”) (which Letter of Transmittal shall be included in the same transmittal as the Notice of Appraisal Rights delivered in
accordance with Section 2.8(b)) and instructions for use in effecting the surrender of the certificates formerly representing the
shares of Company Capital Stock held such holder (each, a “Certificate”) (and/or, in the case of any lost or damaged certificates
formerly representing any shares of Company Capital Stock held by such holder, an affidavit of lost stock certificate), in exchange
for the applicable portion of Merger Consideration pursuant to Section 2.6(c) and the Distribution Schedule. The Exchange Agent
shall, no later than the later of (i) the Closing Date or (ii) if received following the Closing Date, three (3) Business Days after
receipt of a Certificate (and/or, as applicable, an affidavit of lost stock certificate), together with a Letter of Transmittal duly
completed and validly executed in accordance with the instructions thereto, pay to the Stockholder a cash amount in accordance
with Section 2.6(¢) and the Distribution Schedule. No interest shall be paid or shall accrue on any cash payable pursuant to this
Section 2.9(d). Until so surrendered, each outstanding Certificate that prior to the Effective Time represented shares of Company
Capital Stock (other than Dissenting Shares) shall be deemed from and after the Effective Time, for all purposes, to evidence the
right to receive the portion of the Merger Consideration as provided in Section 2.6(c). If after the Effective Time, any Certificate
(and/or, as applicable, an affidavit of lost stock certificate) is presented to the Exchange Agent, it shall be cancelled and exchanged
as provided in this Section 2.9.

(e) Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, none of Buyer or the Surviving Corporation shall be
liable to any holder of a Certificate, any Company Option or Warrant or to any other Person for any amount paid to a public official
pursuant to applicable abandoned property laws, escheat law or similar Law.

(f) Any portion of the Merger Consideration made available to the Exchange Agent in respect of any Dissenting
Shares shall be returned to Buyer, upon demand at such time that any payment in respect of such Dissenting Shares is required to
be made by the Surviving Corporation in accordance with the DGCL.

2.10 Actions of Company at Closing. At the Closing, unless otherwise waived in writing by Buyer, Company shall deliver
to Buyer the following:

(a) a certificate of existence and good standing of each Company Group Member from the Delaware Secretary of
State, Tennessee Secretary of State (as a foreign corporation) and California Secretary of State (as a foreign corporation), each
dated as of the most recent practicable date prior to Closing;

(b) a certificate from an officer of Company, dated as of the Closing Date, certifying that (i) the certificates of
incorporation and bylaws, and all amendments thereto, of each Company Group Member attached to the certificate are true and
complete and that no amendment to such documents has occurred since the date of the last amendment annexed thereto, if any; and
(ii) the resolutions adopted by the Stockholders and the board of directors of Company, authorizing the execution, delivery and
performance of the Transaction Documents, and the consummation of the Contemplated Transactions, attached to the certificate,
were duly



adopted at a duly convened meeting thereof, at which a quorum was present and acting throughout or by, with respect to resolutions
of the board of directors of Company, unanimous written consent, and, with respect to resolutions adopted by the Stockholders, the
Stockholder Consent, remain in full force and effect, and have not been amended, rescinded or modified, except to the extent
attached thereto;

(c) fully-executed resignations of the directors and officers of each Company Group Member;

(d) evidence of termination of the Stockholders Agreement;

(e) restrictive covenant agreements in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B (the “Restrictive Covenant
Agreements”), executed by Paul Christians and Scott Scherr;

(f) letters in the form attached as Exhibit C-1 and Exhibit C-2 evidencing offers of employment by Buyer or one of
its Affiliates to each of Paul Christians and Scott Scherr, respectively, (“Offer Letters”), executed by Paul Christians and Scott
Scherr;

(g) the Escrow Agreement, executed by Representative and Escrow Agent;

(h) evidence of the satisfaction of all payment obligations for Indebtedness of any Company Group Member
outstanding as of the Closing Date (including any interest, prepayment premiums or penalties and other fees and charges) or
evidence of the arrangement of Company Group Members to satisfy such payment obligations on the Closing Date pursuant to the
terms of this Agreement, including payoff letters or similar releases with respect to any Indebtedness, and the release of, or the
agreement to release, any Liens on the properties and assets of any Company Group Member and the termination, or agreed to
termination of, all UCC financing statements which have been filed with respect to any Indebtedness;

(i) the Distribution Schedule;

(j) the Estimated Closing Statement;

(k) evidence that the D&O Insurance (as defined below) has been obtained;
(1) evidence that Company EIP has been terminated;

(m) written evidence that the requisite stockholders of the Company have approved certain payments to be made in
connection with the Contemplated Transactions in a manner that satisfies the requirements of section 280G(b)(5) of the Code;

(n) a funds flow statement in form mutually acceptable to Representative and Buyer (the “Funds Flow Statement”);
and

(o) Restricted Stock Agreements, executed by each Optionholder (other than 3S Advisors, LLC) and Paul Cascio (as
assignee of 3S Advisors, LLC’s rights as an Optionholder under Section 2.7(b)), to, notwithstanding the reference to delivery at
Closing under this Section




2.10, be delivered promptly (but in any event no later than three Business Days) following the Closing Date.

2.11 Actions of Buyer at Closing. At the Closing, unless otherwise waived in writing by Representative, Buyer shall deliver
to Representative (or such other Person explicitly noted below) the following:

(a) the Escrow Agreement, executed by Buyer;

(b) payment of the amounts set forth in Section 2.9(c) to the Exchange Agent and other recipients set forth in Section
2.9(c) by wire transfer of immediately available funds;

(c) a Certificate of the Secretary of Buyer, certifying (i) the resolutions of the sole member of Buyer, authorizing and
approving the performance of the Contemplated Transactions and the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the documents
described herein, and (ii) incumbency for the officers of Buyer executing this Agreement, making certifications for Closing or
executing agreements or instruments contemplated hereby dated as of the Closing Date;

(d) the Offer Letters, executed by Buyer;
(e) the Restrictive Covenant Agreements, executed by Buyer;

(f) evidence satisfactory to the Company that the Representations and Warranties Policy has been bound and is in
effect;

(g) the Funds Flow Statement; and

(h) the Restricted Stock Agreements for each Optionholder, executed by i3V, to, notwithstanding the reference to
delivery at Closing under this Section 2.11, be delivered promptly (but in any event no later than three Business Days) following
the Closing Date.

2.12 Escrow Funds. In accordance with the Escrow Agreement and Section 2.11, Buyer will deposit with Escrow Agent:

(a) the Indemnification Escrow Amount (such amount, including any interest or other amounts earned thereon and
less any disbursements therefrom in accordance with the Escrow Agreement, the “Indemnification Escrow Fund”), to be held for
the purpose of securing the indemnification obligations of the Securityholders set forth in this Agreement;

(b) the Purchase Price Adjustment Escrow Amount (such amount, including any interest or other amounts earned
thereon and less any disbursements therefrom in accordance with the Escrow Agreement, the “Purchase Price Adjustment Escrow
Fund”), to be held for the purpose of securing the obligations of the Securityholders in Article III;

(c) the Chargeback Escrow Amount (such amount, including any interest or other amounts earned thereon and less
any disbursements therefrom in accordance with the



Escrow Agreement, the “Chargeback Escrow Fund”), to be held for the purpose of funding amounts due to Buyer pursuant to
Section 2.14, if any; and

(d) the Employee Payments Escrow Amount (such amount, including any interest or other amounts earned thereon
and less any disbursements therefrom in accordance with the Escrow Agreement, the “Employee Payments Escrow Fund”), to be
held for the purpose of funding the Employee Payments to be paid by Buyer pursuant to Section 7.7(b).

2.13 Transaction Bonus Plan. Following the receipt by the Surviving Corporation of the Transaction Bonus Plan Closing
Amount in accordance with Section 2.9(c), Buyer shall cause the Surviving Corporation, no later than one (1) Business Day
following the Closing, to pay the Transaction Bonus Plan Closing Amount payable to the Transaction Bonus Plan Participants
through payroll, subject to applicable Tax withholding obligations, as set forth on the Distribution Schedule.

2.14 Chargebacks and Chargeback Recoveries.

(a) Within forty five (45) Business Days after November 30, 2020, Buyer shall deliver a statement (the “Chargeback
Statement”) to Representative setting forth the Net Chargeback/Chargeback Recovery Amount (as defined below) for the period
beginning on June 1, 2019 and ending on November 30, 2020, and whether the Net Chargeback/Chargeback Recovery Amount is
payable by or to Buyer. No Party shall have any liability to any other Party hereunder for any Net Chargeback/Chargeback
Recovery Amounts which arise on or after November 30, 2020.

(b) Representative shall be entitled to review the Chargeback Statement and any documents relating to and used in
the calculation of the Net Chargeback/Chargeback Recovery Amount shown thereon. If, within thirty (30) days following delivery
of the Chargeback Statement, Representative has not given Buyer written notice of its objection to such Net
Chargeback/Chargeback Recovery Amount (which notice shall state in reasonable detail the basis of Representative’s objection),
then the Net Chargeback/Chargeback Recovery Amount and Buyer’s calculation of such Net Chargeback/Chargeback Recovery
Amount shall be binding and conclusive on the Parties for all purposes hereunder. If Representative gives Buyer such notice of
objection within the thirty (30)-day period, and if Representative and Buyer fail to resolve the issues outstanding with respect to the
Net Chargeback/Chargeback Recovery Amount or Buyer’s calculation of the Net Chargeback/Chargeback Recovery Amount
within thirty (30) days of Buyer’s receipt of Representative’s objection notice, Representative and Buyer shall submit the issues
remaining in dispute to the Independent Accountant, for resolution in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. If issues are
submitted to the Independent Accountant for resolution, (A) Representative and Buyer shall furnish or cause to be furnished to the
Independent Accountant such work papers and other documents and information relating to the disputed issues as the Independent
Accountant may request and are available to that party or its agents and shall be afforded the opportunity to present to the
Independent Accountant any material relating to the disputed issues and to discuss issues with the Independent Accountant; (B) the
determination by the Independent Accountant, as set forth in a notice to be delivered to both Representative and Buyer within thirty
(30) days of the submission to the Independent



Accountant of the issues remaining in dispute, shall be final, binding and conclusive on the Parties and shall be used in calculation
of the Net Chargeback/Chargeback Recovery Amount; and (C) Representative and Buyer will each bear fifty percent 50% of the
fees and costs of the Independent Accountant for such determination.

(c) In the event that the Net Chargeback/Chargeback Recovery Amount, as finally determined pursuant to Section
2.14(b) (and subject to Section 2.14(e)), is a negative number and is therefore payable in such amount by Buyer, Buyer shall pay
the Exchange Agent, for the benefit of all of the Stockholders, the amount of such Net Chargeback/Chargeback Recovery Amount
payable by Buyer within three (3) Business Days of the final determination of such Net Chargeback/Chargeback Recovery Amount
pursuant to Section 2.14(b). In the event that the Net Chargeback/Chargeback Recovery Amount, as finally determined pursuant to
Section 2.14(b) (and subject to Section 2.14(e)), is a positive number and is therefore is payable in such amount to Buyer, then
Buyer shall be entitled to recover such amount and, within three (3) Business Days of the final determination of such Net
Chargeback/Chargeback Recovery Amount, Representative shall direct that such amount be paid out of the Chargeback Escrow
Fund in accordance with the Escrow Agreement (to the extent of available funds therein).

(d) For purposes of this Agreement, “Net Chargeback/Chargeback Recovery Amount” equals (i) any Chargebacks
that relate to or arise out of a transaction entered into interchange on or prior to the Closing Date, including any Chargebacks with
respect to any prior period for which loss has been recognized (“Pre-Closing Event Chargebacks™) to the extent the merchant
reserves for the relevant merchant or independent sales organization (“ISO”) have been depleted for that particular merchant or no
longer exist (not including any amounts depleted as a result of Chargebacks that are received that arise out of a transaction entered
into interchange after the Closing Date), less (ii) any amounts with respect to such Pre-Closing Event Chargebacks for which the
relevant merchant or ISO has reimbursed the Surviving Corporation or its Subsidiaries following the Closing. For these purposes,
merchant reserves for the relevant merchant or ISO will be used to pay Chargebacks on a first in, first out basis so that merchant
reserves are used to pay the Chargeback that relates to the earliest occurring transaction first before paying Chargebacks that relate
to later occurring transactions.

(e) Notwithstanding the foregoing, any Net Chargeback/Chargeback Recovery Amount payable to Buyer under this
Agreement_shall be payable solely out of the Chargeback Escrow Fund in accordance with the Escrow Agreement to the extent of
available funds therein.

ARTICLE III - PURCHASE PRICE ADJUSTMENT

3.1 Prior to the Closing, Company shall have prepared and delivered to Buyer an estimated closing statement (the
“Estimated Closing_Statement™) that contains (except, in the case of clauses (b), (c) and (d), to the extent such information is
otherwise included in the Funds Flow Statement) a good faith estimate, in reasonable detail, prepared in accordance with the
Applicable Accounting Practices and Procedures, of (a) the Net Working Capital (the “Estimated Net Working Capital”), (b) the
amount of Indebtedness of the Company Group Members calculated through and including the Closing that will be unpaid
immediately prior to the Closing
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(the “Estimated Indebtedness”), (¢) the Transaction Expenses of the Company Group Members calculated through and including
the Closing that will be unpaid immediately prior to the Closing (the “Estimated Transaction Expenses”), and (d) Cash and Cash
Equivalents of the Company Group Members as of the Closing (the “Estimated Closing Cash™). If (i) the Estimated Net Working
Capital is greater than the Target Net Working Capital Amount, then the Closing Merger Consideration shall be increased by such
excess amount or (ii) the Estimated Net Working Capital is less than the Target Net Working Capital Amount, then the Closing
Merger Consideration shall be decreased by such excess amount (such increase or decrease, the “Estimated Closing Adjustment”).

3.2 No later than ninety (90) calendar days after the Closing Date, Buyer shall prepare in good faith and deliver to
Representative a statement (the “Closing_Statement”) setting forth Buyer’s calculation, in reasonable detail and prepared in
accordance with the Applicable Accounting Practices and Procedures, of (a) the Net Working Capital (the “Net Working Capital
Calculation”), (b) the amount of Indebtedness of each Company Group Member calculated through and including the Closing and
unpaid immediately prior to the Closing (the “Closing_Indebtedness™), (c) the Transaction Expenses calculated through and
including the Closing and unpaid immediately prior to the Closing (the “Closing_Transaction Expenses”), (d) the Cash and Cash
Equivalents as of the Closing (“Closing Cash™), and (e) Buyer’s proposed calculation of the Adjustment Calculation.

3.3 On or prior to the thirtieth (30th) calendar day following Buyer’s delivery of the Closing Statement to Representative,
Representative may give Buyer a written notice stating in reasonable detail any and all of Representative’s objections (an
“Objection Notice”) to the Closing Statement or the determination of the Net Working Capital Calculation, the Closing
Indebtedness, the Closing Transaction Expenses, the Closing Cash or the Adjustment Calculation as determined by Buyer. During
such thirty (30) calendar-day period, Buyer will provide Representative and its accountants reasonable access, during normal
business hours and upon reasonable notice, to (a) review the financial books and records of each Company Group Member, and (b)
the employees and other representatives of Buyer and Company Group Members who were responsible for the preparation of the
Closing Statement or any items therein to respond to questions relating to the preparation of the Closing Statement, and to allow
Representative to determine the accuracy of Buyer’s calculation of the items set forth on the Closing Statement. Any Objection
Notice shall specify in reasonable detail the nature and dollar amount of the objections and the reasonable basis or bases therefor.
Any determination set forth on the Closing Statement to which Representative does not specifically object in the Objection Notice
shall be deemed accepted and shall be final and binding upon the Parties upon delivery of the Objection Notice. The failure by
Representative to deliver an Objection Notice within such thirty (30) day period shall constitute Representative’s acceptance of the
Adjustment Calculation, which shall be final and binding on Representative and the Securityholders for all purposes of this
Agreement.

3.4 Following Buyer’s receipt of any Objection Notice, Representative and Buyer shall attempt to negotiate in good faith to
resolve such dispute. If Representative and Buyer fail to agree on any of Representative’s proposed adjustments set forth in the
Objection Notice within



thirty (30) days after Buyer receives the Objection Notice, then an independent, certified public accountant located in Nashville,
Tennessee reasonably acceptable to Representative and Buyer who, unless otherwise agreed by the Parties, will have had no prior
connections, business relationships, personal relationships, or conflicts with any of the parties hereto or others that are in any way
participating in the negotiation, discussion, or closing of the Contemplated Transactions (the “Independent Accountant”) shall make
the final, binding determination, absent fraud or Manifest Error, regarding the proposed adjustments set forth in the Objection
Notice that are not resolved by Representative and Buyer (the “Adjustment Calculation Disputed Items”). Buyer, on the one hand,
and Representative, on the other hand, each shall provide the Independent Accountant with their respective determinations of the
Adjustment Calculation Disputed Items. The Independent Accountant shall make its determination of the Adjustment Calculation
Disputed Items and the resultant Final Net Working Capital Calculation (defined below), Final Indebtedness (defined below), Final
Transaction Expenses (defined below), Final Closing Cash (as defined below) and Final Adjustment Calculation which
determination shall be final and binding on Representative and Buyer. The determination of any of the Adjustment Calculation
Disputed Items by the Independent Accountant shall be within, and limited by, the range comprised of the respective determination
of each of Buyer’s and Representative’s calculation with respect to such Adjustment Calculation Disputed Items. The determination
of the Adjustment Calculation Disputed Items by the Independent Accountant shall be based on whether such Adjustment
Calculation Disputed Items have been calculated in accordance with the standards set forth in this Agreement. The Independent
Accountant shall make its determination based solely on presentations and supporting material provided by Buyer and
Representative in response to the Independent Accountants’ request or otherwise. The fees, costs and expenses of the Independent
Accountant shall be split equally between Representative and Buyer. Any of the Parties may require that the Independent
Accountant enter into a customary form of confidentiality agreement with respect to the work papers and other documents and
information provided to the Independent Accountant under this Article III. As used herein, “Final Net Working_ Capital
Calculation” means the Net Working Capital Calculation as ultimately determined in accordance with Section 3.3 or this
Section 3.4, as applicable, “Final Indebtedness” means the amount of Indebtedness as ultimately determined in accordance with
Section 3.3 or this Section 3.4, as applicable, and “Final Transaction Expenses” means the amount of Transaction Expenses as
ultimately determined in accordance with Section 3.3 or this Section 3.4, as applicable and “Final Closing Cash” means the amount
of Cash and Cash Equivalents as of the Closing, as ultimately determined in accordance with Section 3.3 or this Section 3.4, as
applicable.

3.5 If the Final Adjustment Calculation is a negative number after final determination pursuant to this Article III,
Representative and Buyer shall, within three (3) Business Days after the final determination of the Final Adjustment Calculation,
jointly instruct the Escrow Agent to disburse from the Purchase Price Adjustment Escrow Fund by wire transfer of immediately
available funds to Buyer, an amount in cash equal to the Final Adjustment Calculation. If the Final Adjustment Calculation is a
negative number and the amount of the Final Adjustment Calculation is greater than the amount held in the Purchase Price
Adjustment Escrow Fund, then Indemnifying Holders shall be severally (but not jointly and severally) liable in proportion to their
Indemnifying Percentages as set forth on Annex A for payment of any negative Final



Adjustment Calculation in excess of the Purchase Price Adjustment Escrow Fund and, for clarification purposes, any payments by
the Indemnifying Holders under this Section 3.5 shall not be considered Damages for purposes of Article IX, provided that, for
clarity, any amounts paid by the Indemnifying Holders pursuant to this Section 3.5 shall be counted against, and shall reduce dollar
for dollar, the Indemnifying Holder Cap.

3.6 If the Final Adjustment Calculation is a positive number, Buyer shall, within three (3) Business Days after the final
determination of the Final Adjustment Calculation, deposit with the Exchange Agent, for distribution to the Securityholders in
accordance with the Distribution Schedule, the amount of the Final Adjustment Calculation.

ARTICLE 1V — CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION

4.1 Contingent Consideration.

(a) Securityholders may receive additional consideration (the “Contingent Consideration) from Buyer based on the
post-Closing performance of the Company Group Members (the “Acquired Company”™) in accordance with this Article IV. Within
five (5) calendar days following the final determination of achievement of a Performance Threshold for any Measurement Period in
accordance with Section 4.2, Buyer shall deposit the applicable amount of Contingent Consideration by wire transfer of
immediately available funds with the Exchange Agent, for distribution to the Securityholders in accordance with the Distribution
Schedule and, in the event that prior to the date of such payment, the Indemnifying Holders have paid Damages to any Buyer
Indemnified Party pursuant to Article IX, subject to the assignment obligations in favor of the Indemnifying Holders set forth on
Annex A; provided, however, that in the event there is any Contingent Consideration Dispute Notice (as defined below), and any
amount of Contingent Consideration would be payable based on the achievement of the Performance Threshold as reflected in the
Section 4.2 Statement previously provided by Buyer in accordance with Section 4.2 below, Buyer shall pay to the Exchange Agent
the applicable amount of Contingent Consideration reflected in the Section 4.2 Statement by wire transfer of immediately available
funds within five (5) calendar days following the delivery of the Contingent Consideration Dispute Notice, and shall pay any
remaining Contingent Consideration as may finally be determined to be payable hereunder within five (5) calendar days following
the final determination of the achievement of the Performance Threshold for such Measurement Period in accordance with Section
4.2. Defined terms used in this Article IV but not defined herein or in Schedule 1 shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in
Exhibit B. The payment of Contingent Consideration for the benefit of any Stockholder is subject in all cases to the delivery by
such Stockholder of a Letter of Transmittal (or, as applicable, an affidavit of lost stock certificate) in accordance with Section 2.9.

(b) If, as of the last day of the Measurement Period 1, the Performance Metric generated by the Acquired Company
during Measurement Period 1 exceeded the Performance Threshold (such excess, the “Period 1 Overage”), then Securityholders
will be entitled to be paid aggregate Contingent Consideration in an amount equal to the product of (i) (x) the Period 1 Overage
divided by (y) [****] multiplied by (ii) $20,000,000. For example, if the Period 1
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Overage is $[****], the Contingent Consideration payable with respect to Measurement Period 1 would be $[****], calculated as
follows: ([****]/[****]) = [****] x $20,000,000 = $[****].

(c) If, as of the last day of the Measurement Period 2, the Performance Metric generated by the Acquired Company
during the Measurement Period 2 exceeded the Performance Threshold (such excess, the “Period 2 Overage”), then the
Securityholders will be entitled to be paid aggregate Contingent Consideration in an amount equal to the product of (i) (x) [the
Period 2 Overage less any Period 1 Overage] divided by (y) [****] multiplied by (ii) $20,000,000. For example, if the Period 2
Overage is $[****] and the Period 1 Overage was $[****], the Contingent Consideration payable with respect to Measurement
Period 2 would be $[****], calculated as follows: ([****]/[****]) = [****] x $20,000,000 = $[****],

(d) Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, in no event will the aggregate Contingent
Consideration payable ever exceed $20,000,000 (the “Maximum Earnout Amount”). For example, if $20,000,000 of Contingent
Consideration were earned with respect to Measurement Period 1, no additional Contingent Consideration could be earned in
Measurement Period 2.

4.2 Contingent Consideration Dispute Resolution. Within 90 days after the end of any Measurement Period, Buyer shall
deliver a written statement (the “Section 4.2 Statement”) for such Measurement Period setting forth Buyer’s calculation of the
Performance Metric, in reasonable detail, during such Measurement Period to Representative. Following receipt of the Section 4.2
Statement, Buyer will, for the purpose of allowing Representative to determine the accuracy of Buyer’s calculation of the items set
forth on the Section 4.2 Statement and that such calculations were prepared in accordance with this Agreement, provide
Representative and its representatives reasonable access, during normal business hours and upon reasonable notice, to (a) review
the financial books and records of the Acquired Company and its Affiliates, and (b) the employees and other representatives of the
Acquired Company and its Affiliates who were responsible for the preparation of the Section 4.2 Statement or any items therein to
respond to questions relating to the preparation of the Section 4.2 Statement. If Representative disputes Buyer’s determination with
respect to the amount of the Performance Metric for such Measurement Period and/or the amount of Contingent Consideration
which is payable in connection therewith, Representative shall notify Buyer in writing by delivery of a written notice within thirty
(30) days of receiving the Section 4.2 Statement (a “Contingent Consideration Dispute Notice™), which Contingent Consideration
Dispute Notice shall set forth in reasonable detail the basis for such dispute. In the event of such a dispute, Representative and
Buyer shall work in good faith to resolve the dispute. If, after fifteen (15) Business Days following the delivery of the Contingent
Consideration Dispute Notice, a dispute still exists, such dispute shall be submitted to the Independent Accountant for resolution in
accordance of the terms of this Article IV. The Independent Accountant shall determine the amount of the Performance Metric and
the extent to which the Contingent Consideration has been earned for such Measurement Period. The determination made by the
Independent Accountant shall be as an expert, not as an arbiter and, absent fraud or Manifest Error, such determination shall be
final and binding. The determination by the Independent Accountant shall be within, and limited by, the range comprised of the
respective determination of the amount of the Performance Metric as
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determined by Buyer in the Section 4.2 Statement and Representative in the Contingent Consideration Dispute Notice. The
Independent Accountant shall make its determination based solely on presentations and supporting materials provided by Buyer
and Representative in response to the Independent Accountant’s requests or otherwise. Any expenses relating to the engagement of
the Independent Accountant shall be borne 50% by Representative and 50% by Buyer. Buyer and Representative shall make
available to the Independent Accountant such books, records, work papers and other information as the Independent Accountant
may request and that are available to that party or its agents and shall be afforded the opportunity to present to the Independent
Accountant any material relating to the disputed issues and to discuss issues with the Independent Accountant (provided, that Buyer
and Representative shall not, and shall each cause its representatives not to, engage in any ex parte communications with the
Independent Accountant during the term of its engagement).

4.3 Dispute Resolution. Notwithstanding anything set forth to the contrary in this Article IV, (a) in the event of any
controversy, dispute or claim arising out of this Article IV relating to the calculation of the Performance Metric and the extent to
which the Contingent Consideration has been earned for any Measurement Period (a “Calculation Dispute™), such controversy,
dispute or claim will be resolved in accordance with Section 4.2, and (b) in the event of any controversy, dispute or claim arising
out of this Article IV that is not a Calculation Dispute, Buyer or Representative, as applicable, will be entitled to bring a claim in
accordance with Section 12.6.

4.4 Operation of Business. Subject to Section 4.5, Section 4.6 and Section 4.7, Buyer has the absolute right to operate the
business of the Acquired Company following the Closing in any manner as Buyer deems appropriate, in Buyer’s sole discretion,
provided, however, that notwithstanding the foregoing or anything contained herein to the contrary, Buyer (a) shall not take any
action or fail to take any action with the primary purpose of causing any Contingent Consideration payable hereunder to be reduced
or not be earned, including, without limitation, to move any revenue or expense either into or out of any Measurement Period in a
manner that would adversely affect the amount of the Contingent Consideration payable to the Securityholders hereunder and (b)
during the Applicable Period, shall cause the Acquired Company to carry on and conduct its business in good faith. Representative
acknowledges that any Contingent Consideration is speculative and is subject to numerous factors outside the control of Buyer.
Representative will not provide any assurances to Securityholders with respect to the Contingent Consideration.

4.5 Certain Limitations. Notwithstanding anything in this Article IV to the contrary, during the Applicable Period, Buyer
(except as otherwise agreed to in writing by Representative):

(a) shall not sell or otherwise dispose of the Acquired Company, whether by asset purchase, equity purchase, merger,
combination, joint venture or otherwise, to any third party (an “Acquired Company Sale”), or otherwise sell or dispose of any
assets of the Acquired Company outside of the ordinary course of business; provided, however, that Buyer may complete an
Acquired Company Sale during the Applicable Period in the event that Buyer pays
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the Maximum Earnout Amount in cash to the Representative concurrently with the closing of the Acquired Company Sale,
provided, further, that for purposes of clarity, a sale of i3V or Guarantor that results in an ultimate change in control of the
Acquired Company shall not be deemed an Acquired Company Sale (it being acknowledged and agreed that, in the event of any
such sale of i3V or Guarantor, the provisions of this Article IV will continue in effect in accordance with the terms hereof);

(b) shall not substantially cease or discontinue operations of the Acquired Company;

(c) shall not (i) merge or consolidate the Acquired Company with, or otherwise distribute, contribute, transfer or
assign the assets of the Acquired Company to, any Person within the Buyer Group, or (ii) cause the Acquired Company to acquire
in any business combination transaction, by equity purchase, merger, consolidation, asset sale or otherwise, any Person, whether or
not engaged in a business similar to or related to the Business; and

(d) shall maintain separate books and records necessary to calculate the Performance Metric during each of the
Measurement Periods.

4.6 Employment of P. Christians. During the Applicable Period, as long as Paul Christians (“Christians’) is employed by the
Buyer Group or the Acquired Company, Buyer shall cause the business, activities and affairs of the Acquired Company to be
managed primarily by Christians (such position, the “Acquired Company Executive”). If Christians’ employment with the Buyer
Group or the Acquired Company, as applicable, terminates for any reason during the Applicable Period (or, if applicable, any
Successor Executive (as defined below)), Buyer and Representative shall mutually determine a successor Acquired Company
Executive (the “Successor Executive™) as soon as reasonably practicable.

4.7 Reasonable Access. During the Applicable Period, for the purpose of allowing Representative to determine the Acquired
Company’s progress made against the Performance Metric, Buyer shall permit Representative, on reasonable notice and during
normal business hours, but no more than twice during any calendar year, to visit and inspect any of the properties, books, records
and other materials of the Acquired Company (and to make copies thereof), and to discuss the affairs, finances and accounts of the
Acquired Company with personnel of the Acquired Company and Buyer Group with responsibility for the Acquired Company.

ARTICLE V - REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES CONCERNING COMPANY GROUP MEMBERS

Except as set forth in the Disclosure Schedules, Company represents and warrants to Buyer as of the Closing Date and the
Effective Time as follows:

5.1 Authorization.

(a) Company has all requisite corporate power and authority to enter into and perform its obligations under the
Transaction Documents to which it is a party and, subject to, in
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the case of the consummation of the Merger, the effectiveness of the Stockholder Consent, to consummate the transactions
contemplated hereby and thereby. The execution, delivery and performance by Company of any Transaction Documents to which it
is a party and the consummation by Company of Contemplated Transactions have been duly authorized by all requisite corporate
action on the part of Company and no other corporate proceedings on the part of Company are necessary to authorize the execution,
delivery and performance of this Agreement or to consummate the Merger and the other Contemplated Transactions, subject only,
in the case of consummation of the Merger, to the effectiveness of the Stockholder Consent. Each of this Agreement and the
Transaction Documents to which Company is, or will be, a party has been, or will be, duly executed and delivered by Company
and, assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by the other parties hereto or thereto (as applicable), constitutes, or will
constitute, a valid and binding obligation of Company, enforceable against Company in accordance with its terms and conditions,
except as such enforceability may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, fraudulent transfer, preference, moratorium
or other similar Laws now or hereafter in effect relating to or affecting creditors generally or by general equity principles
(regardless of whether such enforceability is considered in an Action in equity or at Law) and except that the remedy of specific
performance and injunctive and other forms of equitable relief may be subject to equitable defenses and to the discretion of the
court before which any Action may be brought (the “Enforceability Limitations”).

(b) Company’s board of directors, by resolutions duly adopted at a meeting duly called and held or by unanimous
written consent, and not subsequently rescinded or otherwise revoked, has (i) determined that this Agreement and the transactions
contemplated hereby, including the Merger, are fair to, and in the best interests of, the Securityholders, (ii) approved and declared
advisable the “agreement of merger” (as such term is used in Section 251 of the DGCL) contained in this Agreement and the
Contemplated Transactions, including the Merger, in accordance with the DGCL, (iii) directed that the “agreement of merger”
contained in this Agreement be submitted to the Stockholders for their adoption and approval by written consent, and (iv) resolved
to recommend that the Stockholders vote in favor of the adoption of this Agreement and the “agreement of merger” set forth in this
Agreement and directed that such matter be submitted for consideration of the Stockholders.

(c) The Requisite Company Vote has been obtained pursuant to the Stockholder Consent, which shall become
effective as of immediately after the execution of this Agreement in accordance with Section 228(c) of the DGCL. The Stockholder
Consent is sufficient for the Stockholders to adopt this Agreement and approve the Merger, and no other corporate proceedings are
necessary to authorize this Agreement or to consummate the Merger and the other transactions contemplated hereby (other than the
filing and recordation of the Certificate of Merger and such other documents as required by the DGCL).

5.2 Status. Each Company Group Member (i) is a corporation duly incorporated, validly existing, and in good standing
under the Laws of the State of Delaware, (ii) has all requisite corporate power and authority to carry on its business as now and
heretofore conducted and to own, operate and lease its properties and assets and to perform its obligations under the Contracts, and
(iii) 1s duly qualified or licensed to transact business in and is in good standing
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under the Laws of each jurisdiction where such qualification is required, except where the failure to be so qualified or in good
standing would not reasonably be expected to be material to the Company Group Members. Company has delivered to Buyer
copies of the Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws of each Company Group Member, as currently in effect. Other than
Company’s ownership of 100% of the capital stock of Subsidiary, no Company Group Member owns any interest in any Person or
any right, warrant or option to acquire any right in any Person.

5.3 Capitalization of Company_Group Members. Section 5.3 of the Disclosure Schedules sets forth the authorized, issued
and outstanding equity interests, Company Options and Warrants of each Company Group Member (on an aggregate basis) as of
the date hereof. The outstanding equity interests of each Company Group Member (i) have been duly and validly authorized and
are duly and validly issued, fully-paid and non-assessable, (ii) are free and clear of all Liens (other than Permitted Encumbrances),
(ii1) were issued in compliance with all Laws (including all applicable state, federal and foreign securities Laws), in all material
respects, and (iv) were not issued in violation of any preemptive rights or any similar rights of any Person or in violation of any
Contract to which any Company Group Member was a party at the time of issuance. Except as set forth on Section 5.3 of the
Disclosure Schedules, there are no equity securities of any Company Group Member issued, reserved for issuance or outstanding
and, except as set forth on Section 5.3 of the Disclosure Schedules, there are no outstanding options, warrants, convertible or
exchangeable securities, subscriptions, rights (including any preemptive rights), unit or stock appreciation rights, calls or
commitments to which any Company Group Member is a party or may be bound requiring the issuance or sale of any equity
interests of any Company Group Member. Other than Company Capital Stock, there are no other ownership interests, transferable
interests, securities, participations or other equivalents (however designated and whether voting or nonvoting) of any Company
Group Member issued or outstanding. To the Company’s actual knowledge, without any duty or obligation of reasonable inquiry of
any person for purposes of this sentence, no current or former equityholder of any Company Group Member or any other Person is,
contesting the ownership of the equity interests of any Company Group Member or any dividends, distributions or contributions
relating thereto. Except for this Agreement, and as set forth on Section 5.3 of the Disclosure Schedules or in the Constituent
Stockholder Documents, there are no outstanding or authorized options, warrants, rights, Contracts, pledges, calls, puts, rights to
subscribe, redeem, repurchase or otherwise acquire, conversion rights or other agreements, commitments or obligations (contingent
or otherwise) to which any of Company Group Members are parties or which are binding upon any of Company Group Members
providing for the issuance, sale, disposition or acquisition of any equity or any rights or interests exercisable therefor. There are no
outstanding or authorized equity appreciation, phantom equity or similar rights with respect to any Company Group Member.
Except as set forth on Section 5.3 of the Disclosure Schedules or in the Constituent Stockholder Documents, there are no Contracts
to which a Company Group Member is a party with respect to the voting or transfer of any shares of Company Capital Stock or any
other securities of any of Company Group Members. Except as set forth on Section 5.3 of the Disclosure Schedules, there are no
bonds, debentures, notes or other indebtedness of Company Group Members having the right to vote (or convertible into, or
exchangeable for, securities
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having the right to vote) on any matters on which any member of a Company Group Member may vote.

5.4 Required Consents. Except as described in Section 5.4 of the Disclosure Schedules or in the Constituent Stockholder
Documents and other than with respect to Permitted Encumbrances, no Company Group Member is a party to or bound by any
Lien or Contract or instrument, or any Rule or Law that (a) requires the consent of any other party to the execution of this
Agreement or the consummation of the Contemplated Transactions, except where the failure to obtain such consent would not
reasonably be expected to be material to the Company Group Members as a whole, (b) gives rise to a right of first refusal in favor
of any other party to a Material Contract as a result of the execution of this Agreement or the consummation of the Contemplated
Transactions or (c¢) prohibits, or requires the consent or notification of another to, any of the Contemplated Transactions, including
in connection with any Material Contracts, except where the failure to obtain such consent or provide such notification would not
reasonably be expected to be material to the Company Group Members as a whole (any exceptions to the representations and
warranties contained in this Section 5.4 being the “Required Consents™).

5.5 No_Conflict. Company Group Members’ negotiation, execution, delivery and performance of the Transaction
Documents, consummation of the Contemplated Transactions and compliance with any of the provisions thereof will not, assuming
that all Required Consents have been obtained (a) violate any Law to which any of Company Group Members or the Business may
be subject, (b) conflict with or result in a breach of any provision of the organizational documents of any of Company Group
Members, (c) other than as provided on Section 5.3 of the Disclosure Schedules, require any consent, approval or authorization of,
or notice to, or declaration, filing or registration with, any Governmental Authority, (d) violate any Order of any Governmental
Authority to which any Company Group Member or the Business may be subject, (¢) contravene, conflict with or result in a
violation of any of the terms or requirements of, or give any Governmental Authority the right to revoke, withdraw, suspend,
cancel, terminate or modify, any License that is held by and that is material to any Company Group Member or that otherwise
relates to the Business, (f) violate, or conflict with, or result in a breach of any provision of, or constitute a default (or an event
which, with notice or lapse of time or both would constitute a default) under, or result in the termination or in a right of termination
or cancellation of, or accelerate the performance required by, or result in the creation of any Lien upon any assets of any Company
Group Member or result in being declared void, voidable, without further binding effect, or subject to amendment or modification
any of the terms, conditions or provisions of, any Material Contract or License, to which any Company Group Member may be
bound or affected, (g) violate or cause a breach under the Rules, or (h) give rise to any Liabilities related to any portability
premium, early termination fee or other amount payable to any Processor or Referral Source, except for such occurrences referred
in clauses (a) — (h) above that would not, individually or in the aggregate, be expected to be material to the Company Group
Members and the Business, taken as a whole.

5.6 Financial Statements; Company Receivables.
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(a) Section 5.6(a) of the Disclosure Schedules includes copies of the following financial statements of the Company
Group Members (collectively, the “Financial Statements”):

(1) Audited consolidated balance sheets, statements of operations, statements of changes in stockholders’
deficit and statements of cash flows for the past three (3) fiscal years of the Company Group Members as of the end of each such
fiscal year and any notes thereto (the “Audited Financial Statements”); and

(i1) Unaudited consolidated balance sheet, dated as of March 31, 2019 (the “Balance Sheet Date”) and
unaudited income statement and statement of cash flow for the period beginning January 1, 2019 and ending on the Balance Sheet
Date (the “Unaudited Financial Statements™).

(b) The Financial Statements fairly present, in all material respects, the financial condition, cash flows and results of
operations of each Company Group Member at the respective dates thereof and for the periods referred to therein, and have been
prepared in accordance with GAAP applied on a consistent basis throughout the periods indicated (except that the Unaudited
Financial Statements (i) do not contain all footnotes as required by GAAP and (ii) are subject to normal year-end adjustments (none
of which adjustments would, alone or in the aggregate, be material)), and have been prepared on the basis of Company’s Books and
Records.

(c) No Company Group Member has (A) any Liabilities that would be required to be reflected on a consolidated
balance sheet prepared in accordance with GAAP, or (B) to the Company’s Knowledge, any other Liabilities, other than, in any
such case, (i) Liabilities that are reflected, disclosed or reserved against in the Financial Statements, (ii) Liabilities that were
incurred after the Balance Sheet Date in the ordinary course of business, (iii) Liabilities under the executory portion of any Contract
by which a Company Group Member is bound, which was entered into in the ordinary course of business and which do not result
from any violation of applicable Law, breach of Contract, breach of warranty, claim or Action arising as of or prior to Closing, (iv)
Liabilities that arise pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or any Transaction Document or that will be discharged or paid in full
on or prior to the Closing Date, or (v) Liabilities set forth in Section 5.6(c) of the Disclosure Schedules.

(d) Each Company Group Member has paid or shall have paid as of the Closing out of the Merger Consideration, all
amounts due pursuant to prior merger agreements or purchase agreements entered into by a Company Group Member or any
predecessor (a list of which, including the amount paid pursuant to such purchase agreements, future amounts that are or may be
due, and any related conditions or contingencies, is set forth on Section 5.6(d) of the Disclosure Schedules) and, to Company’s
Knowledge, there is no dispute or claim, whether on behalf of a Company Group Member or the counterparty to such purchase
agreements, related to such purchase agreements.

(e) Since December 31, 2018, each Company Group Member has paid its payables only in the ordinary course of
business, consistent with past practice. Since December
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31, 2018, no Company Group Member has made any purchase, made any payment, or funded any Liability outside of the ordinary
course of business.

(f) To Company’s Knowledge, no Securityholder has a right to directly receive (i) payments from any Customers,
Referral Sources, Processors or any other third parties in connection with the Customer Agreements, Referral Source Agreements
or any Contracts relating to any Company Group Member or the Business, or (ii) any payments owed by third parties with respect
to any Company Group Member or the Business (whether or not related to any Processors, Customers or Referral Sources),
including any convenience fees, commissions, ancillary fees, license fees, royalties and any other revenue streams relating to
Customer transactions, including all amounts relating to collections recovery, retrieval fees, miscellaneous credits and other similar
funds.

(g) All notes and accounts receivable of each Company Group Member are bona fide receivables representing
amounts due with respect to actual, arm’s length transactions entered into in the ordinary course of business for goods sold and
delivered or services performed. Since the Balance Sheet Date, no Company Group Member has cancelled, or agreed to cancel, in
whole or in part, any notes or accounts receivable outside the ordinary course of business.

(h) No Company Group Member (i) is insolvent or has generally failed to pay its debts as they become due, (ii) has
applied for, consented to, or acquiesced in, the appointment of a trustee, receiver, sequestrator, or other custodian for such
Company Group Member or for a substantial part of its property, or made a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; (iii) has
filed and has not permitted or suffered to exist with respect to itself the commencement of any bankruptcy, reorganization, debt
arrangement, or other case or proceeding under any bankruptcy or insolvency law, or any dissolution, winding up, or liquidation
proceeding; or (iv) has taken any action authorizing any of the foregoing.

5.7 Absence of Certain Changes. Since the Balance Sheet Date except as described in Section 5.7 of the Disclosure
Schedules, (a) each Company Group Member has conducted its business in all material respects only in the ordinary course of
business and (b) no Company Group Member has experienced a Material Adverse Effect.

5.8 Brokers and Finders. Except as set forth on Section 5.8 of the Disclosure Schedules, no Company Group Member or any
of their respective agents has engaged any finder or broker or incurred any Liability, contingent or otherwise, for brokerage or
finders’ fees or agents’ commissions in connection with this Agreement and the Contemplated Transactions.

5.9 Real Property. No Company Group Member currently owns, and for the past three (3) years has not owned, any Real
Property. All Real Property used by any Company Group Member is leased pursuant to those real estate leases set forth on Section
5.9 of the Disclosure Schedules (the “Real Property Leases”). During the last three (3) years, no Company Group Member has
breached any Real Property Lease, or violated any applicable Law, condemnation, assessment or any similar action, relating to any
Real Property or the operation thereof, in each case, in any material respect.
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5.10 Contracts. Section 5.10(a) of the Disclosure Schedules is a true and complete list of all of the following material
Contracts of each Company Group Member (the “Material Contracts”):

(1) all written or oral employment or consulting Contracts pursuant to which services are rendered to a
Company Group Member providing annual base salary compensation in excess of One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00);

(i) all Contracts under which a Company Group Member is or the Business or Buyer will after the Closing
be restricted from carrying on any business or other activities anywhere in the world;

(iii) all Contracts (including organization, partnership and joint venture agreements) under which (A) a
Company Group Member has any Liability or obligation for debt or constituting or giving rise to a guarantee of any Liability or
obligation of any Person or (B) any Person has any Liability or obligation constituting or giving rise to a guarantee of any Liability
or obligation of a Company Group Member, or any Liability or obligation to a Company Group Member, in each case involving
any debt or Liability in excess of One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00) individually or Two Hundred Thousand Dollars
($200,000.00) in the aggregate;

(iv) the Real Property Leases;
(v) all Contracts with Processors or sponsor banks;

(vi) all Contracts with independent sales organizations or Referral Sources providing for annual payments in
excess of Twenty Thousand Dollars ($20,000.00) in the most recently completed fiscal year;

(vii) all Contracts involving aggregate annual consideration payable to or from a Company Group Member in
excess of One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00);

(viii) all Intellectual Property Contracts (excluding any commercially available software licensed under
“shrink wrap” or other comparable standard form non-negotiated licenses, and excluding any Contracts a Company Group Member
enters into with its Customers in the ordinary course of Business);

(ix) all Contracts which grant a third party a right of exclusive dealing with a Company Group Member, a
right of first refusal, or right of first offer, for any of shares of capital stock or any assets of any Company Group Member;

(x) any Contracts to which any Company Group Member is a party that provide for any joint venture,
partnership, joint employer or similar arrangement; and

(xi) any Contracts relating to the future disposition or future acquisition of any interest in any business
enterprise.
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(b) Except as set forth on Section 5.10(b) of the Disclosure Schedules, since January 1, 2016, no material breach or
default in performance by a Company Group Member under any of the Material Contracts has occurred or is continuing, and, to
Company’s Knowledge, no event has occurred, which with notice or lapse of time or both would constitute such a material breach
or default. Since January 1, 2018, no Company Group Member has given or received from any other Person any notice or other
communication regarding any actual, alleged or potential material breach or default under the Material Contracts. To Company’s
Knowledge, since January 1, 2016, no material breach or default by any other Person under any of the Material Contracts has
occurred or is continuing, and no event has occurred which with notice or lapse of time or both would constitute such a material
breach or default. Since December 31, 2018, no Company Group Member has amended the terms of any Material Contract or
terminated any Contract that would be a Material Contract if such Contract had not been terminated.

5.11 Intellectual Property; Computer Software.

(a) Company Intellectual Property.

consists exclusively of the Owned Company Intellectual Property and Licensed Company Intellectual Property and constitutes all
Intellectual Property necessary and sufficient for each Company Group Member to conduct its business as currently conducted.
None of the Contemplated Transactions will alter, impair or otherwise adversely affect any rights of any Company Group Member
in any Company Intellectual Property. Company Intellectual Property does not include any patents or patent applications (including
intent to use applications).

(i) Owned Company Intellectual Property. Section 5.11(a)(ii) of the Disclosure Schedules sets forth a true,
correct and complete list of the following Owned Company Intellectual Property used or held for use in connection with the
Business of the Company Group Members: (A) Trademarks, (B) Domain Names, (C) all threatened in writing or actual legal
Actions (including reexamination and reissue Actions) before any Governmental Authority (including the World Intellectual
Property Organization or equivalent authority anywhere in the world) of opposition to any Company Intellectual Property
Registrations and (D) any actions that must be taken within ninety (90) days after the date hereof for the purposes of obtaining,
maintaining, perfecting, preserving or renewing any Company Intellectual Property Registrations, including the payment of any
registration, maintenance or renewal fees or the filing of documents, applications or certificates. Each of the Company Intellectual
Property Registrations is valid and subsisting, and all necessary registration, maintenance and renewal fees currently due in
connection with each item of Company Intellectual Property Registration have been made.

(iii) Title to Owned Company Intellectual Property. Company Group Members, in the aggregate, own, and
have good and exclusive title to, all Owned Company Intellectual Property free and clear of any Lien. All Owned Company
Intellectual Property is fully transferable, alienable and licensable by the applicable Company Group Member and can
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be amended and modified, in each case, without restriction and without payment of any kind to any Person. Each Company Group
Member has the right to use, practice and exploit all of its Owned Company Intellectual Property in the manner in which such
Intellectual Property is currently used, practiced and exploited in connection with the Business of the Company Group Members as
currently conducted.

(b) Third Parties and Company Intellectual Property.

(1) Developers. Each Company Group Member has required each current and former employee, contractor
and consultant of such Company Group Member who has materially contributed to the conception, creation or development of any
Company Product or Owned Company Intellectual Property to sign a written agreement that includes (A) confidentiality
obligations in favor of such Company Group Member, and (B) an assignment to such Company Group Member of all right, title
and interest in and to all Intellectual Property conceived, created or developed by such Person during such Person’s employment by
or engagement with such Company Group Member (collectively, the “Assignment Agreements™). Company Group Members have
provided Buyer with a copy of its form Assignment Agreements. To Company’s Knowledge, no current or former employee,
contractor, service provider or consultant of any Company Group Member has ever excluded any Intellectual Property from any
Assignment Agreement executed by such Person in connection with such Person’s employment or engagement by a Company
Group Member.

(i1) Infringement. No Company Group Member has received any written notice or request from any Person
for indemnification, compensation or reimbursement with respect to any claim of infringement, misappropriation, misuse or
violation of any Owned Company Intellectual Property, which notice or request has not been finally resolved. To Company’s
Knowledge, the conduct of the Business as currently conducted and Owned Company Intellectual Property do not infringe, dilute,
misappropriate or otherwise violate, the Intellectual Property rights of any Person. To Company’s Knowledge, no Person has
infringed within the last three (3) years or is currently infringing, misappropriating, diluting or otherwise violating, any Owned
Company Intellectual Property or Licensed Company Intellectual Property which is exclusively licensed to a Company Group
Member.

(iii) Institutions. No government, university, college, other educational institution, research center or non-
profit institution (collectively, “Institutions”) has ever been involved in the research and development of Company Intellectual
Property or Company Products or has provided or provides facilities or funding for the creation or development of any Owned
Company Intellectual Property or Company Products. To the Company’s Knowledge, no Institutions have any rights in or with
respect to any Owned Company Intellectual Property or Company Products or any developments of any Intellectual Property made
by any current or former employee, contractor, service provider or consultant of any Company Group Member that relate in any
manner to Owned Company Intellectual Property or any Company Product. To Company’s Knowledge, no current or former
employee, contractor, service provider or consultant of any Company Group Member who was or is involved in, or who
contributed or contributes to, the creation or development of any Owned Company Intellectual Property has
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performed services for any Institution during a period of time during which such employee, contractor, service provider or
consultant was also performing services for any Company Group Member.

(c) Company Products. Section 5.11(¢)(i) of the Disclosure Schedules sets forth a true, correct and complete list of
all Company Products, including name or title of such Company Product, whether it is used by Customers, most current version

of the Disclosure Schedules sets forth a true, correct and complete list of all (A) software applications owned by or developed by or
for any Company Group Member (“Company Software”) and (B) software applications or other Intellectual Property not owned by
any Company Group Member (excluding public domain materials) that are incorporated or embedded in or bundled with and
necessary for the use of any Company Software.

(i) Malware. To Company’s Knowledge, none of Company Software or Company Products contains any
virus, Trojan horse, worm or other software routines or hardware components designed to permit unauthorized access to or
designed to disable, erase or otherwise harm software, hardware or data.

(i) Company IT Systems. All information technology and computer systems (including computer software,
data files, source and object codes, tools, user interfaces, manuals and other specifications and documentation (and all know-how
relating to the foregoing), information technology and telecommunication hardware and other equipment), relating to the
transmission, storage, maintenance, organization, presentation, generation, processing or analysis of data and information, whether
or not in electronic format, used in and necessary to the conduct of the Business (collectively, “Company IT Systems”) perform as
necessary to conduct Business as currently being conducted. No Company Group Member has experienced within the past three (3)
years any material disruption to, or material interruption in, the conduct of the Business attributable to a defect, bug, breakdown or
other failure or deficiency of Company IT Systems. Each Company Group Member has taken reasonable measures to provide for
the back-up and recovery of the data and information necessary to the conduct of the Business without material disruption to, or
material interruption in, the conduct of the business of each Company Group Member.

(iii) Open Source Materials. Section 5.11(d)(iii) of the Disclosure Schedules sets forth list of all Open Source
Materials currently used by any Company Group Member and incorporated or embedded into, combined with, or linked to any

incorporated or embedded any Copyleft Materials into, or combined or linked any Copyleft Materials with, any Company Software
in such a way as to condition the distribution or use of any Company Software on the disclosure or distribution of any source code
owned by the Company Group Members.
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(iv) Source Code. No Company Group Member has disclosed or delivered to any escrow agent or any other
Person, other than employees, contractors, or other service providers performing services on a Company Group Member’s behalf,
any of the source code for any Company Software or relating to any Company Intellectual Property. No Person (other than
employees, contractors, or other service providers, hosting, developing, or maintaining the Company Software in the ordinary
course of Business) has access to, or any right, contingent or otherwise, under any Contract or otherwise, to obtain access to or use
of the source code for any Company Software. To Company’s Knowledge, no event has occurred, and no circumstance or condition
exists, that (with or without notice or lapse of time) will, or reasonably could be expected to, result in the required delivery, license
or disclosure by Company Group Members of any source code for any Company Software to any Person after the Closing Date.

(e) Result of the Contemplated Transactions. Neither this Agreement nor any of the Contemplated Transactions will
result in (i) any Person being granted rights or access to, or the placement in or release from escrow of, any software source code or
other Owned Company Intellectual Property, or (ii) Buyer, any Company Group Member or any of their respective Affiliates
granting to any Person any ownership interest in, or any exclusive license, covenant not to sue or right under or with respect to, any
Owned Company Intellectual Property.

5.12 Title to Assets. Except as set forth on Section 5.12 of the Disclosure Schedules, Company Group Members have good
and valid title to, or a valid leasehold interest in, all of the tangible and intangible assets that are material for the conduct of the
Business as currently conducted by the Company Group Members, free and clear of all Liens (other than Permitted Encumbrances).

5.13 Compliance; Approvals.

(a) Each Company Group Member has all material Licenses that are required by Law to carry on the Business
currently being conducted and own and use its assets. Each Company Group Member is, and during the last three (3) years has
been in, compliance in all material respects with each such License. In the last three (3) years, to Company’s Knowledge, no event
has occurred or circumstance exists that (with or without notice or the lapse of time) may constitute or result directly or indirectly
in a violation of or failure to comply with any term or requirement of any material License.

(b) Each Company Group Member is, and during the past five (5) years has been, in compliance in all material
respects with all Laws applicable to such Company Group Member. In the last five (5) years, to Company’s Knowledge, no event
has occurred or circumstance exists that (with or without notice or lapse of time) constitutes or may result in a material violation by
a Company Group Member of, or a failure on the part of a Company Group Member to comply in any material respect with, any
Law applicable to any Company Group Member or the Business.

(c) Each Company Group Member is in good standing with its Processors and the Payment Networks and is in
compliance in all material respects with the Rules. There is no
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Action (including fines) pending, taken, or, to Company’s Knowledge, threatened in writing against a Company Group Member,
whether relating to an alleged violation of the Rules or otherwise. To the Company’s actual knowledge, without any duty or
obligation of reasonable inquiry of any person for purposes of this sentence, (i) there is no Action (including fines) pending or
threatened in writing against any agent of a Company Group Member or any Referral Source by any Processors, a Payment
Network or their respective applicable agents in connection with the Business, whether relating to an alleged violation of the Rules
or otherwise, and (ii) no consent of the Payment Networks is required to consummate the Contemplated Transactions.

(d) Each Company Group Member has during the past five (5) years been in compliance with the Bank Secrecy Act
and other money laundering Laws administered any applicable Governmental Authority (collectively, the “Money Laundering
Laws”), and no Action by or before any Governmental Authority or any arbitrator involving a Company Group Member with
respect to the Money Laundering Laws is pending, or to Company’s Knowledge, threatened.

5.14 Legal Actions; Orders.

(a) Except as set forth on Section 5.14(a) of the Disclosure Schedules, (i) there is no Order, Action, or notification
regarding a Data Breach pending, or to Company’s Knowledge, threatened in writing, alleging that a Company Group Member has
experienced a Data Breach; and (ii) there is no Order or Action pending, or to Company’s Knowledge, threatened in writing by or
against any Company Group Member, that would reasonably be expected to be material to any Company Group Member.

(b) There are not now, and within the past three (3) years there have not been, any material Actions pending, or, to
the Company’s Knowledge, threatened, before any court or Governmental Authority initiated by a Company Group Member,
against a Company Group Member or in respect of the Business for which a Company Group Member would have any material
Liability. There are no such claims, actions, Actions pending or, to Company’s Knowledge, threatened, challenging the validity of
the Contemplated Transactions. No Company Group Member is now, nor has been during the past three (3) years, a party to any
injunction, Order, or decree restricting the method of a Company Group Member’s conduct of the Business or servicing of the
Customers. Company Group Members have provided to Buyer copies of all notices of any material legal Action alleging a
violation of applicable Law from any Governmental Authority (i) received by a Company Group Member in writing since January
1, 2016 or, (ii) to Company’s Knowledge, received in writing by Processors or sponsor banks since January 1, 2016.

5.15 Employee Benefit Plans.

(a) Section 5.15(a) of the Disclosure Schedules sets forth a true, complete and correct list of all Benefit Plans
(1) which are currently maintained or contributed to by a Company Group Member, or (2) with respect to which a Company Group
Member has any Liability or obligations to any current or former officer, employee, or service provider of a Company Group
Member, or the dependents of any thereof, regardless of whether funded. With
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respect to each Benefit Plan, Company Group Members have made available to Buyer true, accurate and complete copies of each of
the following: (i) if the plan has been reduced to writing, the plan document together with all amendments thereto, (ii) if the plan
has not been reduced to writing, a written summary of all material plan terms, (iii) if applicable, copies of any trust agreements,
custodial agreements, insurance policies, administrative agreements and similar agreements, and investment management or
investment advisory agreements, (iv) copies of the most recent summary plan descriptions, employee handbooks or similar
employee communications, (v) in the case of any plan that is intended to be qualified under Code Section 401(a), a copy of the
most recent determination, notification, or opinion letter from the IRS and any related correspondence, and, if applicable, a copy of
any pending request for such determination, (vi) in the case of any funding arrangement intended to qualify as a VEBA under Code
Section 501(c)(9), a copy of the IRS letter determining that it so qualifies, (vii) in the case of any plan for which Forms 5500 are
required to be filed, a copy of the two most recently filed Forms 5500, with schedules attached, (viii) actuarial valuations and
reports related to any Benefit Plans with respect to the most recently completed plan years and (ix) the most recent
nondiscrimination tests performed under the Code.

(b) No Company Group Member been materially liable at any time in the past six (6) years for contributions to a
plan that is or has been, at any time in the past six (6) years, subject to Section 412 of the Code, Section 302 of ERISA and/or Title
IV of ERISA. There is no multiemployer plan (as defined in Section 3(37) or Section 4001(a)(3) of ERISA) under which any
Company Group Member has any present or future Liability. In the past six (6) years, no Company Group Member has sponsored
or contributed to or been required to contribute to a multiemployer plan or to a multiple employer welfare arrangement (as defined
in Section 3(40) of ERISA).

(c) With respect to each of the Benefit Plans, neither any Company Group Member nor any ERISA Affiliate has (i)
engaged in a prohibited transaction, (ii) breached any fiduciary duty or (iii) violated any Law applicable to the Benefit Plans and
related funding arrangements that would be reasonably likely to subject a Company Group Member or Buyer to any Tax or penalty
(civil or otherwise) imposed by ERISA, the Code or other applicable legal requirements. Each Benefit Plan intended to be qualified
under Section 401(a) of the Code has a current favorable determination letter as to its qualification or the sponsor of the Benefit
Plan may rely on the IRS notification or advisory letter to the sponsor of any prototype plan or volume submitter used to document
the terms of such Benefit Plan as to the tax-qualified status of such Benefit Plan, and no event has occurred which would
reasonably be expected to cause any such Benefit Plan to become disqualified for purposes of Section 401(a) of the Code. Each
Benefit Plan has been operated in compliance in all material respects with applicable Law, including the Code and ERISA, and in
accordance with its terms. All benefits, contributions (including employee salary deferrals) and premium payments, required to be
made under the terms of any of the Benefit Plans as of the date of this Agreement have been timely paid, accrued, or, if not yet due,
have been (or will be) properly reflected on the Financial Statements.

(d) Except as set forth in Section 5.15(d) of the Disclosure Schedules, no Benefit Plan has within the three (3) years
prior to the date hereof been the subject of an
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examination or audit by a Governmental Authority or is currently the subject of an application or filing under, or is a participant in,
an amnesty, voluntary compliance, self-correction, or similar program sponsored by any Governmental Authority that has not been
resolved as of the date hereof. There are no material pending claims, lawsuits or actions relating to any Benefit Plan (other than
ordinary course claims for benefits) and, to Company’s Knowledge, none are threatened in writing.

(e) Except as set forth in Section 5.15(¢) of the Disclosure Schedules, the consummation of the Contemplated
Transactions will not accelerate the time of vesting or payment, trigger any payment or funding, or increase the amount, of
compensation or benefits to any employee, officer, former employee or former officer of any Company Group Member or trigger
any other material obligation pursuant to any Benefit Plan. Except as set forth in Section 5.15(e) of the Disclosure Schedules, no
Benefit Plans or other Contracts or arrangements to which a Company Group Member is a party provide for payments that would
be triggered by the consummation of the Contemplated Transactions that would subject any current or former employee or service
provider of a Company Group Member to excise tax under Section 4999 of the Code, and no Company Group Member has made
any payments, is not obligated to make any payments and is not a party to any agreement that would reasonably be expected to
obligate it to make any payments to any current or former employee or other service provider of a Company Group Member that
will not be deductible under Section 280G of the Code.

(f) Each Company Group Member has complied in all material respects with the continuation coverage provisions of
COBRA and any applicable state statutes mandating health insurance continuation coverage for employees. Company Group
Members have provided to Buyer a list of all current and former employees of each Company Group Member and their
beneficiaries who are eligible for and/or have elected continuation coverage under COBRA or have otherwise confirmed that there
are no such eligible individuals. No Benefit Plan provides for, and no written or oral agreements have been entered into by a
Company Group Member promising or guaranteeing, the continuation of medical, dental, vision, life or disability insurance
coverage for any current or former employees of a Company Group Member or their beneficiaries for any period of time beyond
the termination of employment (except to the extent of coverage required under COBRA or other applicable Law).

(g) Each Benefit Plan that is subject to Section 409A of the Code has been administered in material compliance with
its terms and the operational and documentary requirements of Code Section 409A and all applicable regulatory guidance
(including, notices, rulings and proposed and final regulations) thereunder. No Company Group Member has any obligation to
gross up, indemnify or otherwise reimburse any individual for any excise taxes, interest or penalties incurred pursuant to Code
Section 409A.

(h) There has been no amendment to, announcement by any Company Group Member relating to, or change in
employee participation or coverage under, any Benefit Plan that would materially increase the annual expense of maintaining such
plan above the level of the expense incurred for the most recently completed fiscal year with respect to any director, officer,
employee, consultant or independent contractor of a Company Group Member, as applicable.
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5.16 Employee Relations.

(a) Section 5.16(a) of the Disclosure Schedules contains a list of all of the employees of each Company Group
Member, their current salary or wage rates, bonus and other compensation, including stock options and stock grants, benefit
arrangements, accrued sick days, accrued paid time off, allowed vacation days and holidays, period of service, location and
department. Section 5.16(a) of the Disclosure Schedules also indicates whether such employees are part-time, full-time or on a
leave of absence and the type of leave. During the last three (3) years, each Company Group Member has, at all times, complied
with all applicable state and federal wage and hour Laws, including, but not limited to, properly classifying employees as exempt or
non-exempt from overtime and minimum wage requirements and properly classifying workers as independent contractors rather
than employees where applicable. All employees are employees-at-will, unless otherwise specified on Section 5.16(a) of the
Disclosure Schedules. No Company Group Member is delinquent in payments to any of its employees for any wages, salaries,
commissions, bonuses or other direct compensation for any services performed for it or any other amounts required to be
reimbursed to such employees (including accrued paid time off, accrued vacation, accrued sick leave and other benefits) or in the
payment to the appropriate Governmental Authority of all required Taxes, insurance, social security and withholding thereon.

(b) Except as set forth in Section 5.16(b) of the Disclosure Schedules, no retention payments, severance payments,
change in control payments or other similar compensation or benefits are due or will be made to any employees, agencies or
independent contractors of any Company Group Member in connection with the Contemplated Transactions. Except as set forth in
Section 5.16(b) of the Disclosure Schedules, all employee bonuses or incentives relating to the period ending May 31, 2019 and all
prior periods have been paid in full and no bonus or related incentive plan is currently in place for any employee of any Company
Group Member.

5.17 Taxes.

(a) All federal, state and other material Tax Returns of Company Group Members required to be filed by Company
Group Members before the Closing Date (taking into account any valid extensions) have been timely filed in accordance with
applicable Laws, and each such Tax Return is true, correct and complete in all material respects. All Taxes with respect to the
taxable periods covered by such Tax Returns (whether or not shown on any Tax Return) before the Closing Date have been timely
paid. Before the Closing Date, no Company Group Member has requested any extension of time within which to file any Tax
Return which has not since been filed.

(b) Company Group Members have complied with the provisions of the Code relating to the withholding and
payment of Taxes, including the withholding and reporting requirements under Code Sections 1441 through 1464, 3401 through
3406, and 6041 through 6049, as well as similar provisions under any other Laws, and have, within the time and in the manner
prescribed by Law, withheld from employee wages and paid over to the proper Governmental Authorities all amounts required.
Company Group Members have accurately
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classified all service providers as either employees or independent contractors for all Tax purposes. Company Group Members (i)
have collected and remitted all applicable sales and/or use Taxes to the appropriate Governmental Authorities, and (ii) have
obtained, in good faith, any applicable sales and/or use Tax exemption certificates.

(c) There is no written claim against a Company Group Member that was made by a Governmental Authority before
the Closing Date for any Taxes which are owed by a Company Group Member and due under applicable Law, but which have not
been paid in full before the Closing Date. No assessment, deficiency, or adjustment has been asserted in writing, proposed in
writing, or threatened in writing by a Governmental Authority before the Closing Date with respect to any Tax Return of Company
Group Members filed before the Closing Date. No written claim has ever been received by a Company Group Member before the
Closing Date from any Governmental Authority in a jurisdiction where such Company Group Member does not file Tax Returns
that it is or may be subject to Tax by that jurisdiction. No Tax audit of a Company Group Member by any Governmental Authority
is currently pending or has been threatened in writing before the Closing Date. No Company Group Member has received a written
notice of any proposed Tax audit, or of any Tax deficiency or adjustment before the Closing Date.

(d) No reporting position has been taken on any Tax Return that was filed before the Closing Date on behalf of a
Company Group Member for a taxable period for which the statute of limitations for the assessment of Taxes with respect thereto
has not expired that is the same as any Tax Return reporting position that a Governmental Authority has successfully and finally
challenged before the Closing Date in the course of an examination of a Tax Return of such Company Group Member. No
Company Group Member has participated in a “listed transaction,” as such term is defined in Section 6707A(c)(2) of the Code and
Treasury Regulation Section 1.6011-4(b)(2), before the Closing.

(e) No Company Group Member is a party to or bound by any Tax sharing agreement entered into before the
Closing Date or any Tax indemnity agreement, obligation or similar Contract or practice with respect to Taxes (including any
agreement relating to Taxes with any Governmental Authority) entered into before the Closing Date.

(f) No Company Group Member has been a member of an affiliated group within the meaning of Section 1504(a) of
the Code before the Closing Date other than the affiliated group comprised of the Company Group Members. No Company Group
Member has any Liability for Taxes of any other Person (other than the particular Company itself) under Section 1.1502-6 of the
Treasury Regulations (or any similar provision of state or local Law) that arose before the Closing Date other than as a member of
the affiliated group comprised of the Company Group members, as a transferee or successor, by Contract or otherwise.

(g) There are no Liens relating to Tax upon any properties or assets of any of Company Group Members
immediately prior to the Closing (other than Liens relating to Taxes that are not yet due and payable or being contested in good
faith and for which adequate reserves have been recorded in line items on the Financial Statements).
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(h) No extensions or waivers of statutes of limitations currently in effect have been given or requested with respect
to any Taxes of Company Group Members.

(1) The amount of Company Group Members’ Liabilities for unpaid Taxes for all periods ending on or before the
date of this Agreement, does not, in the aggregate, exceed the amount of accruals for Taxes (excluding reserves for deferred Taxes)
reflected on the Financial Statements. The amount of Company Group Members’ Liabilities for unpaid Taxes for all periods
following the end of the recent period covered by the Financial Statements shall not, in the aggregate, exceed the amount of
accruals for Taxes (excluding reserves for deferred Taxes) as adjusted for the passage of time in accordance with the past custom
and practice of each Company Group Member.

(j) Section 5.17(j) of the Disclosure Schedules sets forth for each Company Group Member: (i) those taxable years
for which examinations by the Tax Authorities have been completed; and (ii) those taxable years for which examinations by Tax
Authorities are presently being conducted.

(k) Since January 1, 2016, no deficiencies or assessments have bene made against any Company Group Member as a
result of any examinations by any Tax Authority.

(1) No Company Group Member is a party to any Action by any Tax Authority. There are no pending or, to
Company’s Knowledge, threatened in writing, Actions by any Tax Authority against either Company.

(m) Company Group Members have delivered to Buyer copies of all federal, state, local and foreign income,
franchise and similar Tax Returns, examination reports, and statements of deficiencies assessed against, or agreed to by, Company
Group Members for all Tax periods beginning in, and since, Tax year 2016.

(n) No private letter rulings, technical advice memoranda or similar agreement or rulings have been requested,
entered into or issued by any Tax Authority with respect to either Company.

(o) No Company Group Member will be required to include any item of income in, or exclude any item or deduction
from, taxable income for any taxable period or portion thereof ending after the Closing Date as a result of: (i) any change in a
method of accounting under Section 481 of the Code (or any comparable provision of state, local or foreign Tax Law), or use of an
improper method of accounting, for a taxable period ending on or prior to the Closing Date; (ii) an installment sale or open
transaction occurring prior to the Closing; (iii) a prepaid amount received on or before the Closing Date; (iv) any closing agreement
under Section 7121 of the Code, or similar provision of state, local or foreign Law; or (v) any election under Section 108(i) of the
Code.

(p) No Company Group Member is a “foreign person” as that term is used in Treasury Regulations Section 1.1445-2.
No Company Group Member is or has been a United

32



States real property holding corporation (as defined in Section 897(c)(2) of the Code) during the applicable period specified in
Section 897(c)(1)(a) of the Code.

(q) No Company Group Member is, nor has it been, a party to, or a promoter of, a “reportable transaction” within the
meaning of Section 6707A(c)(1) of the Code and Treasury Regulations Section 1.6011-4(b).

(r) Before the Closing Date, no Company Group Member currently has, or has ever had, a permanent establishment
(as defined by applicable tax treaty) or other taxable presence in any foreign country.

(s) No Company Group Member has been the “distributing company” (within the meaning of Section 355(a)(1) of
the Code) or the “controlled corporation” (within the meaning of Section 355(a)(1) of the Code) (i) within the two (2)-year period
ending as of the Closing Date or (ii) in a distribution that could otherwise constitute part of a “plan” or “series of transactions”
(within the meaning of Section 355(¢) of the Code) in conjunction with this Agreement.

5.18 Environmental Matters. Each Company Group Member is currently in compliance in all material respects with all
Environmental Laws, except for any such non-compliance that would not, individually or in the aggregate, be material to the
Company Group Members, taken as a whole. To Company’s Knowledge, there have been no actions, activities, circumstances,
conditions, events or incidents that could form the basis of any material Environmental Claim against any Company Group
Member.

5.19 Affiliate Transactions. Except as set forth on Section 5.19 of the Disclosure Schedules, no Company Group Member
has been a party to any material business arrangement or relationship with any Securityholder that owns more than 5% of the
Company Capital Stock on an as-converted basis or any officer or director of the Company (an “Affiliated Person”) within the past
twelve (12) months (other than pursuant to any employment-related arrangements entered into in the ordinary course of business),
and no Affiliated Person owns any asset, tangible or intangible, that is used by any Company Group Member. To the Knowledge of
the Company, no Affiliated Person owns, or in the last twelve (12) months has owned, of record or as a beneficial owner, any
material financial or material profit interest in any Person that has had material business dealings or a material financial interest in
any transaction with any Company Group Member. Since December 31, 2018, no cash distribution has been made by a Company
Group Member to any Securityholder.

5.20 Insurance. Section 5.20 of the Disclosure Schedules sets forth a true and complete list of each insurance policy
currently utilized and/or maintained by any of Company Group Members with respect to its properties, assets and Business. All of
such insurance policies are in full force and effect with respect to the Company Group Members. During the last twelve (12)
months, no Company Group Member has received (a) written notice of cancellation or notice of failure to renew of any such
insurance policy or refusal of coverage thereunder, (b) written notice that any issuer of such policy has filed for protection under
applicable bankruptcy Laws or is otherwise in the process of liquidating or has been liquidated, (c) written notice of any material
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adjustment in the amount of the premiums payable with respect to any such insurance policy, or (d) any other written notice that
such policies are no longer in full force or effect or that the issuer of any such policy is no longer willing or able to perform its
obligations thereunder. All premiums payable with respect to such policies that are due and payable have been paid, and Company
Group Members have timely filed all claims under such insurance policies. Except as set forth on Section 5.20 of the Disclosure
Schedules, there is no pending claim under any such insurance policy.

5.21 Customer Arrangements.

(a) Agreements with Customers.

(1) Company Group Members have provided Buyer with true and correct copies of their form Customer
Agreements.

(i1) With respect to the Customers, whether as a result of the Contemplated Transactions or otherwise, none
of the Customer Agreements obligate or will obligate any Company Group Member (by the terms of any of such Contracts) to (A)
acquire or assume any asset or Liability, (B) offer a right of first refusal or similar preferential right in favor of such Customer or
any Referral Source or (C) pay ongoing residuals, commissions or fees to any third party.

(b) Ownership of Customer Agreements. No transfer, assignment or other fee will be due by any Company Group
Member to any Customer or Processor in connection with the Contemplated Transactions.

(c) Material Customers. Section 5.21(¢c) of the Disclosure Schedules provides a list of each Customer that on an
annual basis for calendar year 2016, 2017 or 2018 was among the top twenty (20) Merchant Customers of each Company Group
Member in revenue (to such Company Group Member) and among the top ten (10) ISV Customers of each Company Group
Member in revenue (a “Material Customer”). To Company’s Knowledge, there is no existing dispute between any Company Group
Member and a Material Customer known to the Company, and during the last twelve (12) months the Company has not received
any written notice that any Material Customer intends to terminate its Customer Agreement or materially reduce its annual
credit/debit card volume whether as a result of the consummation of the Contemplated Transactions or otherwise. There are no
Material Customers that receive services from any Company Group Member, or in respect of whom any Company Group Member
receives payments, that are not a party to a written Customer Agreement.

(d) Customer Reserves. Except as set forth on Section 5.21(d) of the Disclosure Schedules, there are no Merchant
Customer reserves, held funds or Merchant Customer liability accounts. Section 5.21(d) of the Disclosure Schedules sets forth the
Merchant Customer losses experienced from Chargebacks, fines or fees for the six (6) months period prior to the Closing Date.
Each Company Group Member has handled and processed all Chargebacks in the ordinary course consistent with the Rules.
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(e) Settlement Reports. The most recent residual/settlement report (the “Settlement Report”) issued by each
Processor was provided by Company Group Members to Buyer in diligence. Since the date of each Settlement Report, there has not
been any material adverse change in the value of the Customer Agreements with Merchant Customers taken as a whole.

(f) BIN/ICA. Except as set forth on Section 5.21(f) of the Disclosure Schedules, Customer transactions are processed
on the Bank Identification Number (for Visa transactions) and Interbank Card Association Number (for Mastercard transactions) set
forth on Section 5.21(f) of the Disclosure Schedules, and no merchants other than the Customers are processed on such Bank
Identification Number or Interbank Card Association Number.

(g) Customer Status. To Company’s Knowledge, none of the Customers, within the past three (3) years:
(1) are “Payment Facilitators™ as such term is defined in the Rules;

(ii) participates in or is required to participate in any “Risk Monitoring Service,” “Excessive Chargeback
Monitoring,” or similar programs or “Chargeback Monitored Customers” as defined in the Rules;

(iii) has been fined by (or has fines pending from) any Payment Network, or

(iv) has been placed on the “MATCH” (Customer Alert to Control High-Risk) File, “CTMF” (Combined
Terminated Customer File) or any similar list or database.

(h) Customer Underwriting Guidelines. Company Group Members have provided to Buyer a copy of each Company
Group Member’s merchant underwriting guidelines. To Company’s actual knowledge, without any duty or obligation of reasonable
inquiry of any person for purposes of this sentence, each of the Customers is in compliance in all material respects with Laws
applicable to the Business and each Company Group Member’s merchant underwriting guidelines. In the three (3) years prior to the
Closing Date, no Company Group Member has received any subpoena or other written inquiry from any Governmental Authority
regarding any Customer.

5.22 Privacy.

(a) Each Company Group Member is, and has been during the last three (3) years, in compliance in all material
respects with: (i) all applicable Privacy Laws, (ii) all of such Company Group Member’s publicly available policies regarding
privacy, and (iii) all written contractual commitments that such Company Group Member has entered into with respect to Personal
Information.
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(b) Each Company Group Member has commercially reasonable safeguards in place designed to protect any
Personal Information in its possession or control from unauthorized access, including by its employees, contractors and consultants.

(c) To the Knowledge of Company, no Company Group Member has made any illegal or unauthorized use of
Personal Information during the last three (3) years.

(d) During the last three (3) years, no Company Group Member has received any written notice of any claims
against a Company Group Member or been charged with the violation of any Privacy Laws by a Governmental Authority. To
Company’s Knowledge, no Company Group Member is currently under investigation by a Governmental Authority with respect to
any violation of any Privacy Laws.

5.23 Referral Sources.

(a) Referral Source Agreements; List. Section 5.23(a) of the Disclosure Schedules sets forth (i) a list of each Referral
Source that on an annual basis for each calendar year ending December 31, 2016, 2017 or 2018 received payments from a
Company Group Member in excess of $20,000 per year (a “Material Referral Source™); (ii) a complete list of each Referral Source
Agreement with each such Material Referral Source; (iii) the size of the payments made from each Company Group Member to
each Material Referral Source; and (iv) the aggregate volume of payments made by Customers of each Material Referral Source.
There are no Material Referral Sources that are not a party to a written Referral Source Agreement. Company Group Members have
provided Buyer with true and correct copies of their form Referral Source Agreements.

(b) Disputes. Except for as described on Section 5.23(b) of the Disclosure Schedules, there is no existing dispute
between any Company Group Member and any Referral Source known to the Company, and during the last twelve (12) months the
Company has not received any written notice that any Referral Source intends to terminate its agreement with any Company Group
Member or materially reduce its referral volume as a result of the consummation of the Contemplated Transactions or otherwise.

(c) Referral Source Compliance with Rules. To Company’s actual knowledge, without any duty or obligation of
reasonable inquiry of any person for purposes of this sentence, each of the Referral Sources is compliant with the Rules.

5.24 Data Security.

(a) To Company’s Knowledge, within the past two (2) years, the Company Group Members have not experienced a
breach or unauthorized use or disclosure of Personal Information to the extent such incident triggers a notice requirement to
affected individuals under Privacy Laws (a “Data Breach”). In the past two (2) years, no third-party network penetration test, audit
or review of any Company Group Member’s external and internal information technology network has identified any material risks
relating to the security of any Company Group Member’s network that have not been remediated.
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(b) Each third-party vendor of any component included in any Company Product that stores, transmits or processes
“cardholder data” or “sensitive authentication data” (as such terms are defined in the in the Payment Card Industry Data Security
Standards (“PCI-DSS”)) (a “Third-Party PCI-DSS Component”), including any “white label” payment gateway component, is
currently in compliance with the PCI-DSS and is a PCI Level 1 validated service provider. Each Third-Party PCI-DSS Component
that is required to be validated under the Payment Application Data Security Standards is so validated.

(c) Each Company Group Member is a PCI Level 2 validated service provider and, to the Company’s Knowledge, is
currently in compliance with the PCI-DSS.

(d) Each Company Group Member is in compliance in all material respects with: (i) all of such Company Group
Member’s written policies regarding data security and (ii) all written contractual commitments of such Company Group Member
with respect to data security.

(e) To the Knowledge of Company, all Company Products that are required to be validated under the Payment
Application Data Security Standards are so validated.

5.25 Cryptocurrencies. No Company Group Member (a) owns any Bitcoin, Ether or other cryptocurrencies
(“Cryptocurrencies™), (b) processes Cryptocurrencies on behalf of any Customers or (c) is a party to any Contracts with any
processor, exchange or wallet of or for Cryptocurrencies.

5.26 No Other Representations or Warranties. Except for the representations and warranties contained in this Article V
(including the related portions of the Disclosure Schedules), none of Representative, Company or any other Person (including any
Securityholder or their respective Affiliates or representatives) has made or makes any other express or implied representation or
warranty, either written or oral, on behalf of Representative or Company, of any nature whatsoever relating to the Company Group
Members or the Business, or otherwise in connection with the Contemplated Transactions.

ARTICLE VI - REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF BUYER AND MERGER SUB
Buyer represents and warrants to Company as of the Closing Date and the Effective Time, as follows:

6.1 Status. Each of Buyer and Merger Sub (a) is a corporation duly incorporated, validly existing and in good standing
under the Laws of the State of Delaware, (b) has all requisite corporate power and authority to carry on its business as now and
heretofore conducted and to own, operate and lease its properties and (c) is duly qualified or licensed to transact business in and is
in good standing under the Laws of each jurisdiction where such qualification is required, except where the failure to be so
qualified or in good standing would not reasonably be expected to be material to Buyer.
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6.2 Authorization. Each of Buyer, Merger Sub and Guarantor has full limited liability company or corporate, as applicable,
power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and the Transaction Documents to which it is a party, to perform its
obligations hereunder and thereunder and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby. The execution and
delivery of this Agreement and the Transaction Documents to which Buyer, Merger Sub and Guarantor are a party, by Buyer,
Merger Sub and Guarantor, their respective performance of their obligations hereunder and thereunder, and the consummation of
the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby have been duly authorized by all necessary limited liability company or
corporate, as applicable, action on the part of Buyer, Merger Sub and Guarantor. No other limited liability company, corporate or
legal Actions on the part of Buyer, Merger Sub or Guarantor, as applicable, are necessary to approve or authorize the execution and
delivery of this Agreement or the Transaction Documents and the consummation of the Contemplated Transactions. The
Transaction Documents have been duly executed and delivered by Buyer, Merger Sub and Guarantor and, assuming due
authorization, execution and delivery of the Transaction Documents by Representative and Company, each Transaction Document
is the valid and legally binding obligation of Buyer, Merger Sub and Guarantor, enforceable in accordance with its terms, except as
such enforceability may be limited by the Enforceability Limitations.

6.3 No Conflict. Buyer’s, Merger Sub’s and Guarantor’s negotiation, execution, delivery and performance of the
Transaction Documents, consummation of the Contemplated Transactions and compliance with any of the provisions thereof will
not (a) violate any Law to which Buyer, Merger Sub or Guarantor may be subject, (b) conflict with or result in a breach of any
provision of the limited liability company operating agreement of Buyer or corporate governing documents of Merger Sub or
Guarantor, (c) require any consent, approval or authorization of, or notice to, or declaration, filing or registration with, any
Governmental Authority that is required by Law or the regulations of any Governmental Authority, (d) violate any Order of any
Governmental Authority to which Buyer, Merger Sub or Guarantor may be subject, or (e) violate, or conflict with, or result in a
breach of any provision of, or constitute a default (or an event which, with notice or lapse of time or both would constitute a
default) under, or result in the termination of or in a right of termination or cancellation of, or accelerate the performance required
by, or result in the creation of any Lien upon any of the properties of Buyer, Merger Sub or Guarantor or result in being declared
void, voidable, without further binding effect, or subject to amendment or modification any of the terms, conditions or provisions
of, any contract, license, franchise, permit, or other material instrument or commitment or obligation to which Buyer, Merger Sub
or Guarantor may be bound or affected.

6.4 Buyer and Merger Sub. Merger Sub has been formed solely for the purpose of engaging in the Contemplated
Transactions. All of the capital stock of Merger Sub is, and at the Effective Time will be, owned by Buyer. Except for obligations or
liabilities incurred in connection with its incorporation or organization or the negotiation and consummation of this Agreement, the
Merger and the Contemplated Transactions, Buyer and Merger Sub have not incurred any liabilities, and have not engaged in any
business or activities of any type or kind whatsoever or entered into any agreements or arrangements with any Person.
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6.5 Sufficient Funds. Buyer has immediately available funds sufficient to make the payments contemplated hereunder to be
made at the Closing, and to pay all fees and expenses incurred by Buyer prior the Closing related to the Contemplated Transactions
which remain unpaid as of the Closing. Buyer (or Guarantor) will have immediately available funds sufficient to make any other
payments contemplated under Article III to be made following the Closing in accordance with the terms thereof.

6.6 Brokers and Finders. None of Buyer, Merger Sub nor their respective agents has engaged any finder or broker or
incurred any obligation or Liability, contingent or otherwise, for brokerage or finders’ fees or agents’ commissions in connection
with this Agreement and the Contemplated Transactions.

6.7 Legal Actions; Orders. There is no (a) Action pending or, to the knowledge of Buyer, threatened in writing by or against
Buyer, Merger Sub or any of their Affiliates of any of their respective properties, rights or assets or (b) Order outstanding to which
Buyer Merger Sub or any of their Affiliates or any of their respective properties, rights or assets is subject that, in any such case,
would (i) not reasonably be expected to be material to Buyer or Merger Sub, (ii) would give a third party the right to enjoin or
rescind the Contemplated Transactions or otherwise prevent Buyer, Merger Sub or any of their Affiliates from complying with the
terms and provisions of this Agreement, or (iii) would prevent, hinder, modify, delay or challenge the Contemplated Transactions.

6.8 No Other Representations or Warranties. Except for the representations and warranties contained in this Article VI, none
of Buyer, Merger Sub or any other Person has made or makes any other express or implied representation or warranty, either
written or oral, on behalf of Buyer, Merger Sub or any other Person.

6.9 Investigation. Buyer acknowledges and agrees that (a) the only representations and warranties made by any Company
Group Member, the Securityholders or their respective representatives in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby are
the representations and warranties made in Article V (as modified by the Disclosure Schedules) (the “Article V Representations™),
(b) other than the Article V Representations, none of the Company Group Members, any Securityholders, or their respective
representatives has made or makes, or shall be deemed to have made, any representation or warranty, written or oral, express or
implied, at law or in equity in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby, including in connection with any due
diligence materials, Data Room materials or any presentation or communications by management of Company or others in
connection with the Contemplated Transactions, except for the Article V Representations (¢) Buyer will have no right or remedy
arising out of, and expressly disclaims reliance on, any information made or supplied by or on behalf of any Company Group
Member or any Securityholder or their respective representatives in connection with Contemplated Transactions, including due
diligence materials, Data Room materials or any communications or presentations by management of Company or others in
connection with the Contemplated Transactions, except for the Article V Representations, and (d) any claims Buyer may have for
breach of representation or warranty in connection with the Contemplated
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Transactions shall be based solely on the representations and warranties set forth in Article V (as modified by the Disclosure
Schedules).

ARTICLE VII - COVENANTS
7.1 Tax Matters.

(a) Transactional Taxes. All transfer, documentary, sales, use, stamp, registration, value added and similar Taxes and
fees (including any penalties and interest) incurred in connection with Transaction Documents (including any real property transfer
Tax and any other similar Tax) shall be borne and paid (i) 50% by Buyer, and (ii) 50% will be an indemnifiable matter in
accordance with Section 9.2(f) hereof. Buyer shall timely file any Tax Return or other document with respect to such Taxes or fees
(and Representative shall cooperate with respect thereto as necessary).

(b) Tax Returns.

(1) Buyer shall prepare and timely file, or cause to be prepared and timely filed, all Tax Returns required to
be filed by a Company Group Member after the Closing Date with respect to a Pre-Closing Tax Period and for any Straddle Period.
Any such Tax Return shall be prepared in a manner consistent with past practice of the respective taxpayer (unless otherwise
required by Law) and, if it is an income or other material Tax Return, shall be submitted by Buyer to Representative (together with
schedules, statements and, to the extent requested by Representative, supporting documentation) at least forty-five (45) days prior
to the due date (including extensions) of such Tax Return. If Representative objects to any item on any such Tax Return that relates
to a Pre-Closing Tax Period, it shall, within twenty (20) days after delivery of such Tax Return, notify Buyer in writing that it so
objects, specifying with particularity any such item and stating the specific factual or legal basis for any such objection. If a notice
of objection shall be duly delivered, Buyer and Representative shall negotiate in good faith and use their reasonable best efforts to
resolve such items. If Buyer and Representative are unable to reach such agreement within twenty (20) days after receipt by Buyer
of such notice, the disputed items shall be resolved by the Independent Accountant and any determination by the Independent
Accountant shall be final. The Independent Accountant shall resolve any disputed items within twenty (20) days of having the item
referred to it pursuant to such procedures as it may require. If the Independent Accountant is unable to resolve any disputed items
before the due date for such Tax Return, the Tax Return shall be filed as prepared by Buyer and then amended to reflect the
Independent Accountant’s resolution. The costs, fees and expenses of the Independent Accountant shall be borne equally by Buyer
and Representative. The preparation and filing of any Tax Return of a Company Group Member that does not relate to a Pre-
Closing Tax Period or Straddle Period shall be exclusively within the control of Buyer. Upon any final determination that any such
Taxes are payable in accordance with the terms set forth herein, Buyer shall be entitled to indemnification under Section 9.2(f) for
(i) Taxes due with respect to any such Tax Return that relate to Pre-Closing Tax Periods and (ii) Taxes due with respect to any such
Tax Return that relate to Straddle Periods that are attributable under Section 7.1(c) to the portion of such Straddle Period ending on
the Closing Date, but only to the extent such Taxes due were not taken into account as liabilities in computing the Net Working
Capital.
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(c) Straddle Period. In the case of Taxes that are payable with respect to a taxable period that begins before and ends
after the Closing Date (each such period, a “Straddle Period”), the portion of any such Taxes that are treated as attributable to the
applicable Pre-Closing Tax Period for purposes of this Agreement shall be:

(i) in the case of Taxes (i) based upon, or related to, income, receipts, profits, wages, capital or net worth, (ii)
imposed in connection with the sale, transfer or assignment of property, or (iii) required to be withheld, deemed equal to the amount
which would be payable if the taxable year ended with the Closing Date; and

(ii) in the case of other Taxes, deemed to be the amount of such Taxes for the entire period multiplied by a
fraction the numerator of which is the number of days in the period ending on the Closing Date and the denominator of which is the
number of days in the entire period.

(d) Contests. Buyer agrees to give written notice to Representative of the receipt of any written notice by a Company
Group Member, Buyer or any of Buyer’s Affiliates which involves the assertion of any claim, or the commencement of any Action
involving Taxes, in respect of which an indemnity may be sought by Buyer pursuant to this Agreement (a “Tax Claim”). Buyer
shall control the contest or resolution of any Tax Claim; provided, however, that Buyer shall obtain the prior written consent of
Representative (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed) before entering into any settlement of a claim or
ceasing to defend such claim; and, provided further, that Representative shall be entitled to participate in the defense of such claim
and to employ counsel of its choice for such purpose, the fees and expenses of which separate counsel shall be borne solely by
Representative.

(e) Cooperation and Exchange of Information. Representative, Company Group Members and Buyer shall provide
each other with such cooperation and information as either of them reasonably may request of the others in filing any Tax Return
pursuant to this Section 7.1 or in connection with any audit or other Action in respect of Taxes of a Company Group Member. Such
cooperation and information shall include providing copies of relevant Tax Returns or portions thereof, together with
accompanying schedules, related work papers and documents relating to rulings or other determinations by tax authorities. Each of
Representative, Company Group Members and Buyer shall retain all Tax Returns, schedules and work papers, records and other
documents in its possession relating to Tax matters of any Company Group Member for any taxable period beginning before the
Closing Date until the expiration of the statute of limitations of the taxable periods to which such Tax Returns and other documents
relate, without regard to extensions except to the extent notified by any of the other parties in writing of such extensions for the
respective Tax periods. Prior to transferring, destroying or discarding any Tax Returns, schedules and work papers, records and
other documents in its possession relating to Tax matters of a Company Group Member for any taxable period beginning before the
Closing Date, Representative, Company Group Members or Buyer (as the case may be) shall provide the other parties with
reasonable written notice and offer the other parties the opportunity to take custody of such materials.
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(f) Tax Treatment of Indemnification Payments. Any indemnification payments pursuant to this Section 7.1 shall be
treated as an adjustment to the Merger Consideration by the parties for Tax purposes, unless otherwise required by Law.

(g) Buyer Tax Covenants.

(1) Buyer shall not take any action on or after the Closing Date that is outside the ordinary course of business
if such action would result in a Tax liability of a Company Group Member for any Pre-Closing Tax Period or any Indemnified
Taxes (other than any such action required by applicable Law or by this Agreement or taken pursuant to a legally binding
commitment entered into by a Company Group Member prior to the Closing).

(i) Buyer covenants that without the prior written consent of Representative, such consent not to be
unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, it shall not, and shall not cause or permit any Company Group Member to, make an
election under Code § 338, or file any amended Tax Return with respect to any Pre-Closing Tax Period if such filing would have
the effect of increasing the Tax liability of the Company Group Members or the Securityholders for such Pre-Closing Tax Period.

(iii) After the Closing Date, Buyer shall not, without the written consent of Representative, such consent not
to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, agree to the waiver or any extension of the statute of limitations relating to
any Taxes of any Company Group Member for any Pre-Closing Tax Period.

(iv) Any Tax refund received by Buyer (or any of its Affiliates) that relates to a Pre-Closing Tax Period of
any Company Group Member shall be for the account of the Securityholders (net of any Tax and other costs imposed or to be
imposed as a result of the receipt of such Tax refunds), except to the extent such refund resulted from the carry back of a net
operating loss or other Tax attribute that was economically generated after the Closing Date. Buyer shall pay or cause to be paid
any such refund to the Exchange Agent, for the account of the Securityholders, within fifteen (15) days after receipt thereof.

7.2 Post-Closing_Financial Audit Cooperation. After the Closing for a period of eighteen (18) months, Representative
covenants and agrees to use its commercially reasonable efforts to respond to requests for information from Buyer and its
accountants, independent auditors and other representatives regarding the financial records of the Company to the extent such
information is in the possession of Representative is reasonably necessary in the preparation of audited financial statements of
Buyer.

7.3 Post-Closing Access to Information.

(a) Representative and Buyer acknowledge that subsequent to Closing each Party may need access to information or
documents in the control or possession of the other Party for the purposes of Tax or other audits, compliance with Laws and
governmental requirements, and the prosecution or defense of third-party claims, settlements, disputes or investigations.
Accordingly, Representative and Buyer agree that until the seventh year
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anniversary of the Closing Date or such longer period required by Law, to the extent permitted by Law, each will make reasonably
available to the other’s agents, independent auditors and/or governmental agencies upon written request and at the expense of the
requesting Party such documents and information as may be available for periods prior and subsequent to Closing to the extent
necessary to facilitate audits, compliance with Laws and governmental requirements and regulations and the prosecution or defense
of third-party claims.

(b) Buyer shall cause to be provided any information or documents reasonably requested by Representative in
connection with Tax or other disputes, settlements, investigations, Actions or other matters in respect of any period ending at or
prior to the Closing. The Party requesting documents or information pursuant to this Section 7.3 shall pay all fees and expenses
paid to unaffiliated third parties by the Party providing such documents or information in connection with providing such
information or document.

(c) Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, no Party shall be required to provide any information
under this Section 7.3 in connection with any claims or disputes under this Agreement or any other agreement among the Parties or
in connection with the Contemplated Transactions. Any Party may condition providing any information pursuant to this Section 7.3
on the execution of a confidentiality agreement in such form as reasonably acceptable to such Party.

7.4 Further Assurances. From and after the date of this Agreement, upon the request of any Party, the other Parties shall
furnish such further information, execute and deliver such schedules, instruments, documents or other writings and take such
actions as may be reasonably necessary or desirable to confirm and carry out and to fully effectuate the intent and purposes of this
Agreement.

7.5 Directors and Officers Indemnification.

(a) Buyer and Merger Sub agree that all rights to indemnification and all limitations on liability existing in favor of
current or former directors, officers and employees of the Company Group Members (the “D&O Indemnified Persons™) as provided
in the Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws of each Company Group Member, and any indemnification agreement of the
Company Group Members with any D&O Indemnified Persons (such constituent documents and indemnification agreements,
collectively, the “Indemnification Documents”), as in effect as of the date of this Agreement with respect to matters occurring prior
to the Effective Time shall either survive the Merger (with respect to any indemnification agreements not set forth in constituent
documents) or be restated in the constituent documents of the Surviving Corporation, and shall continue in full force and effect, and
shall be honored by Buyer (as if it was the Indemnifying Party (as defined herein) thereunder) and the Surviving Corporation
following the Closing for a period of six (6) years without any amendment thereto; provided, however, that, for purposes of
clarification, if any D&O Indemnified Person is an individual who is an Indemnifying Holder (that is, Paul Christians and Scott
Scherr) and pays his several portion of any indemnification claim payable to the Buyer Indemnified Parties under clause (2) of
Section 9.2(a) (any such payment made by any such D&O Indemnified Person, a “D&O Indemnifying Holder Payment”), then any
such D&O Indemnified Person shall not be
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entitled to recover indemnification under the Indemnification Documents in respect of the D&O Indemnifying Holder Payment
previously paid by such D&O Indemnified Person.

(b) At the Closing, Company shall obtain a “tail” policy (the “D&O Insurance™) with respect to the current policies
of directors’ and officers’ liability insurance (the “D&O Policies”) maintained by Company (the costs of which will be borne 50%
by Buyer and 50% by Company) with respect to claims arising from or related to facts or events which occurred at or before the
Effective Time. Such D&O Insurance shall (i) have a claim period of at least six (6) years following the Closing Date, (ii) insure
each Person covered by the D&O Policies for acts and omissions occurring on or before the Closing Date and (iii) contain terms
and conditions which are no less advantageous to the beneficiaries thereof as the D&O Policies. Notwithstanding anything herein to
the contrary, if any claim (whether arising before, at or after the Closing Date) is made against any Person covered by the D&O
Insurance on or before the sixth (6th) anniversary of the Closing Date, the provisions of this Section 7.5(b) shall continue in effect
until the final disposition or resolution of such claim.

(¢) The obligations of Buyer and Surviving Corporation under this Section 7.5 shall not be terminated or modified in
such a manner as to adversely affect any D&O Indemnified Person to whom this Section 7.5 applies without the consent of such
affected D&O Indemnified Person (it being expressly agreed that the D&O Indemnified Persons to whom this Section 7.5 applies
shall be third-party beneficiaries of this Section 7.5, each of whom may enforce the provisions of this Section 7.5).

7.6 Representations and Warranties Policy. Buyer shall cause the Representations and Warranties Policy to be issued, in
substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit F, promptly following the Closing and, upon the issuance of the Representations
and Warranties Policy by the R&W Carrier and receipt of a final binder evidencing such issuance by Buyer, Buyer shall promptly
deliver to Representative a true and complete copy of the Representations and Warranties Policy as issued.

7.7 Employee Matters.

(a) For purposes of eligibility, benefit accrual and vesting under the Benefit Plans of Buyer or its Affiliates
(including the Surviving Corporation) providing benefits to employees of the Company Group Members following the Closing,
Buyer shall credit each such employee with his or her years of service with the Company Group Member, to the same extent as
such employee was entitled to credit for such service under any similar Benefit Plans immediately prior to the Closing. Buyer shall
use commercially reasonable efforts to cause the Benefit Plans of Guarantor that are welfare benefit plans, in the plan year in which
the Closing occurs, to (i) not deny such employees coverage on the basis of pre-existing conditions, (ii) waive all exclusions and
waiting periods with respect to participation and coverage that were met pre-Closing, and (iii) credit such employees for any
deductibles and out-of-picket expenses paid (including prior to the Closing) under the comparable Benefit Plan in the year of initial
participation.
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(b) From and after Closing for a period of six (6) months, Buyer shall pay, or cause the Surviving Corporation to
pay, in accordance with regularly scheduled payroll practices, and subject to applicable tax withholding, to the employees of the
Company Group Members as set forth on Annex B the Employee Payments in such amounts and at such times as set forth on such
Annex. Buyer may condition the receipt of Employee Payments upon the execution by the applicable employee of a release
agreement, in the form mutually agreed upon by Buyer and the Company prior to the Closing. Any Company Group Member that
makes any Employee Payment shall be entitled to reimbursement from the Employee Payments Escrow Fund. Within five (5)
Business Days of Representative’s receipt of documentation supporting a Company Group Member’s payment of any Employee
Payment, Representative shall direct Escrow Agent to release such reimbursable amount out of the Employee Payments Escrow
Fund. Any funds remaining in the Employee Payments Escrow Fund at the end of the period described in the first sentence of this
Section 7.7(b) shall be released by Escrow Agent to the Exchange Agent and paid in accordance with the Distribution Schedule.

(c) Effective as of the Closing Date with respect to the commencement of vesting, Guarantor shall cause i3V to, and
13V shall, grant and award a total of 150,000 i3V Options to the employees of the Company Group Members set forth on Annex B,
which 13V Options will be evidenced by i3V’s standard stock option agreement to be delivered directly by Buyer or i3V to such
employees no later than thirty (30) days following the Closing in connection with the post-Closing employment onboarding
process.

ARTICLE VIII - CONDITIONS TO CLOSING AND TERMINATION

8.1 Conditions to Obligations of Buyer and Merger Sub. The obligations of Buyer and Merger Sub to consummate the
Contemplated Transactions shall be subject to the fulfillment or Buyer’s waiver, at or prior to the Closing, of each of the actions of
the Company and the delivery of each of the Closing deliverables set forth in Section 2.10.

8.2 Conditions to Obligations of Company. The obligations of Company to consummate the Contemplated Transactions
shall be subject to the fulfillment or Company’s waiver, at or prior to the Closing, of each of the actions of Buyer and the delivery
of each of the Closing deliverables set forth in Section 2.11.

8.3 Termination. This Agreement may be terminated at any time prior to the Closing:
(a) by mutual written consent of Company and Buyer;

(b) by either Company or Buyer, if the Merger shall not have been consummated on or before the close of business
on May 31, 2019 (the “Outside Date™); provided that the termination right under this Section 8.3(b) shall not be available to any
party whose material breach of this Agreement has been the primary cause of, or resulted in, the failure of the Merger to have been
consummated on or before the Outside Date.

8.4 Effect of Termination. In the event of a termination of this Agreement in accordance with Section 8.3, this Agreement
shall become void and there shall be no liability on
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the part of any party hereto except that the provisions of Article XII shall survive such termination and nothing herein shall relieve
any Party from liability for any willful breach of any provision of this Agreement.

ARTICLE IX - INDEMNIFICATION

9.1 Survival. The representations and warranties made by each Party in this Agreement, shall survive the Closing Date and
shall continue in full force and effect for a period of eighteen (18) months thereafter; provided, however, (a) each of the
Fundamental Representations, and the indemnification matters specified in clauses (d)-(e), and clauses (g)-(k) of Section 9.2 shall
survive until the sixth (6th) anniversary of the Closing Date and (b) each of the Special Representations, and the indemnification
matters specified in clause (f) of Section 9.2 below, shall survive until sixty (60) days after the expiration of the applicable statute
of limitations for the applicable underlying claim. The covenants and agreements made by the Parties in this Agreement shall
survive until performed in accordance with their terms or for the period stated herein. In each case, the period from the date hereof
until the last date on which a representation, warranty, covenant or other obligation survives shall be known as the “Survival
Period”. The Parties acknowledge that the Survival Periods set forth herein for the assertion of claims under this Agreement are the
results of arms-lengths negotiations among the Parties and that the Parties intend for such time periods to be enforced as agreed by
the Parties.

9.2 Indemnification of Buyer Indemnified Parties. Subject to the provisions set forth in this Article IX, from and after the
Closing, (1) the Buyer Indemnified Parties shall be entitled to indemnification from the Indemnification Escrow Fund (and, to the
extent provided in Section 9.4(i), the Chargeback Escrow Fund) and in connection with the right of set off against the Contingent
Consideration in accordance with the terms of Section 9.8 and, (2) solely with respect to Direct Indemnification Matters and subject
to the limitations set forth in this Article IX and Annex A, each of the Indemnifying Holders will severally (but not jointly and
severally) in proportion to their Indemnifying Percentages as set forth on Annex A, indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Buyer
Indemnified Parties for, any and all Damages that Buyer Indemnified Parties incur as a result of (and whether or not in connection
with any third-party claim):

(a) the inaccuracy or breach of any representation or warranty made by Company contained in or made pursuant to
Article V, including the Disclosure Schedules;

(b) the non-compliance with or failure to perform any agreement or covenant of (i) prior to the Closing, any
Company Group Member or (ii) Representative contained in or made pursuant to this Agreement or the Escrow Agreement;

(c) any Liabilities relating to Chargebacks resulting from transactions entered into prior to the Effective Time in
accordance with the terms (and subject to the limitations, including Section 2.14(¢)) set forth in Section 2.14;

(d) any and all Transaction Expenses and any Transaction Bonuses (except, in any such case, as otherwise taken into
account in connection with the calculation of the Closing
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Merger Consideration or the Final Adjustment Calculation), or otherwise as a reduction in the amount payable to the equityholders
of Company under Section 2.9;

(e) any and all of any Company Group Member’s Indebtedness (except, in any such case, as otherwise taken into
account in connection with the calculation of the Closing Merger Consideration or the Final Adjustment Calculation);

(f) any Indemnified Taxes;

(g) any claim by any Securityholder related to the allocation or payment of any of the Merger Consideration,
including any claims related to the Distribution Schedule or other action brought by any Securityholder in connection with the
Contemplated Transactions;

(h) any dissenting shareholder or appraisal rights of any Stockholder under the DGCL (including any amounts paid
to such Stockholders with respect to such demands) (except to the extent, in any such case, any payment by Buyer pursuant to this
Section 9.2(h) represents a portion of the Merger Consideration that was required to be paid by Buyer in accordance with Section
2.8 and was not paid by Buyer or the Exchange Agent as the result of the shares of Company Capital Stock held by any such
Stockholder being Dissenting Shares);

(i) any payments made by any Company Group Member to any D&O Indemnified Persons in respect of a claim
covered by Section 7.5 in excess of the amounts recoverable under the D&O Insurance;

(j) any claim asserted by any Optionholder or Warrantholder related to the Company EIP, the satisfaction of any
Company Options or Warrants, or allocation or payment of the portion of the Merger Consideration payable to any Warrantholder
under this Agreement; and

(k) the matter set forth on Section 9.2(k) of the Disclosure Schedules (the “Section 9.2(k) Matter™).

9.3 Indemnification by Buyer. Subject to the conditions and provisions set forth this Article IX, from and after the Closing,
Buyer shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Seller Indemnified Parties for, any and all Damages that Seller Indemnified
Parties incur as a result of (and whether or not in connection with any third-party claim):

(a) the inaccuracy or breach of any representation or warranty contained in or made by Buyer or Merger Sub
pursuant to Article VI; and

(b) the non-compliance with or failure to perform any agreement or covenant of Buyer or (following the Closing) the
Surviving Corporation contained in or made pursuant to this Agreement or the Escrow Agreement.

9.4 Limitations. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the rights of the Parties to be indemnified and held
harmless under this Agreement shall be limited as follows:

47



(a) Any claim for indemnification must be asserted before the expiration of the applicable Survival Period; provided,
however, if notice of any claim for indemnification shall have been given within the applicable Survival Period, the provisions that
are the subject of the indemnification claim shall survive with respect to such claim until such time as such claim is finally
resolved.

(b) Other than with respect to claims based on Fraud:

(1) no Party shall have any liability for Damages pursuant to Sections 9.2(a) or 9.3(a), as applicable, until the
total of all Damages incurred by the Buyer Indemnified Parties or the Seller Indemnified Parties, as applicable, under Sections
9.2(a) or 9.3(a), as applicable (other than, in any such case, in connection with breaches of Fundamental Representations and
Special Representations) exceeds $200,000, in which event the applicable Indemnifying Party shall only be liable for such
Damages in excess of such threshold;

(ii) other than in connection with breaches of Fundamental Representations, Special Representations and
Excluded Representations, the aggregate indemnification liability to Buyer Indemnified Parties for Damages pursuant to Section
9.2(a) shall not exceed $200,000;

(iii) in connection with breaches of Excluded Representations, the aggregate indemnification liability to
Buyer Indemnified Parties for Damages pursuant to Section 9.2(a) shall not exceed the Excluded Representation Cap; and

(iv) other than in connection with breaches of Fundamental Representations, the liability of Buyer to Seller
Indemnified Parties for Damages pursuant to Section 9.3(a) shall not exceed $7,250,000.

(c) For the purposes of calculating Damages to which the Buyer Indemnified Parties are entitled under this Article
IX, such Damages shall be reduced by the actual net reduction in the income Taxes of any Buyer Indemnified Parties resulting from
the deduction, if any, attributable to any such Damages, in the taxable year such Damages are recognized for income Tax purposes,
as calculated on a with and without basis.

(d) Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the sole remedy of the Buyer Indemnified Parties for
Damages pursuant to Section 9.2(a) (other than in connection with Fraud, breaches of Fundamental Representations, Special
Representations or any Excluded Representation) will be to bring a claim against the Indemnification Escrow Fund in accordance
with the Escrow Agreement.

(e) In the event of any claims by Buyer with respect to Direct Indemnification Matters pursuant to clause (2) of
Section 9.2, subject to Section 9.4(k) and the other limitations set forth herein, each Indemnifying Holder will be responsible for
such claims in proportion to the Indemnifying Percentage of such Indemnifying Holder on a several basis (and not a joint and
several basis) as set forth on Annex A. In addition, notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, in no event will any
Indemnifying Holder (i) in the case of the Sponsor
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Securityholders, have indemnification liability with respect to Direct Indemnification Matters pursuant to clause (2) of Section 9.2
in excess of the amounts set forth with respect to each such Sponsor Securityholder on Annex A), and (ii) in the case of any
Transaction Bonus Plan Participant, have indemnification liability pursuant to clause (2) of Section 9.2 in excess of the amounts set
forth with respect to each such Transaction Bonus Plan Participant as set forth on Annex A. In addition, the aggregate
indemnification liability of all Indemnifying Holders with respect to Direct Indemnification Matters pursuant to clause (2) of
Section 9.2, plus all amounts paid by the Indemnifying Holders pursuant to Section 3.5, shall not exceed the aggregate amount set
forth on Annex A (the “Indemnifying Holder Cap”).

(f) The indemnification liability of Buyer to Seller Indemnified Parties for Damages pursuant to Section 9.3 shall not
exceed an amount equal to the Closing Cash Purchase Price.

(g) In determining the amount of Damages in respect of a claim under this Article IX, there shall be deducted an
amount equal to the amount of any third-party insurance proceeds actually received (including, in the case of the Buyer
Indemnified Parties, proceeds received under the Representations and Warranties Policy) (net of collection expenses, including any
fees and expenses of counsel) (the “Net Insurance Proceeds”) by an Indemnified Party making such claim with respect to such
Damages. In addition the event any Net Insurance Proceeds are received after an indemnification claim is paid pursuant to this
Article IX, then the amount of such recovery shall be applied first, to refund any payments made by the Indemnifying Party which
would not have been so paid had such recovery been obtained prior to such payment and, second, any excess to the Indemnified
Party. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, if any Buyer Indemnified Party may at any time be entitled to
recover under the Representations and Warranties Policy in respect of any matter otherwise giving rise to indemnifiable Damages
hereunder (whether before or after any indemnification payment has been made hereunder to the Buyer Indemnified Persons),
Buyer (a) shall promptly notify Representative and provide such information as Representative may reasonably request relating to
such right of recovery and the steps taken or to be taken by Buyer or its Affiliates in connection therewith, (b) shall, and shall cause
its Affiliates to, submit such indemnification claim under the Representations and Warranties Policy, up to the R&W Limit
Amount, (c) shall keep Representative reasonably informed of the progress of any action taken in respect thereof, and (d) shall not
be entitled to bring any indemnification claim hereunder for breaches of Fundamental Representations or other matters which may
be indemnifiable under the Representations and Warranties Policy (but excluding, for purposes of clarification, the Excluded
Representations) in excess of the R&W Retention Amount until such time that Buyer has (i) submitted such claim under the
Representations and Warranties Policy in accordance with the terms of clause (b) above and (ii) either (x) recovered proceeds under
the Representations and Warranties Policy or (y) received a written denial of coverage issued by the insurance carrier of the
Representations and Warranties Policy. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall any Buyer Indemnified Party be required
to contest any denial of coverage issued by the insurance carrier of the Representations and Warranties Policy. Following the
Closing Date, Buyer shall not amend, modify or terminate the Representations and Warranties Policy without the written consent of
Representative, and shall not otherwise knowingly take any action adversely affecting
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coverage under the Representations and Warranties Policy. For avoidance of doubt, Buyer shall not be obligated to reimburse any
Net Insurance Proceeds under the Representations and Warranties Policy to the extent Buyer has incurred Damages hereunder that
are less than the R&W Retention Amount.

(h) Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, no Indemnified Party shall be entitled to be
indemnified under this Article IX for any Damages to the extent such Damages were treated as a Current Liability in determining
Net Working Capital.

(1) Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the sole remedy of the Buyer Indemnified Parties for
Damages pursuant to Section 9.2(¢) (Chargebacks) will be to bring a claim against the Chargeback Escrow Fund in accordance
with the Escrow Agreement.

(j) Buyer will have no right to make any claim against the Purchase Price Adjustment Escrow Fund, except for any
claim made pursuant to Article III. In addition, Buyer will have no right to make any claim against the Chargeback Escrow Fund,
except for any claims brought pursuant to Section 9.2(c). In addition, Buyer will have no right to make any claim against the
Employee Payments Escrow Fund, except for any claims made pursuant to Section 7.7(b).

(k) Notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement to the contrary, in the event that Buyer has an
indemnification claim under this Article IX (excluding (x) any claim pursuant to Section 9.2(a) (other than in connection with
breaches of Fundamental Representations, Special Representations and Excluded Representations), which will be addressed as
provided in Section 9.4(d), and (y) any claim under Section 9.2(c), which will be addressed as provided in Section 9.4(i)):

(1) Buyer’s first recourse will be to collect from and against the Indemnification Escrow Fund;

(i1) thereafter, with respect to Direct Indemnification Matters and to the extent that the Indemnification
Escrow Fund has been distributed or depleted at the time of such claim, subject to Section 9.4(g) and Section 9.8, Buyer shall have
the option (unless required under Section 9.8) to first exercise its right of set-off against any Contingent Consideration subject to
and in accordance with the terms of Section 9.8; and

(iii) thereafter, with respect to Direct Indemnification Matters, subject to Section 9.4(g) and Section 9.8,
Buyer shall be entitled to recover directly from the Indemnifying Holders pursuant to clause (2) of Section 9.2, subject to the terms
and limitations set forth herein, including Annex A.

() Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the Buyer Indemnified Parties will not be
indemnified and held harmless for any Taxes (or any other adverse consequences directly related to any such Taxes) of any Person
attributable to any tax period that ends after the Closing (other than the portion of a Straddle Period that relates to the
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Pre-Closing Tax Period) in connection with the lost benefit of any credit, deduction or loss for Tax purposes which would have
been available to reduce or otherwise offset Taxes of any Buyer Indemnified Party (including following the Closing, the Surviving
Corporation) on the basis of any breach of the representations and warranties made in Section 5.17.

9.5 Indemnification Procedures.

(a) Whenever any indemnification claim shall arise in favor of a Person entitled to indemnification under this Article
IX (the “Indemnified Party”), the Indemnified Party shall notify the Person giving the indemnity (“Indemnifying Party”) in writing
as soon as reasonably practicable but at least within thirty (30) days of (i) such Indemnified Party receiving actual knowledge of the
facts constituting the basis for such indemnification claim, or, (ii) in the case of a third-party claim, receipt of a written third-party
assertion of a claim or liability. Failure to send such written notice shall not release the Indemnifying Party from liability hereunder,
unless such failure materially prejudices the Indemnifying Party’s defense of the claims that are the subject of the written notice,
which notice given by the Indemnified Party will specify the nature, circumstances and amount of such claim and set forth the
Indemnified Party’s calculation of the Damages incurred (and, if possible, expected to be incurred) by the applicable Indemnified
Party with respect thereto (in each case, estimated, if necessary, and to the extent feasible), and (in the case of any third-party
claim) include copies of all notices and documents (including Court papers) received by the Indemnified Party to date relating to
the third-party claim (other than those notices and documents separately addressed to the Indemnifying Party).

(b) The Indemnifying Party shall have the option to assume the defense of any third-party claim and control the
defense, settlement and prosecution of any litigation. Each Indemnified Party shall fully and reasonably cooperate with the
Indemnifying Party in any such litigation defense, settlement or prosecution. The Indemnified Party shall have the right to
reasonably approve defense counsel selected by the Indemnifying Party. The Indemnified Party shall be entitled to participate in the
defense of such Action or claim, and employ separate counsel of its choice for such purpose. After notice from the Indemnifying
Party to the Indemnified Party of its election to assume the defense of such Action or claim, the Indemnifying Party will not, as
long as it diligently conducts such defense, be liable to the Indemnified Party under this Article IX for any fees of other counsel or
any other expenses with respect to the defense of such Action, in each case subsequently incurred by the Indemnified Party in
connection with the defense of such Action, provided, that, if there exists a conflict of interest between the Indemnifying Party and
the Indemnified Party that cannot be waived, the Indemnifying Party shall be liable for the reasonable fees and expenses of counsel
to the Indemnified Party in each jurisdiction for which the Indemnified Party determines counsel is required to the extent such fees
and expenses are otherwise indemnifiable hereunder. Anything in this Section 9.5(b) notwithstanding, the Indemnifying Party shall
not, without the written consent of the Indemnified Party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed, settle or
compromise any claim or consent to the entry of any judgment if, pursuant to or as a result of such settlement, compromise or
discharge, (i) injunctive or other equitable relief will be imposed against the Indemnified Party or such settlement, compromise or
discharge involves any finding or admission of any violation of applicable Law, or (ii) such settlement, compromise, or

51



discharge does not include as an unconditional term thereof a written irrevocable and unconditional release of the Indemnified
Party from all liabilities with respect to such matter. All Parties agree to cooperate as reasonably necessary in the defense of such
matters, including making available records, information, personnel and testimony, and attending such conferences, discovery
proceedings, hearings, trials or appeals relating to such third party claim and furnishing, without expense (other than
reimbursement of actual out-of-pocket expenses) to the defending party, employees of the non-defending party as may be
reasonably necessary for the preparation of the defense of such third-party claim. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Representative, on behalf of the Indemnifying Holders, shall, at its election, exclusively control and direct the defense, settlement
and prosecution of the Section 9.2(k) Matter through attorneys selected by the Representative, provided that Representative shall
keep Buyer reasonably informed of all material developments that arise in connection with such matter.

(¢) After the giving of any notice of a claim pursuant to this Section 9.5, the amount of indemnification to which an
Indemnified Party shall be entitled under this Section 9.5 shall be determined (i) by the written agreement between Buyer and
Representative, (ii) a final award under Section 12.6, or (iii) by a final judgment or decree of any Court of competent jurisdiction
(each of the foregoing, collectively, a “Final Determination™). The judgment or decree of a Court shall be deemed final when the
time for appeal, if any, shall have expired and no appeal shall have been taken or when all appeals taken shall have been finally
determined.

(d) For purposes of this Section 9.5, (i) if any Buyer Indemnified Party comprises the Indemnified Party, any
references to the Indemnifying Party (except provisions relating to an obligation to make or a right to receive any payments) will be
deemed to refer to Representative and (ii) if any Seller Indemnified Party comprises the Indemnified Party, any references to the
Indemnifying Party (except provisions relating to an obligation to make or a right to receive any payments) will be deemed to refer
to Buyer.

9.6 Disregarding_Materiality Exceptions. For purposes of (a) calculating the dollar amount of Damages to which an
Indemnified Party is entitled under this Article IX or (b) determining whether a breach of any such representation or warranty has
occurred, in either case the terms “material,” “materiality,” and other qualifiers, modifiers or limitations shall be disregarded;
provided, that the foregoing clause (b) shall not apply to such determinations relating to breaches of Fundamental Representations,
Excluded Representations or Special Representations; and provided further, however, that for purposes of determining whether a
breach has occurred, the term “Material Adverse Effect” shall be given effect for purposes of Section 5.7, and the phrases “Material
Contracts,” “Material Customer,” “Material Referral Source,” and “Material Vendors” will be given effect when used in Article V.

9.7 Indemnification Escrow Procedures. Subject to the limitations set forth in this Agreement, if any Buyer Indemnified
Party has a claim for indemnification against the funds available in the Indemnification Escrow Fund (an “Escrow Claim”), Buyer
shall, as soon as practicable after it becomes aware of such Escrow Claim but, in any event, within thirty (30) days of such
awareness in accordance with Section 9.5(a) and prior to the date that is eighteen (18) months following the Closing Date (the
“Escrow Release Date”), notify Representative and
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the Escrow Agent of such Escrow Claim (an “Escrow Claim Notice”) in accordance with the terms of the Escrow Agreement
specifying the nature, circumstances and amount of such Escrow Claim, setting forth Buyer’s calculation of the Damages incurred
(and, if possible, expected to be incurred) by the applicable Buyer Indemnified Party with respect thereto (in each case, estimated,
if necessary, and to the extent feasible). Subject to the eighteen (18)-month limitation set forth above, the failure by Buyer to
promptly deliver an Escrow Claim Notice under this Section 9.7 will not adversely affect the applicable Buyer Indemnified Party’s
right to recovery from the Indemnification Escrow Fund except to the extent that any Securityholder is prejudiced thereby.

9.8 Right of Setoff. In the event of a Final Determination that the Buyer Indemnified Parties are entitled to indemnification
under this Article IX, Buyer shall have the right to offset any such amount against any Contingent Consideration otherwise due and
payable by Buyer, provided, that (i) if, as of the date of such Final Determination, any Contingent Consideration has been finally
determined to be due pursuant to Article IV but has not been paid as of such date, then Buyer shall be required to (as opposed to
having the option to) first offset any such amount of Damages to which a Buyer Indemnified Party is entitled against any such
Contingent Consideration (up to the amount of the Contingent Consideration) otherwise due and payable by Buyer, and (ii) if, any
indemnification claim of Buyer remains outstanding at or following such time that a Section 4.2 Statement has been previously
delivered under Section 4.2 but no final determination of achievement of a Performance Threshold has been made with respect to
final determination of achievement of a Performance Threshold has been made and if any Contingent Consideration is owed, then
Buyer shall be required to offset any Damages in accordance with the preceding clause (i) before exercising any further remedies
(including Section 9.4(d) but not including Section 9.4(e)), the entire balance of any Contingent Consideration otherwise due and
payable by Buyer hereunder shall be subject to the right of setoff described in this Section 9.8 and, for purposes of clarity, the right
of setoff against the Contingent Consideration shall not be limited to the Indemnifying Holder Cap. For purposes of this Section
9.8, the total Contingent Consideration available for setoff hereunder shall be calculated without taking into account the amount of
Damages to be setoff.

9.9 Exclusive Remedy. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the indemnification and related provisions in this Article IX
shall be the sole and exclusive post-Closing remedy for any Damages (including any Damages from claims for breach of contract,
warranty, tortious conduct (including negligence) or otherwise and whether predicated on common law, statute, strict liability, or
otherwise) arising out of or based upon the matters set forth in this Agreement or related to the Contemplated Transactions;
provided, however, that no limitation set forth in this Agreement, including the limitations set forth in this Article IX, shall limit (a)
any remedy that may be available to Buyer, Representative or any Securityholder or any other Person against the other or against
any other party pursuant to any employment or restrictive covenant agreements or other agreements (other than the Escrow
Agreement, which is subject to the indemnification provisions set forth herein) entered into at Closing pursuant to the terms
thereof,
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(b) any remedy that may be available against any other Party on account of Fraud committed by such Party, (c) any Party’s right at
any time to seek injunctive or equitable relief in accordance with Section 12.12 hereof, and (d) the rights of the Parties in
connection with the dispute resolution processes contemplated by Sections 2.14, Article III, Article IV and 7.1(b), as applicable.

9.10 Adjustment to Merger Consideration. The Parties agree that any indemnification payments made pursuant to this
Agreement shall be treated by the Parties as an adjustment to the Merger Consideration for income Tax purposes unless a final
determination by a court of competent jurisdiction requires such payment to be treated differently.

9.11 Mitigation, Etc. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Buyer Indemnified Parties or Seller Indemnified
Parties, as applicable, shall make reasonable efforts to mitigate any Damages in accordance with applicable Law. Upon the payment
of any indemnification claim under this Agreement, the Indemnifying Party shall, to the extent of such payment, be subrogated to
all rights of the Indemnified Party against any insurer of the Indemnified Party (including under the Representations and Warranties
Policy) in respect of the Damages to which such payment relates. The Indemnified Party and Indemnifying Party shall duly execute
upon request all instruments reasonably necessary to evidence and perfect the foregoing subrogation rights.

9.12 Guaranty. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Guarantor and Buyer will be jointly and severally
liable for Buyer’s obligation to pay the Merger Consideration, including, if, and to the extent and when due, of any Final
Adjustment Calculation (if positive), Contingent Consideration, and all other payments owing by Buyer under the terms of this
Agreement (the “Guaranty”). This Guaranty may be enforced by Representative against Guarantor without the necessity at any
time of Representative bringing or prosecuting an action against Guarantor, provided, that, Guarantor shall have, and shall be
entitled to assert or exercise, all of the defenses, remedies and other rights available to Buyer under this Agreement or any
applicable Law and shall receive copies of all notices required to be delivered to Buyer under the terms of this Agreement at the
time so required hereunder, simultaneously with delivery to Buyer.

ARTICLE X - NOTICES

All notices and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be given to the Parties via email (with
evidence of receipt), hand delivery, or nationally recognized and reputable overnight delivery service, addressed to the Parties as
follows:

Guarantor, Buyer or,
after Closing,
any Company Group
Member: i3-SDCR, Inc.
c¢/0 13 Verticals, LLC
40 Burton Hills Boulevard
Suite No. 415
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Nashville, Tennessee 37215
Attention: General Counsel

with copies to: Frost Brown Todd LLC
150 Third Avenue South
Suite No. 1900
Nashville, Tennessee 37201
Attention: Howard W. Herndon
Courtney Rogers Perrin
Nathan Harris
Email: HHerndon@FBTlaw.com
CRogersPerrin@FBTlaw.com
NHarris@FBTlaw.com
Representative or,
prior to Closing,
any Company Group
Member: 3S Advisors, LLC
1954 Epping Road
Gates Mills, Ohio 44040
Attention: Paul Cascio
PHcascio@?3sadvisors.com

with copies to: Bass Berry Sims PLC
150 Third Avenue South
Suite No. 2800
Nashville, Tennessee 37201
Attention: Kevin Douglas

John Fuller
Taylor Wirth
Email: KDouglas@bassberry.com
JFuller@bassberry.com
TWirth@bassberry.com

Each such notice and other communication shall be deemed, for all purposes of this Agreement, to have been given and
received (a) if given by email, when the email is transmitted to the Party’s email address specified above and confirmation of
complete receipt is received by the transmitting Party during normal business hours on any Business Day or on the next Business
Day if not confirmed during normal business hours; (b) if by hand, when delivered; or (c) if given by nationally recognized and
reputable overnight delivery service, the Business Day on which the records of such delivery service show that such notice was
delivered to the Party. Any Party from time to time may change its address for the purpose of receipt of notices to that Party by
giving a similar notice specifying a new address or facsimile number to the other notice Parties listed above in accordance with the
provisions of this Article X.
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ARTICLE XI — PROVISIONS CONCERNING REPRESENTATIVE

11.1 By approving this Agreement and the Contemplated Transactions or by executing and delivering a Letter of
Transmittal, each Securityholder shall have irrevocably authorized and appointed Representative as such Person’s representative
and attorney-in-fact to act on behalf of such Person with respect to this Agreement and the Transaction Documents (including the
Escrow Agreement) and to take any and all actions and make any decisions required or permitted to be taken by Representative
pursuant to this Agreement or any other Transaction Documents, including the exercise of the power to:

(a) give and receive notices and communications;

(b) authorize delivery to Buyer of cash from the Purchase Price Adjustment Escrow Fund (or, if necessary, the
Indemnification Escrow Fund) in satisfaction of any amounts owed to Buyer pursuant to Article III, or from the Indemnification
Escrow Fund in satisfaction of claims for indemnification made by Buyer pursuant to Article IX;

(c) agree to, negotiate, enter into settlements and compromises of, and comply with orders or otherwise handle any
other matters described in Article III or I'V;

(d) agree to, negotiate, enter into settlements and compromises of, and comply with orders of courts with respect to
claims for indemnification made by Buyer pursuant to Article IX;

(e) litigate, arbitrate, resolve, settle or compromise any claim for indemnification pursuant to Article IX;

(f) to make, on behalf of the Securityholders, out of the Representative Expense Fund, any payments required to be
made by the Securityholders or the Indemnifying Holders under this Agreement;

(g) execute and deliver all documents necessary or desirable in relation to the authority of Representative as set forth
in this Agreement (including the Escrow Agreement);

(h) make all elections or decisions contemplated by this Agreement and any Transaction Document (including the
Escrow Agreement);

(i) engage, employ or appoint any agents or representatives (including attorneys, accountants and consultants) to
assist Representative in complying with its duties and obligations; and

(j) take all actions necessary or appropriate in the good faith judgment of Representative for the accomplishment of
the foregoing.

11.2 Buyer shall be entitled to rely conclusively (without further evidence of any kind whatsoever) on any document
executed or purported to be executed on behalf of any Securityholder by Representative, and on any other action taken or purported
to be taken on
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behalf of any Securityholder by Representative, as being fully binding upon such Person. Except as otherwise required by
applicable Law, notices or communications to or from Representative shall constitute notice to or from each of the Securityholders.
Any decision or action by Representative hereunder, including any agreement between Representative and Buyer relating to the
defense, payment or settlement of any claims for indemnification hereunder, shall constitute a decision or action of all
Securityholders and shall be final, binding and conclusive upon each such Person. No Securityholder shall have the right to object
to, dissent from, protest or otherwise contest the same. The provisions of this Section 11.2, including the power of attorney granted
hereby, are independent and severable, are irrevocable and coupled with an interest and shall not be terminated by any act of any
one or Securityholder, or by operation of Law, whether by death or other event.

11.3 Representative shall have the right to resign from its position as representative hereunder at any time; provided that,
prior to such resignation, Representative shall appoint a successor representative under this Agreement who is acceptable to
Stockholders who hold a majority of the outstanding Company Capital Stock prior to the Effective Time, which successor shall
execute and deliver to Buyer an instrument acknowledging and accepting such appointment, whereupon such successor shall
become Representative for all purposes hereunder. In the event that Representative shall fail for any reason to appoint a successor,
or fail to perform its duties at any time, a successor shall be appointed by Stockholders who hold a majority of the outstanding
Company Capital Stock prior to the Effective Time. Any successor appointed in accordance with the preceding sentence shall
execute and deliver to Buyer an instrument acknowledging and accepting such appointment, whereupon such successor shall
become Representative for all purposes under this Agreement.

11.4 Representative will receive $100,000 (the “Representative Fee”) for services as Representative, which will be paid in
full at Closing as a Transaction Expense. At the Closing, Buyer shall cause an amount equal to the sum of (i) $256,616.24 to be
deposited with Representative in a segregated account designated by Representative (the “Representative Expense Fund”) in
accordance with Section 2.9(¢c). In addition to the Representative Fee, the Representative Expense Fund shall be used by
Representative as shall be necessary to pay the expenses incurred by Representative in connection with the performance of its
duties under this Agreement and the Transaction Documents, including, but not limited to, professional fees and expenses of any
attorney, accountant or other advisors retained by Representative and other reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred by
Representative in connection with the performance of Representative’s duties under this Agreement and the Transaction
Documents. After giving effect to all such payments, at such time or times as may be determined by Representative, Representative
shall distribute part or all of the remaining portion of the Representative Expense Fund to the Exchange Agent, for the benefit of
the Securityholders in accordance with the Distribution Schedule.

11.5 Each Indemnifying Holder shall on a several basis (but not joint and several basis) indemnify Representative in
proportion to the Indemnifying Percentage of such Indemnifying Holder in accordance with Section 9.4(d) against any loss,
liability or expense incurred by Representative while acting pursuant to any provision of this Article XI on behalf of the
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Securityholders other than due to Representative’s gross negligence or willful misconduct. In addition, Representative shall have no
liability to any Seller Indemnified Party or any Buyer Indemnified Party for any action taken, decision made or instruction given by
Representative in connection with this Agreement, except in the case of Representative’s gross negligence or willful misconduct.

11.6 The terms of this Article XI shall be binding upon each Securityholder and the executors, heirs, legal representatives
and successor of each Securityholder, and any references in this Agreement to a Securityholder shall mean and include the
successors to the Securityholders’ rights hereunder, whether pursuant to testamentary disposition, the laws of descent and
distribution or otherwise.

ARTICLE XII - MISCELLANEOUS

12.1 Fees and Expenses. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, each Party will pay its own costs and
expenses incurred in connection with the negotiation, preparation and performance of this Agreement and the other Transaction
Documents, including the fees and expenses of its counsel, accountants, brokers and financial advisors whether or not such
transactions are consummated; provided, however, that it is acknowledged and agreed that the fees and expenses associated with
the Representations and Warranties Policy (to the extent such fees and expenses do not exceed $300,000) will be included as
Transaction Expenses, and the remaining fees and expenses of the Representations and Warranties Policy will be borne by Buyer,
(i1) 50% of the expenses associated with the D&O Policy will be borne by Buyer and 50% of the expenses associated with the
D&O Policy will be included as Transaction Expenses, (iii) 50% of the expenses payable to Exchange Agent and Escrow Agent
with respect to the Escrow Agreement and the Exchange Agent Agreement will be borne by Buyer and 50% of such expenses will
be included as Transaction Expenses and (iv) the fees payable to Company’s accountant, LBMC, related to Company financial
statement review to the extent conducted solely in connection with the Contemplated Transactions, will be borne by Buyer.

12.2 Public Announcement. No Party shall, prior to or after the Closing, without the approval of Buyer or Representative, as
applicable, issue any press release or other public announcement concerning this Agreement or the Contemplated Transactions.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, (a) Buyer or its Affiliates may issue a press release or other communication following the Closing
Date to announce the Closing, to provide a summary narrative about Company Group Members and the Business, and (b) nothing
contained herein will limit any disclosures required or necessary to be made in connection with Guarantor’s compliance with any
applicable Law or pursuant to any rules or regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission or any securities exchange of
which the securities of i3V are listed or traded.

12.3 Entire Agreement. This Agreement (together with the Disclosure Schedules and the other Transaction Documents)
contains the entire agreement and understanding of the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior oral
discussions and written agreements with respect thereto (including any term sheet or similar agreement or document relating to the
Contemplated Transactions, including that certain Mutual Confidentiality and Non-Disclosure Agreement, dated as of April 26,
2019, by and between Guarantor and Company
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and that certain Confidential Term Sheet, dated as of May 1, 2019, by and between Company and Guarantor).

12.4 Amendment and Waiver. This Agreement may be modified, supplemented or amended only by a written instrument
duly executed by Buyer and Representative. Any term or condition of this Agreement may be waived at any time by the Party
entitled to the benefit thereof (that is, Buyer or Representative, as applicable). Any such waiver must be in writing and must be duly
executed by such Party (that is, Buyer or Representative, as applicable). All rights and remedies of the Parties to this Agreement are
cumulative and not alternative. Except as otherwise provided herein or in any Transaction Document, no failure or delay by any
Party in exercising any right, power or privilege under this Agreement or the other Transaction Documents will operate as a waiver
of such right, power or privilege, and no single or partial exercise of any such right, power or privilege will preclude any other or
further exercise of such right, power or privilege or the exercise of any other right, power or privilege. A waiver on one occasion
shall not be deemed to be a waiver of the same or any other breach, provision or requirement on any other occasion.

12.5 Counterparts; Electronic Signatures. This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in any number of counterparts,
each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. Signatures on
this Agreement by facsimile or other electronic imaging technology shall be deemed to be original signatures for all purposes.

12.6 Dispute Resolution.

(a) Agreed Process. Except for (i) claims for injunctive or equitable relief or suit to compel specific performance
under this Agreement as described in Section 12.12 (including suits to compel compliance with the dispute resolution process set
forth in this Section 12.6), and (ii) the dispute resolution processes set forth in Sections 2.14, 3.4, 4.3 and 7.1(b), as applicable, any
dispute arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or its validity shall be finally resolved and settled by arbitration in
accordance with this Section 12.6. With respect to any reference to a “party” or “parties” under this Section 12.6, such references
shall refer to Buyer, on the one hand, and Representative, on behalf of the Securityholders, on the other hand, as applicable. For
purposes of clarity, any disputes between the parties under Article IX (Indemnification) shall be referred to arbitration as described
in this Section 12.6.

(b) Arbitration. Any arbitration to be conducted hereunder shall be brought and conducted in Nashville, Tennessee
and shall be governed by the Laws described in Section 12.7.

(¢) Rules Governing the Conduct of the Arbitration.

(1) Governing Rules. Any dispute that is referred to arbitration under this Section 12.6 shall be finally
resolved by binding arbitration administered by the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”) under its Commercial Arbitration
Rules.
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(ii) Arbitration Panel. The arbitration shall be presided over by a panel of three (3) arbitrators.

(iii) Arbitrator Selection Procedure. Within twenty (20) days after the claimant party provides the respondent
party with the first notice of a demand for arbitration (the “Demand Notice™), each of Representative and Buyer shall select one (1)
impartial person to serve as an arbitrator. The two (2) arbitrators so appointed shall then select the presiding arbitrator within fifteen
(15) days after completion of the appointment of the party selections. If the two arbitrators are unable to agree on the presiding
arbitrator within such fifteen (15) day period, the AAA shall select the presiding arbitrator. The presiding arbitrator shall have at
least fifteen (15) years of commercial litigation and dispute resolution experience either as an attorney, arbitrator, or judge.

(iv) Pre-hearing_Information Exchange. Consistent with the expedited nature of arbitration, pre-hearing
document exchange shall be limited to the reasonable production of relevant non-privileged documents explicitly referred to by a
party for the purpose of supporting relevant facts presented in its case, carried out expeditiously. The parties shall be required to
produce, if requested by another party, up to seven (7) witnesses designated by the requesting party for depositions in locations
convenient for the witnesses.

(v) Rulings. The arbitrators shall issue a reasoned opinion in making any interim or final arbitration award.
Except as may be required by law, neither a party nor an arbitrator may disclose the existence, content, or results of any arbitration
hereunder without the prior written consent of both parties.

(d) Deadlines for Resolving Disputes in Arbitration. Regardless of the amount in controversy, all disputes submitted
to arbitration shall be finally decided within nine (9) months following the Demand Notice, unless such time limit is extended by
the arbitrators.

(e) Binding_Arbitration. Any arbitration award shall bind the parties, and judgment on the final award may be
entered in any court described in Section 12.8. The decision of the arbitrators shall be carried out voluntarily and without delay.

(f) Costs and Fees. Each Party shall bear its own costs and expenses and an equal share of the arbitrators’ and
administrative fees of arbitration.

12.7 Governing_Law;_Construction. This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted, construed and enforced in
accordance with the Laws of the State of Delaware applicable to a contract executed and performed in such state, excluding any
conflicts of law, rule or principle that would refer the governance, interpretation, construction or enforcement of this Agreement to
the Laws of another jurisdiction, and such application of Delaware law shall not be vitiated by any allegations of fraud. In as much
as this Agreement is the result of negotiations between sophisticated parties of equal bargaining power represented by counsel, the
Parties agree that no provisions of this Agreement or any related document shall be construed for or against or interpreted to the
advantage or disadvantage of any Party hereto by any court or other Governmental Authority by reason of any Party’s having or
being deemed to have structured or
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drafted such provision, each Party having participated equally in the structuring and drafting hereof.

12.8 Venue; Waiver of Jury Trial. Subject to Section 12.6, and only for purposes of entering a final arbitration award in
accordance with Section 12.6(e), pursuing claims for injunctive or equitable relief or suit to compel specific performance under this
Agreement as described in Section 12.12 (including suits to compel compliance with the dispute resolution process set forth in
Section 12.6), each Party hereto (a) agrees that any claim, Action by such Party seeking any relief whatsoever arising out of, or in
connection with, this Agreement or the Contemplated Transactions shall be brought only in any State or Federal courts located in
Davidson County, Tennessee, and not in any other State or Federal court in the United States of America or any court in any other
country; (b) agrees to submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of such courts for purposes of all legal Actions arising out of, or in
connection with, this Agreement or the Contemplated Transactions; (¢) waives and agrees not to assert any objection that it may
now or hereafter have to the laying of the venue of any such Action brought in such a court or any claim that any such Action
brought in such a court has been brought in an inconvenient forum; and (d) agrees that a final judgment in any such Action shall be
conclusive and may be enforced in other jurisdictions by suit on the judgment or in any other manner provided by applicable Law.
EACH OF THE PARTIES IRREVOCABLY AND UNCONDITIONALLY WAIVES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED
BY APPLICABLE LAW, ANY AND ALL RIGHTS TO TRIAL BY JURY, FROM WHATEVER SOURCE ARISING, IN
CONNECTION WITH ANY LITIGATION OR PROCEEDING ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT
OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY.

12.9 Binding Effect; No Assignment; No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of the Parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns, including successors by merger or otherwise. Neither
this Agreement nor any right hereunder or part hereof may be assigned by any Party hereto without the prior written consent of the
other Parties, except that, upon prior written notice to Representative, Buyer may assign this agreement and its rights hereunder to
an Affiliate of Buyer or (subject to Article IV, to a person or entity that acquires or otherwise succeeds to the Business (whether by
sale of assets, equity, merger, or other business combination transaction)); provided, further, that any such assignment or delegation
will not relieve the assigning party from any of its obligations hereunder. The terms and provisions of this Agreement are intended
solely for the benefit of Securityholders, Company Group Members, Buyer, Merger Sub, Guarantor and their respective successors
or permitted assigns, and it is not the intention of the Parties to confer third-party beneficiary rights upon any other Person, except
that (a) the provisions of Section 7.5, shall inure to the benefit of, and be enforceable by, the D&O Indemnified Persons, and (b) the
provisions of Section 12.15 shall inure to the benefit of, and be enforceable by, the Non-Parties (as defined below).

12.10 Severability;_Invalid Provisions. It is the intention of the Parties that the provisions of this Agreement shall be
enforced to the fullest extent permissible under the Laws and public policies of each state and jurisdiction in which such
enforcement is sought, and that
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the unenforceability (or the modification to conform with such Laws or public policies) of any provision hereof shall not render
unenforceable or impair the remainder of this Agreement. Accordingly, if any provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal,
invalid or unenforceable under any present or future Law, (a) such provisions will be fully severable; (b) this Agreement will be
construed and enforced as if such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision had never comprised a part hereof; (c) the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and effect and will not be affected by the illegal, invalid or unenforceable
provision or by its severance herefrom; and (d) in lieu of such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision, there will be added
automatically as a part of this Agreement a legal, valid and enforceable provision as similar in terms and effect to such illegal,
invalid or unenforceable provision as may be possible as may be mutually agreed to by Buyer and Representative (or, in the
alternative, should any provision contained in this Agreement be reformed or rewritten by any Governmental Authority, such
provision as so reformed shall be fully binding on the Parties as if originally a part hereof).

12.11 Interpretation. In this Agreement, unless the context otherwise requires:

(a) subject to the provisions of Section 12.9, references to any Party to this Agreement shall include references to its
respective successors and permitted assigns;

(b) the terms “hereof,” “herein,” “hereby,” and derivative or similar words will refer to this entire Agreement;

(c) the gender of all words herein shall include the masculine, feminine and neuter, and the case of all words herein
shall include the singular and plural;

(d) references to any document (including this Agreement) are references to that document as amended,
consolidated, supplemented, novated or replaced by the Parties from time to time;

(e) the descriptive headings and numbers of the Articles, Sections and subsections of this Agreement are inserted for
convenience only and do not constitute a part of this Agreement;

(f) the word “including” shall mean “including, without limitation”;

(g) all schedules and exhibits referred to in or attached to this Agreement are integral parts of this Agreement as if
fully set forth herein, and any item or matter required to be disclosed in a particular section of the Disclosure Schedules shall be
deemed to have been disclosed in another section of the Disclosure Schedules to the extent the applicability of such disclosure to
such other section of the Disclosure Schedules is reasonably apparent on the face of such disclosure;

(h) any fact or item disclosed in the Disclosure Schedules shall not, by reason of such inclusion, be deemed to be an
admission that such fact or item is material or that such fact or item actually constitutes noncompliance with, or a violation of, any
Law, License or Contract; and
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(i) any document or item will be deemed “delivered”, “provided” or “made available” within the meaning of this
Agreement if such document or item (i) is included in the Data Room or (ii) has been actually delivered (including electronically)
or provided to Buyer or any of Buyer’s Representatives.

12.12 Specific Performance; Injunctive Relief. Each Party shall have the right, in addition to any other rights and remedies
existing in its favor, to enforce its rights and the obligations of the other Parties pursuant to this Agreement and the Transaction
Documents not only by an Action or Actions for Damages, but also by an Action or actions for specific performance, injunctive
relief and/or other equitable relief, without posting any bond or other undertaking. The Parties acknowledge and agree that any
breach or threatened breach of any post-Closing covenant by any Party will likely result in some irreparable injury.

12.13 Collateral Security. Buyer may, without the written consent of the other Parties, upon prior written notice to
Representative, assign its rights under this Agreement and the other Transaction Documents for collateral security purposes to any
lender providing financing to Buyer or any of their Affiliates and any such lender may exercise all of the rights and remedies of
Buyer hereunder and thereunder in accordance with the terms set forth herein and therein.

12.14 Transaction Communications. Buyer, for itself and its Affiliates (including, after the Closing, Surviving Corporation),
hereby irrevocably and unconditionally acknowledges and agrees that, with respect to all pre-Closing communications between or
among the Company Group Members, their respective officers and employees, the Securityholders and/or counsel to the Company
Group Members and/or any Securityholders, that relate in any manner to this Agreement or the Contemplated Transactions (the
“Transaction Communications”), the expectation of confidence belongs to Representative and will not pass to or be claimed by
Buyer or the Surviving Corporation. Neither Buyer nor any of its Affiliates (including, after the Closing, Surviving Corporation)
nor any person purporting to act on behalf of or through Buyer or any of its Affiliates, shall seek to obtain the same by any process
on the grounds that the privilege attaching to such communications belongs to Buyer or the Company Group Members.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that a dispute arises between Buyer or the Surviving Corporation and a third party
(other than any Party to this Agreement or any Securityholder or Affiliate of any of the foregoing), Buyer and the Surviving
Corporation may (unless otherwise determined by Representative) assert the attorney-client privilege to prevent disclosure of any
such Transaction Communications to such third party; provided, however, that no Person may waive such privilege without the
prior written consent of Representative.

12.15 Non-Recourse. This Agreement may only be enforced against, and any claim, action, suit or other legal Action based
upon, arising out of, or related to this Agreement, or the negotiation, execution or performance of this Agreement, may only be
brought against the Persons that are expressly named as parties hereto or who have agreed to be bound by any provisions of this
Agreement, such as through a separate support agreement, letter of transmittal or similar document, and then only with respect to
the specific obligations set forth herein or therein with respect to such party. Except to the extent a named or joining party to this
Agreement as described in the first sentence of this Section 12.15, no past, present or future
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director, officer, employee, incorporator, manager, member, partner, sharcholder, Affiliate, agent, attorney or other Representative
of any party hereto or of any Affiliate of any party hereto, or any of their successors or permitted assigns (such Persons, the “Non-
Parties™), shall have any liability for any obligations or liabilities of any party hereto under this Agreement or for any claim based
on, in respect of or by reason of this Agreement.

[Signature Pages Follow.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement and Plan of Merger to be executed as of the date first
above written.

BUYER:
i3-SDCR, INC.
By: /s/ Rick Stanford

Name: Rick Stanford
Title: President

MERGER SUB:
i3 MERGER SUB, INC.

By: /s/ Rick Stanford
Name: Rick Stanford
Title: President
GUARANTOR:

i3 VERTICALS, LLC

By: /s/ Rick Stanford
Name: Rick Stanford
Title: President

COMPANY:
PACE PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC.
By: /s/ Paul J Christians

Name: Paul J Christians
Title: CEO

REPRESENTATIVE:
3S ADVISORS, LLC
By: /s/ Paul Cascio

Name: Paul H Cascio
Title: Managing Member

Signature Page to Agreement and Plan of Merger



SCHEDULE 1
DEFINITIONS

As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth in this Schedule 1 unless the context
clearly otherwise requires.

“AAA” has the meaning set forth in Section 12.6(c)(1).

“Action” means any claim, action, cause of action, demand, lawsuit, arbitration, audit, proceeding, litigation, subpoena or
investigation of any nature, civil, criminal, administrative, regulatory or otherwise, whether at law or in equity.

“Adjustment Calculation” means an amount, which may be positive or negative, equal to the aggregate positive or negative
differences between (a) the Net Working Capital Calculation compared to the Estimated Net Working Capital; (b) the Closing
Indebtedness compared to Estimated Indebtedness; (c) the Closing Transaction Expenses compared to the Estimated Transaction
Expenses and (d) the Closing Cash compared to the Estimated Closing Cash. For purposes of clarity, (i) an excess of a positive Net
Working Capital Calculation over the Estimated Net Working Capital would generate a positive adjustment; (ii) an excess of the
Closing Indebtedness over the Estimated Indebtedness would generate a negative adjustment; (iii) an excess of the Closing
Transaction Expenses over the Estimated Transaction Expenses would generate a negative adjustment and (iv) an excess of the
Closing Cash over the Estimated Closing Cash would generate a positive adjustment.

“Adjustment Calculation Disputed Items” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.4.

“Affiliate” means, with respect to any Person, any other Person that directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by or is
under common control with such Person, including (a) in the case of any Person who is an individual, his or her current spouse and
children (both lineal and adopted), (b) in the case of any trust, each Person that, directly or indirectly, owns or controls, whether
beneficially, or as a trustee, guardian or other fiduciary, such trust and each Person that controls, is controlled by or is under
common control with such Person, and (c) in the case of an entity, (i) the power to vote a majority of the voting power necessary to
elect a majority of the board of managers or directors of such Person or (ii) the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to
direct or cause the direction of the management or policies of a Person, by Contract or otherwise.

“Affiliated Person” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.19.

“Aggregate Escrow Amount” means, collectively, the Indemnification Escrow Amount, the Chargeback Escrow Amount,
the Purchase Price Adjustment Escrow Amount, and the Employee Payments Escrow Amount.

“Agreement” has the meaning set forth in the Preamble.
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“Applicable Accounting_Practices and Procedures” means GAAP (in effect as of the date hereof), and to the extent
consistent with GAAP (in effect as of the date hereof), the accounting methods, policies, practices and procedures, including
classification and estimation methodology, used by Company in the preparation of the Audited Financial Statements.

“Article V Representations™ has the meaning set forth in Section 6.9.

“Assignment Agreements” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.11(b)(3).

“Audited Financial Statements” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.6(a)(i).

“Benefit Plans” means “employee benefit plans,” as defined in Section 3(3) of ERISA, all benefit plans as defined in
Section 6039D of the Code and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, and all other stock purchase, stock option,
equity-based, retention bonus, bonus, incentive compensation, deferred compensation, profit sharing, severance, change in control,
supplemental unemployment, layoff, salary continuation, retirement, pension, health, life insurance, disability, group insurance,
vacation, holiday, sick leave, fringe benefit, welfare and other employee benefit plans or employment (including severance and
change in control) agreement, program, policy or other arrangement (whether formal or informal, oral or written, qualified or non-
qualified, and whether or not subject to ERISA), under which any employee or former employee of any Company Group Member
or any ERISA Affiliate has any present or future right to benefits or under which any Company Group Member or any ERISA
Affiliate has any present or future Liability.

“Books and Records” means any Company Group Member’s existing accounting, business, marketing, personnel, and other
files, documents, instruments, papers, books and records, including, financial statements, budgets, ledgers, journals, deeds, titles,
policies, manuals, minute books, Contracts, franchises, permits, supplier lists, reports, computer files and data, retrieval programs
and operating data or plans; excluding however, minute books, stock certificates and books and stock transfer ledgers.

“Business” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

“Business Day” means a day other than Saturday, Sunday, or any day on which commercial banks located in the State of
New York are authorized or obligated to close under the Laws of such state or the United States.

“Buyer” has the meaning set forth in the Preamble.

“Buyer Indemnified Parties” means i3V, Guarantor and any of their respective Affiliates (including, with respect to any
post-Closing period, any Company Group Member), and the directors, managers, officers, successors and assigns of any of the
foregoing.

“Cash and Cash Equivalents” means, with respect to the Company Group Members, all cash and cash equivalents,
repayable on demand and freely remittable, held by the Company
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Group Members. For avoidance of doubt, Cash and Cash Equivalents: (a) shall be increased by all checks and drafts deposited for
the account of the Company Group Members to the extent such checks and/or drafts have not been credited by the Company Group
Members’ bank, and (b) shall be decreased by all checks and drafts issued by the Company Group Members to the extent such
checks and drafts have not cleared.

“Certificate” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.9(d).

“Certificate of Merger” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.2.

“Chargeback Escrow Amount” means $300,000.

“Chargeback Escrow Fund” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.12(c).

“Chargeback Statement” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.14(a).

“Chargebacks” means all losses from chargebacks, ACH rejects, and all associated fines and fees as a result of card
transactions ACH rejects.

“Closing” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.2.

“Closing Cash” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2.

“Closing Cash Purchase Price” means Fifty Two Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($52,500,000).
“Closing Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.2.
“Closing Indebtedness” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2.

“Closing_Merger Consideration” means (a) the Closing Cash Purchase Price as adjusted upward or downward by the
Estimated Closing Adjustment, p/us (b) the Estimated Closing Cash, minus (w) the Aggregate Escrow Amount, (x) the Estimated
Indebtedness, (y) the Estimated Transaction Expenses, and (z) the Representative Expense Fund.

“Closing Transaction Expenses” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2.

“Closing Statement” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2.

“COBRA” means the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985, as amended, Section 4980B of the Code,
Title I, Part 6 of ERISA and the Public Health Service Act, together with all regulations promulgated thereunder.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

“Company” has the meaning set forth in the Preamble.
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“Company Capital Stock” means, collectively, Company Common Stock, Company Series A Preferred Stock and Company
Series B Preferred Stock.

“Company_ Common Stock” means the common stock, par value $0.001 per share, of Company.

“Company EIP” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.7(b).
“Company Group Member” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

“Company_Intellectual Property” means all Intellectual Property that is used, or is held for use by any Company Group
Member and material to the operation of the Business as presently conducted.

“Company_Intellectual Property Registrations” means all of the registrations for Intellectual Property that are the subject of
an application, filing, or registration issued or recorded by any Governmental Authority filed in the name of any Company Group
Member.

“Company Option” means an unexpired option to purchase shares of Company Common Stock, whether vested or not.

“Company_Product” means any software, application or product that any Company Group Member distributes, sells, or
provides access to, including to a Customer.

“Company Series A Preferred Stock™ means the Series A Preferred Stock of Company.

“Company Series B Preferred Stock™” means the Series B Preferred Stock of Company.

“Company_Software” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.11(c).

“Constituent Stockholder Documents” means, collectively, (i) the Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, as amended
and restated as of the date hereof, filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware, (ii) the Stockholders Agreement, dated
as of October 27, 2009, as amended, by and among the Company and certain Stockholders named therein or otherwise a party
thereto, and (iii) the Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of October 27, 2009, by and among the Company and certain
Stockholders named therein or otherwise a party thereto.

“Contemplated Transactions” means the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the other Transaction
Documents.

“Contingent Consideration” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.1(a).

“Contingent Consideration Dispute Notice” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.2.
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“Contracts” means all commitments, contracts, leases, subleases, licenses, sublicenses, subscriptions, agreements for rebates
(whether or not free-standing or part of any of the foregoing) and other agreements of any kind to which any Company Group
Member is a party or by which any Company Group Member is legally bound, in each case regardless of whether or not a written
document is in force with respect thereto.

“Copyleft License” means any license that requires, as a condition of use, modification or distribution of software or other
Intellectual Property subject to such license, that such software or other Intellectual Property subject to such license, or other
software or other Intellectual Property incorporated into, derived from, used or distributed with such software or other Intellectual
Property subject to such license (a) in the case of software, be made available or distributed in a form other than binary (e.g., source
code form); (b) be licensed for the purpose of preparing derivative works; (c) be licensed under terms that allow Company Products
or portions thereof or interfaces therefor to be reverse engineered, reverse assembled or disassembled (other than by operation of
Law); or (d) be redistributable at no license fee. Copyleft Licenses include the GNU General Public License, the GNU Lesser
General Public License, the Mozilla Public License, the Common Development and Distribution License, the Eclipse Public
License and all Creative Commons “sharealike” licenses.

“Copyleft Materials” means any software or other Intellectual Property subject to a Copyleft License.
“Cryptocurrencies” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.25.

“Current Assets” means the sum of the following assets of the Company Group Members: (i) accounts receivable, (ii)
inventory (including inventory designated in Company Group Members’ internal accounting systems as “warehouse” and
“loaner/rental equipment”) and (iii) prepaid expenses (including prepaid insurance but specifically excluding any expense related to
the D&O Insurance), but excluding (a) Cash and Cash Equivalents and (b) all other current assets, in each case determined in
accordance with the Applicable Accounting Practices and Procedures.

“Current Liabilities” means the sum of the following liabilities of the Company Group Members: (i) accounts payable, (ii)
deferred revenue and (iii) other accrued expenses and liabilities, but excluding (a) Transaction Expenses, (b) Indebtedness, (c) all
amounts paid or payable under the Transaction Bonus Plan, and (d) all other current liabilities, in each case determined in
accordance with the Applicable Accounting Practices and Procedures.

“Customer” means collectively, Merchant Customers and ISV Customers.

“Customer Agreement” means, for any Customer, any agreement (i) between such Customer on the one hand and a
Company Group Member or (ii) any Customer on the one hand and a Processor and/or sponsor bank on the other hand, in either
case with respect to which any Company Group Member directly derives revenue.

“D&O Indemnified Persons” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.5(a).
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“D&O Insurance” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.5(b).
“D&O Policies” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.5(b).

“Damages” means losses, liabilities, damages, costs, and expenses (including reasonable attorney’s fees); provided,
however, that, except to the extent paid to a third party pursuant to a third-party claim, Damages shall not include any punitive, or
exemplary damages, and, in the case of any Direct Indemnification Matters, any special damages, damages related to diminution in
value or damages of a type that would not be reasonably foreseeable by the Parties as of the date of this Agreement.

“Data Breach” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.24(a).

“Data Room” means the electronic collection of documentation through the Dropbox data site with respect to the Company
Group Members.

“DGCL” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

“Direct Indemnification Matters” means (i) any breaches of any Fundamental Representation or Special Representation, (ii)
any breaches of any Excluded Representations, (iii) the indemnifiable matter referenced in Section 9.2(b), and (iv) the

“Disclosure Schedules” means the disclosure schedules of Company Group Members delivered by Company to Buyer
concurrently with the execution of this Agreement.

“Dissenting Shares” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.8(a).

“Distribution Schedule” means a schedule setting forth Company’s calculation of the allocation of Merger Consideration
among the Securityholders and payments under the Transaction Bonus Plan to the Transaction Bonus Plan Participants, such
schedule which shall include a mechanic for distribution of any Contingent Consideration, positive amount of Final Adjustment
Calculation, Purchase Price Adjustment Escrow Fund or the Indemnification Escrow Fund.

“Domain Names” means internet domain names and numbers.
“Effective Time” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.2.
“Employee Payments” means, collectively, the Stay Bonus and Severance Payments.

“Employee Payments Escrow Amount” means Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250,000).

“Employee Payments Escrow Fund” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.12(d).
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“Enforceability Limitations” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.1(a).

“Environmental Claim” means any investigation or written claim, Action, cause of Action, or notice by any person alleging
potential Liability (including potential Liability for investigatory costs, cleanup costs, governmental response costs, natural
resources damages, property damages, personal injuries, or penalties) arising out of, based on or resulting from: (a) the presence, or
release or threat of release into the environment, of any Materials of Environmental Concern at any location owned or operated by
any Company Group Member; or (b) circumstances forming the basis of any violation or alleged violation of any Environmental
Law applicable to any Company Group Member or the Business.

“Environmental Laws” means as of the Closing Date, all applicable Laws relating to pollution or protection of human health
(as relating to the environment or the workplace) and the environment (including ambient air, surface water, ground water, land
surface or sub-surface strata), including Laws relating to emissions, discharges, releases or threatened releases of Materials of
Environmental Concern, or otherwise relating to the use, treatment, storage, disposal, transport or handling of Materials of
Environmental Concern, including, but not limited to Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act,
42 U.S.C. § 9601 et seq., Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. § 6901 et seq., Toxic Substances Control Act,
15 U.S.C. § 2601 et seq., Occupational Safety and Health Act, 29 U.S.C. § 651 et seq., the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq.,
the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1251 et seq., each as may have been amended or supplemented, and any applicable environmental
transfer statutes or Laws.

“ERISA” means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended.

“ERISA Affiliate” means any entity that is considered a single employer with any Company Group Member under Section
414 of the Code.

“Escrow Agent” means U.S. Bank National Association.

“Escrow Agreement” means that certain escrow agreement in the form attached hereto as Exhibit E herewith by and among
Escrow Agent, Representative, and Buyer.

“Escrow Claim” has the meaning set forth in Section 9.7.

“Escrow Claim Notice” has the meaning set forth in Section 9.7.
“Escrow Release Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 9.7.
“Estimated Closing Adjustment” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.1.
“Estimated Closing Cash” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.1.

“Estimated Closing Statement” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.1.

“Estimated Indebtedness™ has the meaning set forth in Section 3.1.
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“Estimated Net Working Capital” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.1.

“Estimated Transaction Expenses” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.1.

“Exchange Agent” means U.S. Bank National Association.

“Excluded Representations” means the representations or warranties of the Company set forth in (A) Section 5.22 (Privacy)
and Section 5.24 (Data Security), but only to the extent (i) related to data security, data privacy/protection, including cyber
breaches, and (ii) that any such representations and warranties are otherwise excluded pursuant to clause (g) of Section 4 of the
Representations and Warranties Policy and (B) Section 5.6 (Financial Statements), but only to the extent associated with matters
arising out of or resulting from related party debt of any Company Group Member.

“Excluded Representation Cap” means $5,250,000; provided that the Excluded Representation Cap shall be increased by an
amount equal to ten percent (10%) of the amount of any Contingent Consideration actually paid pursuant to Article IV, subject to
Section 9.8.

“Final Adjustment Calculation” means an amount equal to the Adjustment Calculation as finally determined in accordance
with Article IIT hereof.

“Final Closing Cash” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.4.

“Final Indebtedness™ has the meaning set forth in Section 3.4.

“Final Net Working Capital Calculation” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.4.

“Final Transaction Expenses” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.4.

“Financial Statements” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.6(a).

“Fraud” means any intentional fraud with respect to the representations and warranties contained in Article V and Article
VI, as applicable.

“Fundamental Representations” means those representations and warranties set forth in Sections 5.1 (Authorization), 5.2
(Status), 5.3 (Capitalization), 5.8 (Brokers and Finders), 6.1 (Status), 6.2 (Authorization), and 6.6 (Brokers and Finders).

“Funds Flow Statement” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.10(n).
“GAAP” means United States generally accepted accounting principles in effect from time to time.

“Governmental Authority” means the government of the United States and any government of a state or other political
subdivision thereof, any entity exercising executive, legislative, judicial, regulatory or administrative functions of or pertaining to
government, including any government authority, agency, department, board, commission, court or

Schedule A-8



instrumentality of the United States (including receivers or other agents appointed by any of the foregoing), any state of the United
States or any political subdivision thereof, any tribunal or arbitrator(s) of competent jurisdiction and any self-regulatory
organization, or any similar authorities of a foreign jurisdiction.

“Guarantor” has the meaning set forth in the Preamble.
“Guaranty” has the meaning set forth in Section 9.12.
“i3V” means i3 Verticals, Inc., a Delaware corporation.

“i3V_Options” means options to purchase shares of Class A common stock, $0.0001 par value per share, of i3V, issued
pursuant to, and subject in all cases to, the i3V 2018 Equity Incentive Plan, as may be amended from time to time.

“i3V Restricted Stock” means a number of restricted shares of Class A Common Stock in i3V that equals Two Hundred
Twenty Five Thousand Dollars ($225,000) in value (rounded to the nearest whole share), such value-per-share calculated at the
closing price of i3V’s Class A Common Stock on the Nasdaq exchange on the Closing Date, to be granted under the 2018 Equity
Incentive Plan of i3V which will vest 50% on the first anniversary of the Closing Date and 50% on the second anniversary of the
Closing Date (with no service-based or other conditions to vesting).

“Inbound Intellectual Property Contracts” means any Contract pursuant to which a Company Group Member receives a
license to use the Intellectual Property of a third party.

“Indebtedness” means, with respect to any Person (a) all obligations for borrowed money, which obligations shall include
the principal, accreted value, accrued and unpaid interest, unpaid fees or expenses and other monetary obligations or other interest-
bearing indebtedness, whether current or funded, secured or unsecured; (b) all obligations evidenced by a note, bond or debenture;
(c) all obligations in respect of bankers’ acceptances, letters of credit or similar credit transactions; (d) breakage or similar costs for
interest rate hedges or early termination of any of the obligations of a type reflected above; and (e) all obligations of a type referred
to above which are directly or indirectly guaranteed by any of Company Group Members.

“Indemnification Escrow Amount” means $200,000.
“Indemnification Escrow Fund” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.12(a).
“Indemnified Party” has the meaning set forth in Section 9.5(a).

“Indemnified Taxes” means, without duplication and except to the extent treated as a liability in the calculation of Net
Working Capital, any of the following Taxes (in each case, whether imposed, assessed, due or otherwise payable directly, as a
successor or transferee, jointly and/or severally, pursuant to a contract or other agreement entered into (or assumed) by any of
Company Group Members on or prior to the Closing Date, or for any other reason and whether disputed or not): (a) any Tax in
respect of Company Group Members for any Pre-Closing Tax
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Period or portion of a Straddle Period ending on or before the Closing Date to the extent not included in the Net Working Capital
Calculation; (b) any Tax that any Company Group Member is liable for (including under Section 1.1502-6 of the Treasury
Regulations or any similar provision of state, local, or foreign applicable Laws) as a result of being a member of (or leaving) an
affiliated group on or before the Closing Date or any similar provisions of federal, state or local law imposing successor liability for
Taxes; (c) any and all taxes of any person imposed on a Company Group Member arising under the principles of transferee or
successor liability or by contract, relating to an event or transaction occurring before the Closing Date, (d) any payments to which
Buyer is entitled under Section 7.1; and (¢) Company Group Members’ share of any payroll Taxes arising from the payment of the
Transaction Bonus Plan Closing Amount, any Transaction Bonuses, and, solely to the extent such amount is not reimbursed from
the Employee Payments Escrow Fund, any Employee Payments.

“Indemnifying Holders” means the Sponsor Securityholders, Representative and the Transaction Bonus Plan Participants.

“Indemnifying Percentage” means the pro rata percentage of the Indemnifying Holders in indemnification obligations as
reflected on Annex A in accordance with the terms hereof.

“Indemnifying Party” has the meaning set forth in Section 9.5(a).

“Independent Accountant” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.4.

“Intellectual Property” means all intellectual property and other similar proprietary rights in any jurisdiction worldwide to
the extent protectable under applicable Law, whether owned or held for use under license, whether registered or unregistered,
including such rights in and to: (i) Trademarks; (ii) inventions, invention disclosures, discoveries and improvements, whether or not
patentable; (iii) issued patents and pending patent applications, and any and all divisions, continuations, continuations in part,
reissues, continuing patent applications, reexaminations, and extensions thereof, any counterparts claiming priority therefrom,
utility models, patents of importation/confirmation, certificates of invention, certificates of registration and like rights; (iv) works of
authorship, copyrights and all other copyrightable works; (v) technology, computer programs, computer software, including source
and object code, application programming, firmware, user interfaces, manuals, models, firmware, algorithms and implementations
thereof, development tools, flow charts, programmers’ annotations and notes, and other work product used to design, plan,
organize, maintain, support or develop any of the foregoing, irrespective of the media on which it is recorded, and other software
related specifications, materials and documentation; (vi) databases, data and data collections; (vii) Domain Names and uniform
resource locators; (viii) Trade Secrets, other proprietary information, know-how, methodologies, processes, technical data,
techniques, methods, compositions, ideas, procedures, concepts and tools (whether or not patentable or reduced to practice),
formulas, business and technical information, know-how, non-public information, and confidential information and rights to limit
the use or disclosure thereof by any Person; (ix) product designs, reference designs, specifications and documentation and (x) moral
rights. With respect to each of the foregoing,
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“Intellectual Property” includes all: (a) claims, causes of Action and defenses relating to the enforcement of any of the foregoing,
including for past infringement, (b) the goodwill associated with any of the foregoing; and (c) all tangible documentation relating to
any of the foregoing including registrations of, applications for the registration of, and renewals and extensions of any of the
foregoing with or by any Governmental Authority.

“Intellectual Property Contracts” means the Outbound Intellectual Property Contracts and the Inbound Intellectual Property
Contracts.

“ISO” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.14(d).

“ISV_Customer” means any independent software vendor from which any Company Group Member directly receives
compensation as a result of such Company Group Member selling, reselling or licensing any Company Products.

“Knowledge” means, with respect to Company, the actual knowledge after reasonable inquiry of Paul Christians, Scott
Scherr, Alysha Marx and Brian Kesser; provided, that, it is understood and agreed that the individuals listed above shall have no
personal liability in any manner whatsoever hereunder or otherwise related to the transactions contemplated hereby solely by virtue
of being named in this definition.

“Law” means the Rules and any statute, rule, regulation, code, ordinance, resolution, order, writ, injunction, judgment,
decree, ruling, promulgation, policy, treaty, directive, interpretation or guideline adopted or issued by any Governmental Authority
(including Money Laundering Laws).

“Letter of Transmittal” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.9(d).

“Liability” or “Liabilities” means with respect to any Person, any liability or obligation of such Person of any kind,
character or description, whether known or unknown, absolute or contingent, accrued or unaccrued, disputed or undisputed,
liquidated or unliquidated, secured or unsecured, joint or several, due or to become due, vested or unvested, executory, determined,
determinable or otherwise, and whether or not the same is required to be accrued on the financial statements of such Person.

“Licensed Company Intellectual Property” means any Intellectual Property that is used by any Company Group Member
and material to the operation of the Business as currently conducted, which is licensed to any Company Group Member by any
Person.

“Licenses” means all licenses, franchises, accreditations and registrations, permits, approvals and consents (and all
applications therefore) issued by any Governmental Authority or Payment Network in connection with the ownership, operation or
development of any portion of the Business.

“Lien” means any mortgage, pledge, assessment, security interest, lien, adverse claim, levy, charge or other encumbrance of
any kind, or any right of first refusal, conditional sale
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contract, option, title retention contract, or other contract to give or to refrain from giving any of the foregoing.

“Manifest Error” means an error that is plain and undisputable, and that amounts to a complete disregard of the controlling
procedure or the credible evidence in the record.

“Material Adverse Effect” means any event, change, effect or circumstance that has occurred that is reasonably likely to
have a material adverse effect upon the Business, assets, financial condition, or operating results of the Company Group Members,
taken as a whole; provided, however, that for purposes of this Agreement, a Material Adverse Effect shall not include the effect of
(a) changes to the industry or markets in which the Business operates, (b) the announcement or disclosure of the transactions
contemplated herein or the identity of Buyer or its Affiliates, (c) general economic, regulatory or political conditions or changes,
(d) changes in the condition of financial, banking or securities markets (including any disruption thereof and any decline in the
price of any security or any market index), (¢) force majeure events, military action or any act of terrorism, (f) earthquakes, wild
fires, floods, mud slides, tsunamis, storms or other natural disasters or acts of God, (g) any action, or effect of actions taken or not
taken by a Company Group Member either expressly required or contemplated to be taken or not taken, as applicable, by the terms
of this Agreement or with the prior written consent of Buyer, Merger Sub or Guarantor, or (h) changes in Law after the date hereof;
except (other than in the case of clause (b) above), to the extent such effect, development, occurrence, circumstance, state of facts
or change that has a materially disproportionate and adverse impact on any Company Group Member or the Business, taken as a
whole, relative to other participants in the industries in which any Company Group Member conducts its business.

“Material Contracts” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.10(a).

“Material Customer” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.21(¢).

“Material Referral Source” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.23(a).

“Materials of Environmental Concern” means chemicals, pollutants, contaminants, hazardous materials, hazardous
substances and hazardous wastes, medical waste, toxic substances, petroleum and petroleum products and by-products, asbestos-
containing materials, PCBs, and any other chemicals, pollutants, substances or wastes, in each case so defined, identified, or
regulated under any Environmental Law.

“Merchant Customer” means any “merchants” (as such term is generally used in the payment processing industry) for
whom any Company Group Member directly or indirectly provides or enables payment processing services.

“Merger” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

“Merger Consideration” means the Closing Merger Consideration, together with those portions of the Contingent
Consideration (if earned), positive Final Adjustment Calculation (if

Schedule A-12



any), and any releases of the Aggregate Escrow Amount (if any) that the Securityholders become entitled to receive pursuant to the
terms of this Agreement and the Transaction Documents.

“Merger Sub” has the meaning set forth in the Preamble.

“Money Laundering Laws” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.13(d).

“Net Chargeback/Chargeback Recovery Amount” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.14(d).

“Net Closing Merger Consideration” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.9(c).

“Net Insurance Proceeds” has the meaning set forth in Section 9.4(g).

“Net Working Capital” means the difference between (a) Current Assets of Company Group Members as of the close of
business on the Closing Date, and (b) Current Liabilities of Company Group Members as of the close of business on the Closing
Date. In addition, for purposes of clarification, the calculation of Net Working Capital shall (i) exclude the impact of any action
taken by Buyer at or after the Closing Date, and (ii) exclude any purchase accounting adjustments or impacts.

“Net Working Capital Calculation” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2.
“Non-Parties” has the meaning set forth in Section 12.15.

“Notice of Appraisal Rights” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.8(b).
“Objection Notice” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.3.

“Offer Letter” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.10(g).

“Open Source License” means any license meeting the Open Source Definition (as promulgated by the Open Source
Initiative) or the Free Software Definition (as promulgated by the Free Software Foundation), or any substantially similar license,
including any license approved by the Open Source Initiative or any Creative Commons License. For the avoidance of doubt, Open
Source Licenses include Copyleft Licenses.

“Open Source Materials” means any software or other Intellectual Property subject to an Open Source License.

“Optionholder” means a holder of an outstanding and unexercised Company Option immediately prior to the Effective
Time.

“Order” means a judgment, order, writ, injunction, decree, determination, or award of any Governmental Authority.
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“Outbound Intellectual Property Contracts” means any Contract pursuant to which any Company Group Member grants to a
third party a license to use any of the Owned Company Intellectual Property.

“Outside Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.3(b).

“Owned Company Intellectual Property” means any Intellectual Property owned by any Company Group Member and
material to the conduct of the Business as currently conducted and specifically excludes Licensed Company Intellectual Property.

“Parties” has the meaning set forth in the Preamble.

“Payment Network” means Mastercard International Inc., Visa International, Inc., Visa USA, Inc., DFS Services LLC,
American Express Travel Related Services, Inc., any affiliate of any of the foregoing and any other card association, debit card
network or similar entity with whom any Company Group Member has a direct or indirect merchant or sponsorship relationship.

“Period 1 Overage” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.1(a).
“Period 2 Overage” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.1(c).

“Permitted Encumbrances” means (a) any Lien or other matter, encumbrance or defect approved in writing by Buyer,
(b) any statutory Lien for Taxes that are not yet due and payable, and (c) any Liens in favor of vendors, carriers, warchousemen,
repairmen, mechanics, workmen, materialmen, construction or similar liens arising by operation of Law or in the ordinary course of
business for sums not yet due and payable that do not, individually or in the aggregate, materially interfere with or impair the use or
enjoyment of any property or asset of the Company Group Members.

“Person” means any individual, corporation, company, body corporate, association, partnership, firm, joint venture, limited
liability company, trust or governmental agency.

“Personal Information” means information that, alone identifies or in combination with other information to which there is a
reasonable basis to believe the information can be used to identify the individual, and relates to a specific, identifiable individual
person and is regulated by Privacy Laws, including individual names, social security numbers, telephone numbers, home addresses,
driver’s license numbers, cardholder data, email addresses, and internet protocol (IP) addresses.

“Pre-Closing Event Chargebacks™ has the meaning set forth in Section 2.14(d).

“Pre-Closing Tax Period” means any taxable period ending on or before the Closing Date and, for any Straddle Period, the
portion through the end of the Closing Date calculated in accordance with Section 7.1(¢).
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“Privacy Laws” means all applicable United States Laws governing the receipt, collection, use, storage, processing, sharing,
security, disclosure or transfer of Personal Information, including The Children’s Online Privacy Protection Act and the Payment
Card Industry Data Security Standard.

“Processors” means any processors, acquirers or sponsor banks, or originator depository financial institutions utilized by
any Company Group Member or with whom any Company Group Member is otherwise certified to provide payment processing
services associated with the Business, including Global Payments Direct, Inc. and Atlantic-Pacific Processing Systems, NV Corp.

“Purchase Price Adjustment Escrow Amount” means One Hundred Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($125,000.00).

“Purchase Price Adjustment Escrow Fund” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.12(b).
“R&W Carrier” means AlG.
“R&W Limit Amount” has the meaning set forth in the definition of Representations and Warranties Policy.

“R&W Retention Amount” has the meaning set forth in the definition of Representations and Warranties Policy.

“Real Property” means all fee, leasehold and other interests in real property owned or leased by any Company Group
Member, whether directly or indirectly, or otherwise used or held for use in connection with the Business, together with all
buildings, improvements and fixtures and construction in progress located thereupon and all appurtenances, rights of way and air,
mineral or other rights related thereto.

“Real Property Leases” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.9.

“Referral Source” means any Person (a) that markets, refers or resells Company Products or services to any Person
(including Customers) or (b) that is paid a portion of any compensation received in connection with origination of any Customer
Agreement or sale of any Company Products or services.

“Referral Source Agreement” means any agreement between a Referral Source on the one hand and any Company Group
Member on the other.

“Representations and Warranties Policy” means Buyer’s Representations and Warranties Insurance Policy in the form
attached hereto as Exhibit F with Policy Number 24156727 to be issued by the R&W Carrier to Buyer (as may be amended,
modified or supplemented from time to time) pursuant to the binder, dated as of the date hereof, providing for an initial retention
amount of $400,000 subject to reduction as described in such Representations and Warranties Insurance Policy (the “R&W
Retention Amount”), and a limit of liability amount of $10,000,000
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(the “R&W Limit Amount”), which policy will not allow for any right of subrogation against any Securityholder, except to the
extent arising from intentional fraud.

“Representative” has the meaning set forth in the Preamble.

“Representative Expense Fund” has the meaning set forth in Section 11.4.

“Representative Fee” has the meaning set forth in Section 11.4.
“Required Consents” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.4.

“Requisite Company_Vote” means the affirmative vote or consent of Stockholders representing a majority of all classes of
outstanding shares, voting as a single class, and any other votes required under the DGCL and any organizational documents of
Company or agreements among the Stockholders.

“Restrictive Covenant Agreements” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.10(e).

“Restricted Stock Agreement” means that certain agreement, the execution of which is a condition to i3V’s issuance of i3V
Restricted Stock as part of the Purchase Price, which describes two-year vesting (50% vesting on each of the 12-month and 24-
month anniversaries of the Closing Date), and other terms and conditions applicable to such i3V Restricted Stock pursuant to i3V’s
standard form of restricted stock agreement..

“Rules” means the bylaws, regulations and/or requirements that are promulgated by the Payment Networks, Processors,
National Automated Clearing House Association (NACHA), Payment Card Industry security standards council or similar entities
or organizations applicable to the Company Group Members and the Business.

“Section 4.2 Statement” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.2.

“Section 9.2(k) Matter” has the meaning set forth in Section 9.2(k).

“Securityholders” means, collectively, the Stockholders and Warrantholders.

“Seller Indemnified Parties” means Representative, the Securityholders and their respective successors and permitted
assigns.

“Settlement Report™ has the meaning set forth in Section 5.21(e).

“Severance Payments” means the sum of (a) any amount payable as severance to any employee of any Company Group
Member set forth on Annex B whose employment is terminated at Closing or has been terminated prior to Closing and (b) any
payroll Taxes of any Company Group Member related to such amount.

“Special Representations” means those representations and warranties set forth in Section 5.17 (Taxes).

Schedule A-16



“Sponsor Securityholders” means those certain Stockholders designated as Sponsor Securityholders on the Distribution
Schedule.

“Stay Bonuses” means the sum of (a) any amount payable as a stay bonus to the employees of the Company Group
Members set forth on Annex B that were employed as of immediately prior to Closing and (b) any payroll Taxes of any Company
Group Member related to such amount.

“Stockholder Consent” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

“Stockholders” means the holders of Company Capital Stock.

“Stockholders Agreement” means that certain Stockholders Agreement, dated October 27, 2009, by and among Company
and the Stockholders, as amended by that certain Amendment No. 1 to Stockholders Agreement, dated February 24, 2012, and as
further amended by that certain Amendment No. 2 to Stockholders Agreement, dated March 19, 2012.

“Straddle Period” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.1(c).
“Subsidiary” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

“Successor Executive” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.6.

“Survival Period” has the meaning set forth in Section 9.1.
“Surviving Corporation” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1.
“Target Net Working Capital Amount” means $9,646.

“Tax Authority” means any federal, state or local taxing authority.

“Tax Return” means any return, declaration, report, claim for refund, or information return or statement relating to Taxes,
including any Schedule or attachment thereto, and including any amendment thereof.

“Taxes” means: any and all federal, state, local, foreign and other net income, gross income, gross receipts, capital gains,
sales, use, ad valorem, transfer, franchise, profits, license, lease, rent, service, service use, withholding, payroll, employment,
excise, severance, privilege, stamp, occupation, premium, property, windfall profits, alternative minimum, estimated, social
security, workers’ compensation, unemployment compensation or insurance, customs, duties or other taxes, and any similar fees,
assessments or charges in the nature of taxes, together with any interest and any penalties, additions to tax or additional amounts
with respect thereto.

“Third-Party PCI-DSS Component™ has the meaning set forth in Section 5.24(b).

“Trade Secrets” means confidential and proprietary information, whether oral or written, including ideas, designs, concepts,
compilations of information, methods, techniques,
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procedures, processes and other know-how, whether or not patentable, of any nature in any form, including all writings,
memoranda, copies, reports, papers, surveys, analyses, drawings, letters, computer printouts, computer programs, computer
applications, specifications, business methods, business processes, business techniques, business plans, data (including Customer
and Referral Source data), graphs, charts, sound recordings or pictorial reproductions.

“Trademarks” means unregistered and registered trademarks and service marks, trademark and service mark applications,
common law trademarks and service marks, trade dress and logos, trade names, business names, corporate names, product names
and other source or business identifiers, certification marks, slogans, brand names, assumed names, and all other indicia of origin
and the goodwill associated with any of the foregoing and any renewals and extensions of any of the foregoing.

“Transaction Bonus Plan” means the transaction bonus program as adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company in
such amounts and with respect to such employees of the Company as reflected on the Distribution Allocation Schedule.

“Transaction Bonus Plan Closing_ Amount” means the sum of (i) the amount payable at Closing under the Transaction
Bonus Plan in accordance with the terms thereof as set forth on the Distribution Schedule and (ii) any Company Group Member’s
portion of any payroll Taxes associated with the payment of such amount in accordance with such terms.

“Transaction Bonus Plan Participants” means the employees of Company participating in the Transaction Bonus Plan as set
forth on the Distribution Schedule.

“Transaction Bonuses” means, excluding (i) amounts payable under the Transaction Bonus Plan, (ii) amounts included in
the Transaction Expenses, or (iii) Employee Payments, any bonuses, change of control payments, or other amounts payable by any
Company Group Member to any employee of the Company Group Members as a result of the consummation of the consummation
of the Merger, (but, in any case, not as a result of “double trigger” provisions where the consummation of the Merger is the first
trigger and the termination of any such employee is the second trigger) (including any Company Group Member’s portion of any
payroll Taxes associated with such amounts).

“Transaction Communications” has the meaning set forth in Section 12.14.

“Transaction Documents” means this Agreement and all other agreements, documents and instruments to be executed and
delivered hereunder.

“Transaction Expenses” means all fees, costs, charges, expenses and obligations unpaid at Closing that are incurred by any
Company Group Member in connection with or relating to the preparation for, and consummation of, the Contemplated
Transactions and all other agreements, certificates, instruments and documents delivered under the terms of this Agreement and the
Contemplated Transactions, including (a) the preparation, negotiation and execution of this Agreement and all other agreements,
certificates, instruments and documents delivered under the terms of this Agreement and the Contemplated Transactions (including
any due diligence review
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of Company Group Members); (b) financial advisory and professional services provided by any of Company Group Members’
bankers, counsel, brokers, consultants, accountants, advisors (financial or otherwise), agents and representatives, (c) 50% of the
costs associated with the D&O Insurance, (d) fees and expenses associated with the Representations and Warranties Policy (to the
extent such fees and expenses do not exceed $300,000), and (e) the Representative Fee.

“Warrant” means each outstanding, unexpired and unexercised warrant issued by Company that represents the right to
purchase shares of Company Common Stock.

“Warrantholder” means a holder of a Warrant.

“Warrant Merger Consideration” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.7(a).

0129628.0720424 4816-0377-4360v2
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Exhibit 23.1

Nashville | 615-377-4600 | LBMC.com
201 Franklin Road, Suite 400 | PO Box 1869 | Brentwood, TM 37027

Consent of Independent Auditor

i3 Verticals, Inc.
Nashville, Tennessee

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 333-229678 and 333-225812 on Forms S-8 of i3 Verticals,

Inc. of our report dated April 22, 2019, with respect to the consolidated financial statements of Pace Payment Systems, Inc. and Subsidiary,
which appear in the Current Report on Form 8-K of i3 Verticals, Inc. filed on June 3, 2019.

/s/ LBMC, PC

Nashville, Tennessee
June 3, 2019



13

Verticals

i3 VERTICALS COMPLETES PACE ACQUISITION
Updates Guidance for Fiscal 2019

NASHVILLE, Tenn. (June 3, 2019) — i3 Verticals, Inc. (Nasdagq: llIV) (the “Company”) today announced the acquisition of Pace
Payment Systems, Inc. (“Pace”) for a purchase price of approximately $52.7 million, of which $52.5 million was cash consideration
at closing. In addition, the seller may potentially earn up to an additional $20.0 million based upon the achievement of certain
growth metrics related to the financial performance of Pace in the 24 months from January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2021.

Greg Daily, CEO of i3 Verticals, commented, “We are pleased to announce the completion of the Pace acquisition. Pace is a
premier provider of fully integrated payment and transaction solutions focused on the Public Sector and Education verticals. Pace
has experienced double-digit growth in the independent software vendor (ISV) channel, particularly within the Public Sector
vertical, and has a deep pipeline of potential ISV partners. Pace’s capabilities with utility districts will expand our offerings in the
Public Sector vertical, and their leadership team of industry veterans will enhance our management team. We could not be more
enthusiastic about Pace’s fit with the i3 Verticals culture and about our overall future in the Public Sector vertical.”

Pace markets, distributes and sells payment processing products (including software products) and services, primarily through
integrated partnerships in the Public Sector and Education verticals. Pace processed $1.1 billion of charge volume in 2018.
Through its Fuze and Insight products, Pace enables its customers to access complete transaction flows in real time. These
products include a robust data warehouse, reconciliation tool and reporting engine that transform disparate data points into
actionable intel for customers.

“For the remainder of our fiscal year ending in September, we anticipate initial costs related to a conversion of Pace’s entire
merchant portfolio to a new processor. After the conversion, we expect significant processing cost savings, as well as synergies
from the consolidation of duplicate functions, in future years. Factoring in the impact of these synergies and cost savings, we
expect Pace to have an annualized run rate of approximately $5 million in Adjusted EBITDA,” concluded Daily.

Revised 2019 Outlook
The Company is providing the following revised outlook for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2019, incorporating the projected
financial impact of the Pace acquisition announced today:

($ in thousands, except per share amounts) Outlook Range

Fiscal year ending September 30, 2019
Adjusted net revenue(’) (non-GAAP) $ 132,000 - $ 138,000
Adjusted EBITDA (non-GAAP) $ 37,000 - $ 40,000
Adjusted diluted earnings per share® (non-GAAP) $ 080 - $ 0.85
Cash paid for interest $ 5500 - $ 6,000

1. Under GAAP, companies must adjust, as necessary, beginning balances of acquired deferred revenue to fair value as part of acquisition accounting as defined by GAAP. For
the 2019 outlook, the Company has removed the effect of these adjustments to acquisition date fair value from acquisitions that have closed as of the earnings release date.
2. Assumes an effective pro forma tax rate of 25.0% (non-GAAP).

-MORE-
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With respect to the “Revised 2019 Outlook” above, adjusted net revenue, adjusted EBITDA and adjusted diluted earnings per
share are non-GAAP financial measures. Reconciliation of adjusted net revenue, adjusted EBITDA and adjusted diluted earnings
per share guidance to the closest corresponding GAAP measure on a forward-looking basis is not available without unreasonable
efforts. This inability results from the inherent difficulty in forecasting generally and quantifying certain projected amounts that are
necessary for such reconciliations. In particular, sufficient information is not available to calculate certain adjustments required for
such reconciliations, including changes in the fair value of contingent consideration, income tax expense of i3 Verticals, Inc. and
equity-based compensation expense. The Company expects these adjustments may have a potentially significant impact on future
GAAP financial results. The Revised 2019 Outlook supersedes any prior outlook or guidance provided by the Company.

About i3 Verticals

Helping drive the convergence of software and payments, i3 Verticals delivers seamlessly integrated payment and software
solutions to small- and medium-sized businesses and other organizations in strategic vertical markets, such as education, public
sector, non-profit, property management, and healthcare and to the business-to-business payments market. With a broad suite of
payment and software solutions that address the specific needs of its clients in each strategic vertical market, i3 Verticals
processed approximately $11.9 billion in total payment volume for the 12 months ended March 31, 2019.

Forward-Looking Statements

This release contains forward-looking statements that are subject to risks and uncertainties. All statements other than statements
of historical fact or relating to present facts or current conditions included in this release are forward-looking statements, including
any statements regarding our revised 2019 outlook, anticipated financial impact from the acquisition of Pace and statements of a
general economic or industry specific nature. Forward-looking statements give the Company's current expectations and
projections relating to its financial condition, results of operations, guidance, plans, objectives, future performance and business.
You generally can identify forward-looking statements by the fact that they do not relate strictly to historical or current facts. These
statements may include words such as “anticipate,” “estimate,” “expect,” “project,” “outlook,” “plan,” “intend,” “believe,” “may,” “will,”
“should,” “could have,” “exceed,” “significantly,” “likely” and other words and terms of similar meaning in connection with any
discussion of the timing or nature of future operating or financial performance or other events.
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The forward-looking statements contained in this release are based on assumptions that we have made in light of the Company's
industry experience and its perceptions of historical trends, current conditions, expected future developments and other factors we
believe are appropriate under the circumstances. As you review and consider information presented herein, you should
understand that these statements are not guarantees of future performance or results. They depend upon future events and are
subject to risks, uncertainties (many of which are beyond the Company's control) and assumptions. Although we believe that
these forward-looking statements are based on reasonable assumptions, you should be aware that many factors could affect the
Company's actual future performance or results and cause them to differ materially from those anticipated in the forward-looking
statements. Certain of these factors and other risks are discussed in the Company's filings with the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”) and include, but are not limited to: (i) the ability to effectively integrate the operations of Pace and
achieve the projected synergies and anticipated financial impact; (ii) the ability to generate revenues sufficient to maintain
profitability and positive cash flow; (iii) competition in the Company's industry and the ability to compete effectively; (iv) the
dependence on non-exclusive distribution partners to market the Company's products and services; (v) the ability to keep pace
with rapid developments and changes in the Company's industry and provide new products and services; (vi) liability and
reputation damage from unauthorized disclosure, destruction or modification of data or disruption of the Company's services; (Vvii)
technical, operational and regulatory risks related to the Company's information technology systems and third-party providers’
systems; (viii) reliance on third parties for significant services; (ix) exposure to economic conditions and political risks affecting
consumer and commercial spending, including the use of credit cards; (x) the ability to increase the Company's existing vertical
markets, expand into new vertical markets and execute the Company's growth strategy; (xi) the ability to successfully complete
acquisitions and effectively integrate those acquisitions into the Company's services; (xii) degradation of the quality of the
Company's products, services and support; (xiii) the ability to retain clients, many of which are small- and medium-sized
businesses, which can be difficult and costly to retain; (xiv) the Company's ability to successfully manage its intellectual property;
(xv) the ability to attract, recruit, retain and develop key personnel and qualified employees; (xvi) risks related to laws, regulations
and industry standards; (xvii) the Company's indebtedness and potential increases in its indebtedness; (xviii) operating and
financial restrictions imposed by the Company's senior secured credit facility; and (xix) the risk factors included in the Company's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2018 and in subsequent SEC filings. Should one or more of these
risks or uncertainties materialize, or should any of these assumptions prove incorrect, the Company's actual results may vary in
material respects from those projected in these forward-looking statements.

Any forward-looking statement made by us in this release speaks only as of the date of this release. Factors or events that could
cause the Company's actual results to differ may emerge from time to time, and it is not possible for us to predict all of them. The
Company undertakes no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information,
future developments or otherwise, except as may be required by law.

Contacts:

Clay Whitson Scott Meriwether

Chief Financial Officer Senior Vice President - Finance
(615) 988-9890 (615) 942-6175
cwhitson@i3verticals.com smeriwether@i3verticals.com

-END-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REVIEW REPORT

The Stockholders
Pace Payment Systems, Inc.:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have reviewed the accompanying interim consolidated financial statements of Pace Payment Systems, Inc. and Subsidiary (collectively, the
"Company"), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2019, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in
stockholders' deficit and cash flows for the three month periods ended March 31, 2019 and 2018.

Management's Responsibility

The Company's management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the interim consolidated financial information in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this responsibility includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control sufficient to provide a reasonable basis for the preparation and fair presentation of interim consolidated financial
information in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to conduct our review in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America applicable to
reviews of interim financial information. A review of interim financial information consists principally of applying analytical procedures and making
inquiries of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters. It is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the objective of which is an expression of an opinion regarding the financial
information. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Conclusion

Based on our reviews, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the accompanying interim financial information for it
to be in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/sl LBMC, PC

Brentwood, Tennessee
May 21, 2019



PACE PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Balance Sheets

March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018

Assets
2019 2018
(Unaudited)
Current assets:
Cash $ 183,665 $ 43,458
Certificate of deposit — 100,000
Accounts receivable 526,469 407,355
Inventories 42,993 37,140
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 406,729 314,860
Total current assets 1,159,856 902,813
Property and equipment, net 157,175 120,504
Capitalized software, net 329,554 372,454
Goodwill 15,675,293 15,675,293
Total assets $ 17,321,878 $ 17,071,064
Liabilities and Stockholders' Deficit
Current liabilities:
Current installments of long-term debt $ 600,000 $ 600,000
Accounts payable 757,475 437,660
Accrued expenses and liabilities 2,053,136 1,961,319
Deferred revenue — 13,944
Total current liabilities 3,410,611 3,012,923
Long-term debt, excluding current installments 37,952,732 36,699,980
Total liabilities 41,363,343 39,712,903
Stockholders' deficit:
Redeemable preferred stock, Series A, $0.001 par value (including accrued dividends of $9,154,952 and
$8,912,265 as of March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, respectively); 1,228,500 shares authorized and issued;
1,213,435 shares outstanding 21,439,952 21,197,265
Preferred stock, Series B, $0.001 par value; 300,000 shares authorized, issued and outstanding 2,000,000 2,000,000
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 2,000,000 shares authorized, 178,895 shares issued and outstanding; 198,507
restricted shares issued and 196,172 shares outstanding 383 383
Additional paid-in-capital 1,652 1,652
Accumulated deficit (47,332,802) (45,690,489)
Treasury stock, 15,065 preferred shares, 2,335 common shares, at cost (150,650) (150,650)
Total stockholders' deficit (24,041,465) (22,641,839)
$ 17,321,878 $ 17,071,064

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statemerrts:
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Net revenue
Cost of revenue

Gross profit

Operating expenses:

Selling, general and administrative

PACE PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Operations - Unaudited

Three months ended March 31, 2019 and 2018

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment and capitalized software

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Other expense -
Interest expense, net

Net loss

2019 2018
$ 7,400,345 $ 7,317,086
6,236,588 6,115,882
1,163,757 1,201,204
885,676 928,446
105,488 31,178
991,164 959,624
172,593 241,580
1,572,219 1,373,485
$ (1,399,626) $ (1,131,905)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Balance at December 31, 2018

Dividends accrued on Series A preferred stock

Net loss
Balance at March 31, 2019

Balance at December 31, 2017

Dividends accrued on Series A preferred stock

Net loss
Balance at March 31, 2018

PACE PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Deficit - Unaudited
Three months ended March 31, 2019 and 2018
2019
Preferred Stock Additional Total
Common Paid-In Accumulated Treasury Stockholders'
Series A Series B Stock Capital Deficit Stock Deficit
$ 21,197,265 $ 2,000,000 $ 383 $ 1,652 $ (45,690,489) $ (150,650) $ (22,641,839)
242,687 — — — (242,687) — —
— — — — (1,399,626) — (1,399,626)
$ 21,439,952 $ 2,000,000 $ 383 § 1,652 $ (47,332,802) $ (150,650) $ (24,041,465)
2018
Preferred Stock Additional Total
Common Paid-In Accumulated Treasury Stockholders'
Series A Series B Stock Capital Deficit Stock Deficit
$ 20,226,517 $ 2,000,000 $ 365 $ 1,491 $ (39,716,653) $ (150,650) $ (17,638,930)
242,687 — — — (242,687) — —
— — — — (1,131,905) — (1,131,905)
$ 20,469,204 $ 2,000,000 365 $ 1,491 $ (41,091,245) $ (150,650) $ (18,770,835)

smﬂmcmm
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PACE PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - Unaudited

Three months ended March 31, 2019 and 2018

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment

Amortization of capitalized software
Amortization of debt issuance costs
Capitalization of accrued paid-in-kind interest
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
(Increase) decrease in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and liabilities
Deferred revenue
Total adjustments
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment
Expenditures for software development costs
Net cash used by investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Payments of long-term debt
Payments of loan costs
Net cash used by financing activities
Decrease in cash

Cash at beginning of year

Cash at end of year

$
See accompanying notes to the consolidated firrrreisstrtereRts:

5

2019 2018
(1,399,626) $ (1,131,905)
30,551 15,578
74,937 15,600
33,071 38,490
1,438,876 1,209,404
100,000 —
(119,114) (58,695)
(5,853) 6,251
(91,869) (73,482)
319,815 84,108
91,817 84,791
(13,944) (15,979)
1,858,287 1,306,066
458,661 174,161
(67,222) (44,425)
(32,037) (9,661)
(99,259) (54,086)
(150,000) (150,000)
(69,195) (11,910)
(219,195) (161,910)
140,207 (41,835)
43,458 224,112
183,665 $ 182,277




PACE PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - Unaudited

Three months ended March 31, 2019 and 2018

(1) Nature of operations
Pace Payment Systems, Inc. (""Pace') and Subsidiary (collectively, the "Company") provide electronic payment solutions for
small and medium sized merchant businesses throughout the United States. The Company's headquarters are located in
Nashville, Tennessee with operations located in California. The Company also conducts certain lines of its business as Pace
Payments, Inc.

(2) Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Principles of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company's wholly-owned subsidiary company. All
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

(b) Accounts receivable and credit policies

Accounts receivable consist primarily of uncollateralized credit card processing residual payments due from processors
requiring payment within 30 days from the date of the original credit card transaction. The carrying amount of
accounts receivable is reduced by a valuation allowance, if necessary, which reflects management's best estimate of the
amounts that will not be collected. The allowance is estimated based on management's knowledge of its customers,
historical loss experience and existing economic conditions. Accounts receivable and the allowance are written off when,
in management's opinion, all collection efforts have been exhausted. Management of the Company determined that no
allowance for doubtful accounts is necessary at March 31, 2019 and 2018.

(c) Inventories

Inventories consist of credit card machines waiting to be sold to new or existing customers and are stated at the lower of
cost, determined on a first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis, or market (net realizable value).

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation and amortization are provided over the assets' estimated useful
lives using the straight-line method. Computers, office equipment, and furniture and fixtures are depreciated over three
to five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of their estimated lives or the respective lease
term.

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are expensed when incurred. Expenditures for renewals or betterments are
capitalized. When property is retired or sold, the cost and the related accumulated depreciation or amortization are
removed from the accounts, and the resulting gain or loss is included in operations.
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Three months ended March 31, 2019 and 2018

(e) Capitalized software

The Company capitalizes its software development costs related to internally developed software once the software is in
the application development stage for a project. All external direct costs for materials and services and internal payroll
and related fringe benefit costs are capitalized and subsequently amortized over the estimated life of the project.
Internally developed software is amortized over a period of three years. Costs incurred prior to the application
development stage are expensed as incurred.

(f) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired in business combinations.
Goodwill is not amortized, but instead is reviewed for impairment on an annual basis, or more frequently, as
impairment indicators arise. If goodwill is considered to be impaired, a charge to earnings would be recorded during
the period in which management makes such assessment.

(g) Debt issuance costs

Debt issuance costs incurred in connection with obtaining long-term debt are presented as a reduction of the principal
amount of the related debt. These costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the loan, which
approximates the effective interest rate, and are included in interest expense in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations.

(h) Income taxes

The amount provided for income taxes is based upon the amounts of current and deferred taxes payable or refundable
at the date of the consolidated financial statements as a result of all events recognized in the consolidated financial
statements as measured by the provisions of enacted tax laws. The Company files consolidated U.S. Federal and various
state income tax returns as a C-corporation.

A tax position is recognized as a benefit only if it is ""'more likely than not" that the tax position would be substantiated
in a tax examination, with a tax examination being presumed to occur. The amount recognized is the largest amount of
tax benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized on examination. For tax positions not meeting the "'more
likely than not" test, no tax benefit is recorded. The Company has no uncertain tax positions that qualify for either
recognition or disclosure in its consolidated financial statements at March 31, 2019 and 2018. It is the Company's policy
to recognize interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense.

(i) Revenue and cost recognition

Substantially all of the Company's revenues are generated from discount and transaction fees charged to merchants for
card based payment processing. Discount fees represent a percentage of the dollar amount of each credit or debit
transaction
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processed. Discounts and other fees are recognized at the time the merchants' transactions are processed. Generally,
where the Company has merchant portability, credit risk and ultimate responsibility for the merchant, revenues are
reported at the time of sale on a gross basis equal to the full amount of the discount charged to the merchant. This
amount includes interchange paid to card issuing banks and assessments paid to payment card associations pursuant to
which such parties receive payments based primarily on processing volume for particular groups of merchants.

Revenues are also derived from a variety of fixed transaction or service fees, including authorization fees, statement
fees, annual fees, and fees for other miscellaneous services, such as handling chargebacks. Revenues derived from
service fees are recognized at the time the services are performed. Sales of equipment to merchants are recognized upon
receipt of the equipment by the merchant and those sales are also included in revenue. Deferred revenue represents the
portion of collected or billed revenue for which the recognition process is incomplete.

Cost of revenues consists primarily of interchange fees, which are costs that are directly related to discount fees. Other
costs of services include costs directly attributable to processing and bank sponsorship costs. These also include related
costs such as residual payments to sales groups, which are based upon a percentage of the net revenues generated from
merchant referrals. The cost of equipment sold is also included in cost of revenues. Interchange and other costs of
services are recognized at the time the merchants' transactions are processed.

(j) Realization of long-lived assets

Management evaluates the recoverability of the investment in long-lived assets on an ongoing basis and recognizes any
impairment in the year of determination. It is reasonably possible that relevant conditions could change in the near
term and necessitate a change in management's estimate of the recoverability of these assets.

(k) Use of estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

(1) Stock-based compensation
The Company has a stock-based employee compensation plan that is described more fully in Note 13. The Company's

stock-based compensation is measured at the grant date based upon the fair value of the award and is recognized as
expense on a straight line basis over the requisite service period, which is generally the vesting period.
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(m) New accounting pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (""FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No.
2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), (“ASU 2014-09) which will eliminate the transaction
and industry-specific revenue recognition guidance under current accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America and replace it with a principles-based approach. ASU 2014-09 affects any entity that either
enters into contracts with customers to transfer goods or services or enters into contracts for the transfer of
nonfinancial assets unless those contracts are within the scope of other standards. The core principle of the guidance in
ASU 2014-09 is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services.

The five step model defined by ASU 2014-09 requires the Company to: (i) identify the contract(s) with a customer, (ii)
identify the performance obligations in the contract, (iii) determine the transaction price, (iv) allocate the transaction
price to the performance obligations in the contract, and (v) recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation. The FASB has also issued several ASUs to provide entities further clarity on the application of
ASU 2014-09. ASU 2014-09 additionally enhances the required disclosures surrounding the nature, amount, timing, and
uncertainty of revenues and the associated cash flows. ASU 2014-09 may be applied retrospectively to each period (full
retrospective) or retrospectively with the cumulative effect recognized as of the date of initial application (modified
retrospective). ASU 2014-09, as amended, is effective for the Company for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2019 and
for interim periods within fiscal years beginning January 1, 2020. The Company has not yet made a determination of
the transition approach to be utilized for ASU 2014-09. Management of the Company is currently evaluating the impact
adoption of ASU 2014-09 will have on its consolidated financial statements and disclosures.

(n) Events occurring after reporting date
Management of the Company has evaluated events and transactions that occurred between March 31, 2019 and May
21, 2019, which is the date that the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued, for possible recognition
or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements.
(3) Credit risk and other concentrations
The Company places its cash with high credit quality financial institutions which provide Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation insurance. The Company performs periodic evaluations of the relative credit standing of these institutions and

does not expect any losses related to such concentrations.

The Company's revenues are earned by processing transactions for merchant businesses under contract with the Company.
The Company utilizes the funds settlement service of primarily
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three financial institutions, from which substantially all accounts receivable are remitted monthly.

Disputes between a cardholder and a merchant periodically arise as a result of, among other things, cardholder dissatisfaction
with merchant quality or merchant services. Such disputes may not be resolved in the merchant's favor. In these cases, the
transaction is "charged back' to the merchant, which means the purchase price is refunded to the customer through the
merchant's acquiring bank and charged to the merchant. If the merchant has inadequate funds, the Company or, under limited
circumstances, the Company and the acquiring bank, must bear the credit risk for the full amount of the transaction. The
Company evaluates its risk for such transactions and estimates its potential loss for chargebacks based primarily on historical
experience and other relevant factors. Reserves of $4,445 and $9,641 were maintained at March 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively,
to provide for potential losses from future chargebacks.

A summary of property and equipment as of March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 is as follows:

March 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Land improvements $ 30,527 $ 30,527
Computers and office equipment 820,155 752,935
Furniture and fixtures 98,582 98,582
949,264 882,044
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (792,089) (761,540)
$ 157,175 $ 120,504

(5) Capitalized software

A summary of capitalized software as of March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 is as follows:

March 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Software development costs $ 460,229 $ 428,192
Accumulated amortization (130,675) (55,738)
$ 329,554 $ 372,454
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(6) Long-term debt

A summary of long-term debt as of March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 is as follows:

March 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Senior notes payable to First Bank (a) $ 2,250,000 $ 2,400,000
Related party subordinated notes payable (b) 10,967,226 10,885,584
Related party subordinated notes payable (c) 23,227,111 21,888,354
Subordinated notes payable to certain current and former

stockholders (d) 1,523,389 1,523,389
Related party subordinated notes payable (e) 826,974 821,216
Total long-term debt 38,794,700 37,518,543
Less discount and debt issuance costs, net $ (241,968) $ (218,563)
Less current installments, net of discount and debt issuance costs $ (600,000) $ (600,000)
Long-term debt, excluding current installments $ 37,952,732 $ 36,699,980

(a) The senior notes payable to First Bank are due in monthly principal installments of
$50,000, plus interest at LIBOR plus 5.50% (7.99% at March 31, 2019), due December 29, 2020.

(b) These related party subordinated notes payable are due to Prudential Capital Partners
II1, L.P., stockholder, and certain of its affiliates under common control (collectively, "Prudential''). The notes payable
bear interest at a fixed rate equal to 16%. 3% of the interest represents paid-in-kind (" PIK") interest which accrues to
principal on the note each month. 13% of the interest is accrued each month with all unpaid accrued interest added to
the related party subordinated notes payable described in (c) below on a quarterly basis. All principal and unpaid
interest is due December 29, 2021.

(c) These related party subordinated notes payable are due to Prudential. The notes
payable bear interest at a fixed rate equal to 18%, including 2% penalty interest. All interest is accrued with all unpaid
accrued interest added to the outstanding principle of the note payable on a quarterly basis. All principal and unpaid
interest is due December 29, 2021.

(d) Subordinated notes payable to certain current and former stockholders bear interest
at a fixed rate of 8%, subject to certain limitations, and are due on June 29, 2021.

(e) Related party subordinated notes payable are due to Prudential. The notes payable
bear PIK interest at a variable rate equal to 6.5% plus the greater of LIBOR or 3% (9.0% at March 31, 2019). All

principal and unpaid interest is due June 21, 2021.

All long-term debt is secured by substantially all assets of the Company, subject to each note agreement's seniority preferences.

11
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Interest expense to related parties on subordinated notes payable was approximately $1,509,000 and $1,272,000 during the
three months ended March 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. Interest expense capitalized to principle on the respective notes
payable totaled approximately $1,439,000 and $1,209,000 during the three months ended March 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively. Substantially all accrued interest (Note 7) at March 31, 2019 and 2018 represents interest accrued on related party
subordinated notes payable.

A summary of scheduled future maturities of long-term debt as of March 31, 2019 is as follows:

Year Amount

2019 $ 600,000

2020 1,650,000

2021 36,544,700
$ 38,794,700

The provisions of the related long-term debt agreements place certain restrictions and limitations upon the Company. These
include maintenance of certain financial ratios and restrictions or limitations on the payment of dividends, capital
expenditures, sales or rentals of property, and additional borrowings. At March 31, 2019, the Company was in compliance with
these provisions.

(7) Accrued expenses and liabilities

A summary of accrued expenses and liabilities as of March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 is as follows:

March 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Accrued Payroll $ 31,926 $ 6,685
Accrued Interest 2,015,988 1,945,919
Reserve for merchant losses 4,445 6,332
Other current liabilities 777 2,383
$ 2,053,136 $ 1,961,319

(8) Employee benefit plan
The Company sponsors a profit-sharing plan covering substantially all employees. The Company makes matching

contributions equal to 100% of the first 3% and 50% of the next 2% of employee deferrals. The Company made contributions
of $11,311 and $13,759 to the plan during 2019 and 2018, respectively.

12
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(9) Income taxes

Federal and state net operating loss carryforwards of the Company total approximately $15,620,000 and $23,280,000,
respectively, at March 31, 2019 and are generally available for federal and state tax purposes through 2037 and 2034,
respectively.

Net deferred income taxes as of March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 include the following amounts of deferred income tax
assets and liabilities:

March 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Deferred income tax assets $ 6,950,000 $ 6,578,000
Deferred income tax liabilities — —
Valuation allowance (6,950,000) (6,578,000)
Net $ — 9 —

Deferred income taxes are provided for the temporary differences between the financial reporting basis and tax basis of the
Company's assets and liabilities. The deferred tax assets result primarily from accrued interest on stockholder loans, interest
expense limitations, amortization of intangible assets, and federal and state net operating loss carryforwards.

The valuation allowances were established to reduce the deferred income tax assets to the amount that will more likely than not
be realized. This reduction is provided due to the uncertainty of the Company's ability to utilize the net operating loss
carryforwards before they expire.

(10) Preferred stock

At March 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company had outstanding 1,213,435 shares of Series A Redeemable Convertible Preferred
Stock ("'Series A') and 300,000 shares of Series B Junior Preferred Stock ("'Series B"), (collectively, the '"Preferred Stock").

The Preferred Stock is entitled to the same voting rights as common stockholders: one vote per share of common shares into
which such Preferred Shares could be converted.

Each share of Preferred Stock will automatically be converted into common stock in the event of a qualified public offering (as
defined in the amended articles of incorporation) of which the aggregate proceeds attributable to the sale of the Company
exceeds $50,000,000, at a price per share equal to at least $10.00 per share.

Each share of Preferred Stock will be convertible, at the option of the holder, at any time after the date of issuance of such
shares into fully paid and nonassessable common shares, at their defined conversion rate. Each share will be convertible into
the number of common shares that result from dividing the Preferred Stock original issue price by the applicable conversion
price in effect at the time of conversion. As of March 31, 2019 and 2018, that conversion price was $10.00 for Series A and $6.67
for Series B.

13
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The holders of Series A are entitled to an annual dividend of 8% on the Series A original issue price (adjusted for stock
dividends, combinations, subdivisions or splits), whether or not declared commencing on the original issue date. Such
dividends, to the extent not previously paid, will be declared and paid upon the occurrence of any of the following: (1) the
conversion of Series A upon the occurrence of a qualified public offering, or (ii) the redemption of the Series A. At March 31,
2019 and 2018, the Company had $9,154,952 and $8,184,204, respectively, of cumulative unpaid Series A preferred stock
dividends.

If, by the fifth anniversary of the original issue date of the Series A, there has not occurred either (i) a qualified public offering,
(ii) a public merger of the Company, or (iii) any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the affairs of the Company, and
holders of at least twenty-five percent of the Holders of the Series A consent, then each holder of the Series A will have the right
on, or any time after, the fifth anniversary to require the Company to redeem all of the Series A then owned by the holder. Such
right will be exercised by the holder's delivery of notice to the Company, which must include the proposed date of redemption,
but not less than 60 days following the date of notice. The Company will only be required to redeem one-third of the
redemption share on the redemption date, one-third on the first anniversary of the redemption date, and one-third on the
second anniversary of the redemption date. The redemption shares will be redeemed at a price equal to the greater of the fair
market value of the shares or the liquidation preference for each share. Dividends will continue to accrue on the unredeemed
Series A until redemption. The original issuance date of the Series A was October 1, 2009 and the fifth anniversary of the
original issuance date of the Series A occurred on October 1, 2014. No stockholders have expressed their intent to redeem their
ratable portion of shares in accordance with the provisions discussed above, and as a result, no shares have been classified as
mandatorily redeemable preferred stock.

Upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, whether voluntary or involuntary ("'Liquidation Event'"),
each holder of the outstanding shares of Preferred Stock will be entitled to be paid out of the assets of the Company available
for distribution to stockholders, whether such assets are capital, surplus or earnings, an amount in cash, per share of Preferred
Stock equal to (i) the excess of the original issue price over the cumulative distributions for such shares plus (ii) any accrued but
unpaid Preferred Stock dividends for such share of Preferred Stock, whether or not declared ("Liquidation Preference");
provided, however, that if upon any Liquidation Event, the assets of the Company are not sufficient to pay each holder the
Liquidation Preference in full, then each holder of the outstanding shares of Preferred Stock will receive a pro-rata distribution
of the available assets. Upon the occurrence of a Liquidating Event, the Liquidation Preference for the Series A holders will be
paid in full prior to any payment of the Liquidation Preference for the Series B holders. Both the Series A and Series B holders
will be paid in full prior to any payment to the common stockholders.

(11) Warrants
Warrants to purchase 343,709 shares of common stock at the exercise price of $0.01 per share were outstanding at March 31,
2019 and 2018. Each warrant is exercisable until October 27, 2024. The warrants were issued to Prudential and its affiliates in

connection with the execution of the senior notes payable and revolving line of credit agreements and amendment to the senior
subordinated note payable. Management determined that the warrants had no
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stand-alone fair value, and none of the proceeds from the notes was attributed to the warrants.

The terms of certain long-term debt agreements also provide for the issuance of additional warrants, defined by a formula in
such agreements, that is based upon the Company's financial performance. No warrants were issued during the three months
ended March 31, 2019 or 2018.

(12) Restricted stock

As of March 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company has issued 198,507 shares of common stock to officers of the Company at a price
of $0.001 per share which contain certain restrictions. The restrictions establish forfeiture provisions and limits on
transferability, encumbrances and disposition of all shares, as well as vesting provisions for the remaining 79,403 shares that
were unvested as of March 31, 2019 and 2018. Unvested shares at March 31, 2019 and 2018 vest upon the closing of a sale of the
Company at a price greater than the minimum price set forth in the restricted stock agreements. Management has determined
that any compensation expense related to the restricted stock is immaterial.

(13) Stock option plan

The Company has reserved 299,253 shares of authorized common stock to be issued pursuant to the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan
(the "Plan"). The Plan is designed to stimulate the efforts of officers, employees, outside directors and consultants. Under the
Plan, the Board of Directors has the sole discretion to grant options with exercise prices determined by the Board at the time of
grant but not less than 100% of fair market value of the common stock at the date of grant. The option term and vesting period
is determined by the Board at the date of grant. The options cannot be sold or transferred to any other party without consent of
the Board. If an employee is terminated or leaves the Company prior to the options being vested, the options are forfeited.

The Company estimates the value of its stock options using the calculated value on the grant date. The Company measures
compensation cost of employee stock options based on the calculated value instead of fair value because it is not practical to
estimate the volatility of its share price. The Company does not maintain an internal market for its shares and its shares are
rarely traded privately. The Company has not issued any new common shares or convertible debt instruments in several years.
The calculated value method requires that the volatility assumption used in an option pricing model be based on the volatilities
of publicly traded companies identified by the Company that engage in operations similar to that of the Company or the
historical volatility of an appropriate industry sector index.

The Company uses the Black-Scholes-Merton formula to estimate the calculated value of the share-based payments. The
volatility assumption used in the Black-Scholes-Merton formula is based on the volatility of three publicly traded companies
that engage in operations similar to that of the Company.
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Outstanding options granted for the purchase of the Company's common stock under the Plan as of March 31, 2019 and 2018
were 98,855 and 123,623, respectively. No options were granted, forfeited, or exercised during the three months ended March
31,2019 and 2018.

The following summarizes information about all options outstanding at March 31, 2019:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Exercise Price Per Number of Weighted-Average Weighted-Average Number of Weighted-Average
Share Common Shares Exercise Price Remaining Life Common Shares Exercise Price
$ 0.01 98,855 § 0.01 5.04 — 3 —

Nonvested shares as of March 31, 2019 and 2018 were 98,855 and 123,623, respectively. No shares vested, were forfeited or
granted during the three months ended March 31, 2019 and 2018.

(14) Lease commitments

The Company utilizes office space under operating leases. Rent expense under these leases amounted to $58,795 and $51,414 in
2019 and 2018, respectively. Future minimum payments under these leases are expected to be approximately $141,000 during
2019 and $16,000 during 2020. It is expected that in the normal course of business, leases that expire will be renewed or
replaced by other leases; thus, it is anticipated that future lease payments will not be less than the expense for 2018.

(15) Commitments to third-party processor

During 2016, the Company had agreements with a third-party processor to provide, on a non-exclusive basis, payment
processing and transmittal, transaction authorization, and settlement services. The Company's agreements with the third-party
processor may require the Company to submit minimum annual processing volumes. If the Company submits volume that is
lower than the minimum, it is required to pay the third party processor the fees that they would have received if the Company
had submitted the required annual volume. Management believes that the Company's processing volume under this agreement
will exceed the annual minimum required. As part of the agreements, the third-party processor required the Company to
maintain a $100,000 letter of credit to secure its obligations to the processor. The Company's letter of credit matured in March
2018 and was subsequently renewed through March 2019. The letter of credit was secured by a $100,000 certificate of deposit
that matured in March 2019. The Company and the third-party processor agreed to not renew the letter of credit after it
matured in March 2019 and the certificate of deposit was liquidated.
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(16) Supplemental disclosures of cash flow statement information

Interest paid during the three month periods ending March 31, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

2019 2018

Interest paid S 34315 $ 55,121
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Stockholders
Pace Payment Systems, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Pace Payment Systems, Inc. and Subsidiary, which comprise the
consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders' deficit
and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Pace Payment
Systems, Inc. and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/sl LBMC, PC

Brentwood, Tennessee
April 22,2019
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December 31, 2018 and 2017

Assets
2018 2017
Current assets:
Cash $ 43,458 $ 224,112
Certificate of deposit 100,000 100,000
Accounts receivable 407,355 540,989
Inventories 37,140 53,500
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 314,860 231,888
Total current assets 902,813 1,150,489
Property and equipment, net 120,504 149,906
Capitalized software, net 372,454 162,004
Goodwill 15,675,293 15,675,293
Total assets $ 17,071,064 $ 17,137,692
Liabilities and Stockholders' Deficit
Current liabilities:
Current installments of long-term debt $ 600,000 $ 540,000
Accounts payable 437,660 458,548
Accrued expenses and liabilities 1,961,319 1,704,071
Deferred revenue 13,944 18,208
Total current liabilities 3,012,923 2,720,827
Long-term debt, excluding current installments 36,699,980 32,055,795
Total liabilities 39,712,903 34,776,622
Stockholders' deficit:
Redeemable preferred stock, Series A, $0.001 par value (including accrued dividends of $8,912,265 and
$7,941,517 in 2018 and 2017, respectively); 1,228,500 shares authorized and issued; 1,213,435 shares
outstanding 21,197,265 20,226,517
Preferred stock, Series B, $0.001 par value; 300,000 shares authorized, issued and outstanding 2,000,000 2,000,000
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 2,000,000 shares authorized, 178,895 and 160,987 shares issued and
outstanding in 2018 and 2017, respectively; 198,507 restricted shares issued and 196,172 shares outstanding 383 365
Additional paid-in-capital 1,652 1,491
Accumulated deficit (45,690,489) (39,716,653)
Treasury stock, 15,065 preferred shares, 2,335 common shares, at cost (150,650) (150,650)
Total stockholders' deficit (22,641,839) (17,638,930)
$ 17,071,064 $ 17,137,692

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statemerrs:
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Net revenue
Cost of revenue

Gross profit

Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative

PACE PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment and capitalized software

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Other expense -

Interest expense, net

Net loss

2018 2017

$ 28,977,570 30,055,645
24,375,148 25,035,531

4,602,422 5,020,114

3,675,952 3,656,583

129,032 112,300

3,804,984 3,768,883

797,438 1,251,231

5,800,526 4,986,817

$ (5,003,088) (3,735,586)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACE PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Deficit

Balance at December 31, 2016

Issuance of 10,718 shares of common stock
from exercise of common stock options

Dividends accrued on Series A preferred stock

Net loss
Balance at December 31, 2017

Issuance of 17,908 shares of common stock
from exercise of common stock options

Dividends accrued on Series A preferred stock

Net loss

Balance at December 31, 2018

S

Years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

Preferred Stock Additional Total

Common Paid-In Accumulated Treasury Stockholders'

Series A Series B Stock Capital Deficit Stock Deficit
$ 19,255,769 $ 2,000,000 S 354§ 1,394 $ (35,010,319) $ (150,650) $ (13,903,452)
— — 11 97 — — 108
970,748 — — — (970,748) — _
— — — — (3,735,586) — (3,735,586)
20,226,517 2,000,000 365 1,491 (39,716,653) (150,650) (17,638,930)
— — 18 161 — — 179
970,748 — — — (970,748) — —
— — — — (5,003,088) — (5,003,088)
$ 21,197,265 $ 2,000,000 $ 383 § 1,652 $ (45,690,489) $ (150,650) $ (22,641,839)

CETHCCORpPETY consoidredtn 16



PACE PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment

Amortization of capitalized software
Amortization of debt issuance costs
Capitalization of accrued paid-in-kind interest
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
(Increase) decrease in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and liabilities
Deferred revenue
Total adjustments
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment
Expenditures for software development costs
Net cash used by investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayments of line of credit
Proceeds from notes payable
Payments of long-term debt
Proceeds from exercise of common stock options
Payments of loan costs
Net cash used by financing activities
Decrease in cash

Cash at beginning of year

Cash at end of year

5

2018 2017
(5,003,088) $ (3,735,586)
99,424 86,170
29,608 26,130
153,962 46,614
5,170,778 4,281,805
— 101,421
133,634 256,798
16,360 28,803
(82,972) 8,361
(20,888) 86,356
257,248 87,135
(4,264) (25,158)
5,752,890 4,984,435
749,802 1,248,849
(70,022) (89,587)
(240,058) (188,134)
(310,080) (277,721)
— (1,000,000)

— 3,750,000
(600,000) (3,462,552)
179 108
(20,555) (320,493)
(620,376) (1,032,937)
(180,654) (61,809)
224,112 285,921
43458 $ 224,112

$
See accompanying notes to the consolidated firrrreis-strtererts:



PACE PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018 and 2017

(1) Nature of operations

Pace Payment Systems, Inc. (""Pace') and Subsidiary (collectively, the "Company") provide electronic payment solutions for
small and medium sized merchant businesses throughout the United States. The Company's headquarters are located in
Nashville, Tennessee with operations located in California. The Company also conducts certain lines of its business as Pace
Payments, Inc.

(2) Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) New accounting pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update (""ASU") No.
2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), (“ASU 2014-09”) which will eliminate the transaction and
industry-specific revenue recognition guidance under current accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America and replace it with a principles-based approach. ASU 2014-09 affects any entity that either enters
into contracts with customers to transfer goods or services or enters into contracts for the transfer of nonfinancial
assets unless those contracts are within the scope of other standards. The core principle of the guidance in ASU 2014-09
is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

The five step model defined by ASU 2014-09 requires the Company to: (i) identify the contract(s) with a customer, (ii)
identify the performance obligations in the contract, (iii) determine the transaction price, (iv) allocate the transaction
price to the performance obligations in the contract, and (v) recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation. The FASB has also issued several ASUs to provide entities further clarity on the application of
ASU 2014-09. ASU 2014-09 additionally enhances the required disclosures surrounding the nature, amount, timing, and
uncertainty of revenues and the associated cash flows. ASU 2014-09 may be applied retrospectively to each period (full
retrospective) or retrospectively with the cumulative effect recognized as of the date of initial application (modified
retrospective). ASU 2014-09, as amended, is effective for the Company beginning January 1, 2019, and the Company
has not yet made a determination of the transition approach to be utilized for ASU 2014-09. Management of the
Company is currently evaluating the impact adoption of ASU 2014-09 will have on its consolidated financial statements
and disclosures.

(b) Principles of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company's wholly-owned subsidiary company. All
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.



PACE PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018 and 2017

(¢) Accounts receivable and credit policies

Accounts receivable consist primarily of uncollateralized credit card processing residual payments due from processors
requiring payment within 30 days from the date of the original credit card transaction. The carrying amount of
accounts receivable is reduced by a valuation allowance, if necessary, which reflects management's best estimate of the
amounts that will not be collected. The allowance is estimated based on management's knowledge of its customers,
historical loss experience and existing economic conditions. Accounts receivable and the allowance are written off when,
in management's opinion, all collection efforts have been exhausted. Management of the Company determined that no
allowance for doubtful accounts is necessary at December 31, 2018 and 2017.

(d) Inventories

Inventories consist of credit card machines waiting to be sold to new or existing customers and are stated at the lower of
cost, determined on a first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis, or market (net realizable value).

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation and amortization are provided over the assets' estimated useful
lives using the straight-line method. Computers, office equipment, and furniture and fixtures are depreciated over three
to five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of their estimated lives or the respective lease
term.

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are expensed when incurred. Expenditures for renewals or betterments are
capitalized. When property is retired or sold, the cost and the related accumulated depreciation or amortization are

removed from the accounts, and the resulting gain or loss is included in operations.

(f) Capitalized software

The Company capitalizes its software development costs related to internally developed software once the software is in
the application development stage for a project. All external direct costs for materials and services and internal payroll
and related fringe benefit costs are capitalized and subsequently amortized over the estimated life of the project.
Internally developed software is amortized over a period of three years. Costs incurred prior to the application
development stage are expensed as incurred.

(g) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired in business combinations.
Goodwill is not amortized, but instead is reviewed for impairment on an annual basis, or more frequently, as
impairment indicators arise. If goodwill is considered to be impaired, a charge to earnings would be recorded during
the period in which management makes such assessment.



PACE PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018 and 2017

(h) Debt issuance costs

Debt issuance costs incurred in connection with obtaining long-term debt are presented as a reduction of the principal
amount of the related debt. These costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the loan, which
approximates the effective interest rate, and are included in interest expense in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations.

(i) Income taxes

The amount provided for income taxes is based upon the amounts of current and deferred taxes payable or refundable
at the date of the consolidated financial statements as a result of all events recognized in the consolidated financial
statements as measured by the provisions of enacted tax laws. The Company files consolidated U.S. Federal and various
state income tax returns as a C-corporation.

A tax position is recognized as a benefit only if it is ""more likely than not" that the tax position would be substantiated
in a tax examination, with a tax examination being presumed to occur. The amount recognized is the largest amount of
tax benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized on examination. For tax positions not meeting the "more
likely than not" test, no tax benefit is recorded. The Company has no uncertain tax positions that qualify for either
recognition or disclosure in its consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2018 and 2017. It is the Company's
policy to recognize interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense.

(j) Revenue and cost recognition

Substantially all of the Company's revenues are generated from discount and transaction fees charged to merchants for
card based payment processing. Discount fees represent a percentage of the dollar amount of each credit or debit
transaction processed. Discounts and other fees are recognized at the time the merchants' transactions are processed.
Generally, where the Company has merchant portability, credit risk and ultimate responsibility for the merchant,
revenues are reported at the time of sale on a gross basis equal to the full amount of the discount charged to the
merchant. This amount includes interchange paid to card issuing banks and assessments paid to payment card
associations pursuant to which such parties receive payments based primarily on processing volume for particular
groups of merchants.

Revenues are also derived from a variety of fixed transaction or service fees, including authorization fees, statement
fees, annual fees, and fees for other miscellaneous services, such as handling chargebacks. Revenues derived from
service fees are recognized at the time the services are performed. Sales of equipment to merchants are recognized upon
receipt of the equipment by the merchant and those sales are also included in revenue. Deferred revenue represents the
portion of collected or billed revenue for which the recognition process is incomplete.



PACE PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018 and 2017

Cost of revenues consists primarily of interchange fees, which are costs that are directly related to discount fees. Other
costs of services include costs directly attributable to processing and bank sponsorship costs. These also include related
costs such as residual payments to sales groups, which are based upon a percentage of the net revenues generated from
merchant referrals. The cost of equipment sold is also included in cost of revenues. Interchange and other costs of
services are recognized at the time the merchants' transactions are processed.

(k) Realization of long-lived assets

Management evaluates the recoverability of the investment in long-lived assets on an ongoing basis and recognizes any
impairment in the year of determination. It is reasonably possible that relevant conditions could change in the near
term and necessitate a change in management's estimate of the recoverability of these assets.

(1) Use of estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

(m) Stock-based compensation
The Company has a stock-based employee compensation plan that is described more fully in Note 13. The Company's
stock-based compensation is measured at the grant date based upon the fair value of the award and is recognized as

expense on a straight line basis over the requisite service period, which is generally the vesting period.

(n) Events occurring after reporting date

Management of the Company has evaluated events and transactions that occurred between December 31, 2018 and
April 22, 2019, which is the date that the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued, for possible
recognition or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements.

(3) Credit risk and other concentrations

The Company places its cash with high credit quality financial institutions which provide Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation insurance. The Company performs periodic evaluations of the relative credit standing of these institutions and
does not expect any losses related to such concentrations.

The Company's revenues are earned by processing transactions for merchant businesses under contract with the Company.
The Company utilizes the funds settlement service of primarily three financial institutions, from which substantially all
accounts receivable are remitted monthly.



PACE PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018 and 2017

Disputes between a cardholder and a merchant periodically arise as a result of, among other things, cardholder dissatisfaction
with merchant quality or merchant services. Such disputes may not be resolved in the merchant's favor. In these cases, the
transaction is '"charged back" to the merchant, which means the purchase price is refunded to the customer through the
merchant's acquiring bank and charged to the merchant. If the merchant has inadequate funds, the Company or, under limited
circumstances, the Company and the acquiring bank, must bear the credit risk for the full amount of the transaction. The
Company evaluates its risk for such transactions and estimates its potential loss for chargebacks based primarily on historical
experience and other relevant factors. Reserves of $6,332 and $21,667 were maintained at December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively, to provide for potential losses from future chargebacks.

A summary of property and equipment as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 is as follows:

2018 2017
Land improvements $ 30,527 $ 30,527
Computers and office equipment 752,935 682,911
Furniture and fixtures 98,582 98,582
882,044 812,020
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (761,540) (662,114)
$ 120,504 $ 149,906

(5) Capitalized software

A summary of capitalized software as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 is as follows:

2018 2017
Software development costs $ 428,192 $ 188,134
Accumulated amortization (55,738) (26,130)
$ 372,454 $ 162,004

Amortization expense for capitalized software development costs was $29,608 and $26,130 in 2018 and 2017, respectively, and is
included in operating expenses.
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PACE PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018 and 2017

(6) Long-term debt

A summary of long-term debt as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 is as follows:

2018 2017

Senior notes payable to First Bank (a) S 2,400,000 $ 3,000,000
Related party subordinated notes payable (b) 10,885,584 10,565,049
Related party subordinated notes payable (c) 21,888,354 17,109,484
Subordinated notes payable to certain current and former stockholders

(d) 1,523,389 1,523,389
Related party subordinated notes payable (e) 821,216 750,000
Total long-term debt 37,518,543 32,947,922
Less discount and debt issuance costs, net $ (218,563) $ (352,127)
Less current installments, net of discount and debt issuance costs $ (600,000) $ (540,000)
Long-term debt, excluding current installments $ 36,699,980 $ 32,055,795

(a) The senior notes payable to First Bank are due in monthly principal installments of
$50,000, plus interest at LIBOR plus 5.50% (8.02% at December 31, 2018), due December 29, 2020.

(b) These related party subordinated notes payable are due to Prudential Capital Partners

II1, L.P., stockholder, and certain of its affiliates under common control (collectively, '"Prudential'). The notes payable
bear interest at a fixed rate equal to 16%. 3% of the interest represents paid-in-kind ("'PIK") interest which accrues to
principal on the note each month. 13% of the interest is accrued each month with all unpaid accrued interest added to
the related party subordinated notes payable described in (c) below on a quarterly basis. All principal and unpaid

interest is due December 29, 2021.

(c) These related party subordinated notes payable are due to Prudential. The notes

payable bear interest at a fixed rate equal to 18%, including 2% penalty interest. All interest is accrued with all unpaid
accrued interest added to the outstanding principle of the note payable on a quarterly basis. All principal and unpaid

interest is due December 29, 2021.

(d) Subordinated notes payable to certain current and former stockholders bear interest
at a fixed rate of 8%, subject to certain limitations, and are due on June 29, 2021.

(e) Related party subordinated notes payable are due to Prudential. The notes payable

bear PIK interest at a variable rate equal to 6.5% plus the greater of LIBOR or 3% (9.0% at December 31, 2018). All

principal and unpaid interest is due June 21, 2021.

All long-term debt is secured by substantially all assets of the Company, subject to each note agreement's seniority preferences.
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PACE PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018 and 2017

Interest expense to related parties on subordinated notes payable was approximately $5,434,000 and $4,553,000 during 2018
and 2017, respectively. Interest expense capitalized to principle on the respective notes payable totaled approximately
$5,171,000 and $4,282,000 during 2018 and 2017, respectively. Substantially all accrued interest (Note 7) at December 31, 2018
and 2017 represents interest accrued on related party subordinated notes payable.

A summary of scheduled future maturities of long-term debt as of December 31, 2018 is as follows:

Year Amount

2019 $ 600,000

2020 1,800,000

2021 35,118,543
$ 37,518,543

The provisions of the related long-term debt agreements place certain restrictions and limitations upon the Company. These
include maintenance of certain financial ratios and restrictions or limitations on the payment of dividends, capital
expenditures, sales or rentals of property, and additional borrowings. At December 31, 2018, the Company was in compliance
with these provisions.

(7) Accrued expenses and liabilities

A summary of accrued expenses and liabilities as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 is as follows:

2018 2017
Accrued Payroll $ 6,685 $ —
Accrued Interest 1,945,919 1,674,575
Reserve for merchant losses 6,332 21,667
Other current liabilities 2,383 7,829
$ 1,961,319 $ 1,704,071

(8) Employee benefit plan
The Company sponsors a profit-sharing plan covering substantially all employees. The Company makes matching
contributions equal to 100% of the first 3% and 50% of the next 2% of employee deferrals. The Company made contributions
of $42,915 and $48,280 to the plan during 2018 and 2017, respectively.

(9) Income taxes
Federal and state net operating loss carryforwards of the Company total approximately $15,710,000 and $22,087,000,

respectively, at December 31, 2018 and are generally available for federal and state tax purposes through 2037 and 2032,
respectively.
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PACE PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018 and 2017

Net deferred income taxes as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 include the following amounts of deferred income tax assets and

liabilities:
2018 2017
Deferred income tax assets $ 6,578,000 $ 5,350,000
Deferred income tax liabilities — —
Valuation allowance (6,578,000) (5,350,000)
Net $ — S —

Deferred income taxes are provided for the temporary differences between the financial reporting basis and tax basis of the
Company's assets and liabilities. The deferred tax assets result primarily from accrued interest on stockholder loans, interest
expense limitations, amortization of intangible assets, and federal and state net operating loss carryforwards.

On December 22, 2017, the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the "Act'") was signed into law. Among other provisions, the Act reduces the
Federal statutory corporate income tax rate from 35% to 21%. The deferred income tax assets as of December 31, 2017 reflect
the revaluation as a result of the new lower rate.

The valuation allowance of $6,578,000 and $5,350,000 at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, was established to reduce
the deferred income tax assets to the amount that will more likely than not be realized. This reduction is provided due to the
uncertainty of the Company's ability to utilize the net operating loss carryforwards before they expire.

(10) Preferred stock

At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company had outstanding 1,213,435 shares of Series A Redeemable Convertible Preferred
Stock (""'Series A') and 300,000 shares of Series B Junior Preferred Stock ("'Series B'"), (collectively, the '"Preferred Stock").

The Preferred Stock is entitled to the same voting rights as common stockholders: one vote per share of common shares into
which such Preferred Shares could be converted.

Each share of Preferred Stock will automatically be converted into common stock in the event of a qualified public offering (as
defined in the amended articles of incorporation) of which the aggregate proceeds attributable to the sale of the Company
exceeds $50,000,000, at a price per share equal to at least $10.00 per share.

Each share of Preferred Stock will be convertible, at the option of the holder, at any time after the date of issuance of such
shares into fully paid and nonassessable common shares, at their defined conversion rate. Each share will be convertible into
the number of common shares that result from dividing the Preferred Stock original issue price by the applicable conversion
price in effect at the time of conversion. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, that conversion price was $10.00 for Series A and
$6.67 for Series B.

The holders of Series A are entitled to an annual dividend of 8% on the Series A original issue price (adjusted for stock
dividends, combinations, subdivisions or splits), whether or not

13



PACE PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018 and 2017

declared commencing on the original issue date. Such dividends, to the extent not previously paid, will be declared and paid
upon the occurrence of any of the following: (1) the conversion of Series A upon the occurrence of a qualified public offering, or
(ii) the redemption of the Series A. At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company had $8,912,265 and $7,941,517, respectively,
of cumulative unpaid Series A preferred stock dividends.

If, by the fifth anniversary of the original issue date of the Series A, there has not occurred either (i) a qualified public offering,
(ii) a public merger of the Company, or (iii) any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the affairs of the Company, and
holders of at least twenty-five percent of the Holders of the Series A consent, then each holder of the Series A will have the right
on, or any time after, the fifth anniversary to require the Company to redeem all of the Series A then owned by the holder. Such
right will be exercised by the holder's delivery of notice to the Company, which must include the proposed date of redemption,
but not less than 60 days following the date of notice. The Company will only be required to redeem one-third of the
redemption share on the redemption date, one-third on the first anniversary of the redemption date, and one-third on the
second anniversary of the redemption date. The redemption shares will be redeemed at a price equal to the greater of the fair
market value of the shares or the liquidation preference for each share. Dividends will continue to accrue on the unredeemed
Series A until redemption. The original issuance date of the Series A was October 1, 2009 and the fifth anniversary of the
original issuance date of the Series A occurred on October 1, 2014. No stockholders have expressed their intent to redeem their
ratable portion of shares in accordance with the provisions discussed above, and as a result, no shares have been classified as
mandatorily redeemable preferred stock.

Upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, whether voluntary or involuntary ("'Liquidation Event'"),
each holder of the outstanding shares of Preferred Stock will be entitled to be paid out of the assets of the Company available
for distribution to stockholders, whether such assets are capital, surplus or earnings, an amount in cash, per share of Preferred
Stock equal to (i) the excess of the original issue price over the cumulative distributions for such shares plus (ii) any accrued but
unpaid Preferred Stock dividends for such share of Preferred Stock, whether or not declared (''Liquidation Preference");
provided, however, that if upon any Liquidation Event, the assets of the Company are not sufficient to pay each holder the
Liquidation Preference in full, then each holder of the outstanding shares of Preferred Stock will receive a pro-rata distribution
of the available assets. Upon the occurrence of a Liquidating Event, the Liquidation Preference for the Series A holders will be
paid in full prior to any payment of the Liquidation Preference for the Series B holders. Both the Series A and Series B holders
will be paid in full prior to any payment to the common stockholders.

(11) Warrants

Warrants to purchase 343,709 shares of common stock at the exercise price of $0.01 per share were outstanding at December
31, 2018 and 2017. Each warrant is exercisable until October 27, 2024. The warrants were issued to Prudential and its affiliates
in connection with the execution of the senior notes payable and revolving line of credit agreements and amendment to the
senior subordinated note payable. Management determined that the warrants had no stand-alone fair value, and none of the
proceeds from the notes was attributed to the warrants.
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PACE PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018 and 2017

The terms of certain long-term debt agreements also provide for the issuance of additional warrants, defined by a formula in
such agreements, that is based upon the Company's financial performance. No warrants were issued in 2018 or 2017.

(12) Restricted stock

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company has issued 198,507 shares of common stock to officers of the Company at a
price of $0.001 per share which contain certain restrictions. The restrictions establish forfeiture provisions and limits on
transferability, encumbrances and disposition of all shares, as well as vesting provisions for the remaining 79,403 shares that
were unvested as of December 31, 2018 and 2017. Unvested shares at December 31, 2018 and 2017 vest upon the closing of a
sale of the Company at a price greater than the minimum price set forth in the restricted stock agreements. Management has
determined that any compensation expense related to the restricted stock is immaterial.

(13) Stock option plan

The Company has reserved 299,253 shares of authorized common stock to be issued pursuant to the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan
(the "Plan'"). The Plan is designed to stimulate the efforts of officers, employees, outside directors and consultants. Under the
Plan, the Board of Directors has the sole discretion to grant options with exercise prices determined by the Board at the time of
grant but not less than 100% of fair market value of the common stock at the date of grant. The option term and vesting period
is determined by the Board at the date of grant. The options cannot be sold or transferred to any other party without consent of
the Board. If an employee is terminated or leaves the Company prior to the options being vested, the options are forfeited.

The Company estimates the value of its stock options using the calculated value on the grant date. The Company measures
compensation cost of employee stock options based on the calculated value instead of fair value because it is not practical to
estimate the volatility of its share price. The Company does not maintain an internal market for its shares and its shares are
rarely traded privately. The Company has not issued any new common shares or convertible debt instruments in several years.
The calculated value method requires that the volatility assumption used in an option pricing model be based on the volatilities
of publicly traded companies identified by the Company that engage in operations similar to that of the Company or the
historical volatility of an appropriate industry sector index.

The Company uses the Black-Scholes-Merton formula to estimate the calculated value of the share-based payments. The
volatility assumption used in the Black-Scholes-Merton formula is based on the volatility of three publicly traded companies
that engage in operations similar to that of the Company. Using this method, management determined that stock compensation
expense from the issuance of options in 2018 was immaterial to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACE PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018 and 2017

The assumptions used and the weighted average calculated value of options granted for the year ended December 31, 2017 are
as follows:

Risk-free interest rate 2.33%
Expected dividend yield None
Expected volatility 25%
Expected life in years 10
Service period in years 3
Weighted average calculated value of options granted $0.01

A summary of all options granted for the purchase of the Company's common stock under the Plan is summarized as follows:

Weighted-Average

Number of Shares Exercise Price
Outstanding at December 31, 2016 94,606 $ 0.01
Granted 39,375 0.01
Exercised (10,718) 0.01
Outstanding at December 31, 2017 123,263 0.01
Granted (17,908) 0.01
Forfeited (6,500) 0.01
Outstanding at December 31, 2018 98,855 § 0.01

The following summarizes information about all options outstanding at December 31, 2018:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Exercise Price Per Number of Weighted-Average Weighted-Average Number of Weighted-Average
Share Common Shares Exercise Price Remaining Life Common Shares Exercise Price
$ 0.01 98,855 § 0.01 5.04 — 3 —

A summary of the status of the Company's nonvested shares as of December 31, 2018 and changes during the year then ended is as
follows:

16



PACE PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018 and 2017

Weighted-Average

Shares Grant-Date Fair Value

Nonvested at December 31, 2017 123,263 §$ 0.01
Vested (17,908) 0.01
Forfeited (6,500) 0.01
Nonvested at December 31, 2018 98,855 § 0.01

(14) Lease commitments

The Company utilizes office space under operating leases. Rent expense under these leases amounted to $215,107 and $220,582
in 2018 and 2017, respectively. Future minimum payments under these leases are expected to be approximately $139,000 during
2019. It is expected that in the normal course of business, leases that expire will be renewed or replaced by other leases; thus, it
is anticipated that future lease payments will not be less than the expense for 2018.

(15) Commitments to third-party processor

During 2016, the Company had agreements with a third-party processor to provide, on a non-exclusive basis, payment
processing and transmittal, transaction authorization, and settlement services. The Company's agreements with the third-party
processor may require the Company to submit minimum annual processing volumes. If the Company submits volume that is
lower than the minimum, it is required to pay the third party processor the fees that they would have received if the Company
had submitted the required annual volume. Management believes that the Company's processing volume under this agreement
will exceed the annual minimum required. As part of the agreements, the third-party processor requires the Company to
maintain a $100,000 letter of credit to secure its obligations to the processor. The Company's letter of credit matured in March
2018 and was subsequently renewed through March 2019. The Company and the third-party processor agreed to not renew the
letter of credit after it matured in March 2019. The letter of credit is secured by a $100,000 certificate of deposit.

(16) Supplemental disclosures of cash flow statement information

2018 2017
Interest paid $ 207,998 $ 389,578

(17) Subsequent events

In January 2019, the Prudential Senior Subordinated note with an outstanding balance of $821,216 as of December 31, 2018
was transferred to another holder. The terms of the note remained substantially the same.
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Exhibit 99.4
i3 Verticals, Inc.

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

On May 31, 2019, i3 Verticals, Inc. (“i3 Verticals” or “the Company”), through i3 Verticals, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company (“i3 LLC”), and i3-SDCR, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("i3-SDCR") and wholly owned subsidiary i3
LLC completed the acquisition of Pace Payment Systems, Inc. (“Pace”), a Delaware corporation and Pace's wholly owned subsidiary, Pace
Payments, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“the Transaction”). The Transaction was structured as a reverse triangular merger pursuant to which
i3-SDCR acquired all of the stock of Pace as a result of Pace's merger with a wholly-owned subsidiary of i3-SDCR, with Pace as the surviving
entity.

The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated statements of operations for the six months ended March 31, 2019, and for the year
ended September 30, 2018, consolidate the historical consolidated statements of operations of i3 Verticals, Inc. and Pace, giving effect to the
Transaction as if it had occurred on October 1, 2017. The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2019
gives effect to the Transaction as if it had occurred on that date. Pace’s fiscal year ends December 31. In accordance with Regulation S-X 11-
02(c)(3), no adjustments were required to modify the period of Pace’s historical condensed statement of operations. The historical consolidated
financial information has been adjusted to give effect to pro forma events that are: (i) directly attributable to the Transaction, (ii) factually
supportable and (iii) expected to have a continuing impact on the consolidated results.

The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial information should be read in conjunction with the historical audited
consolidated financial statements and unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes of the
Company and Pace. The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial information is not necessarily indicative of the operating results
that would have occurred if the Transaction had been completed at the start of the periods presented.

The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial information and related notes were prepared using the purchase method of
accounting with i3 Verticals as the acquiring entity. Accordingly, the total consideration transferred by i3 Verticals to complete the Transaction
with Pace will be allocated to assets and liabilities based upon their estimated fair values as of the date of completion of the Transaction. The
allocation is dependent upon certain preliminary valuations utilized to allocate the total consideration transferred and are based on the actual
net tangible and intangible assets of Pace which exist as of May 31, 2019. Accordingly, the pro forma purchase price adjustments are
preliminary, subject to further adjustments as additional information becomes available and as additional analysis is performed. Such further
adjustments could be material. The pro forma purchase price adjustments have been made solely for the purpose of providing the unaudited
pro forma condensed consolidated financial information presented below. Increases or decreases in the fair value of relevant amounts of
assets acquired and liabilities assumed will result in adjustments to the historical balance sheet and/or statement of operations. There can be
no assurances that the final determination will not result in material changes.

The assumptions and estimates underlying the unaudited adjustments in the unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial
information are described in the accompanying notes, which should be read together with the unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated
financial information.

The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial information does not reflect the cost of any integration activities or benefits that
may result from synergies that may be derived from integration activities.

The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial information has been presented for informational purposes only. The pro forma
information is not necessarily indicative of what the consolidated company’s financial position or results of operations would have been had the
Transaction been completed as of the dates indicated. In addition, the unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial information does
not purport to project the future operating results of the consolidated company.



UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Settlement assets
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets

Property and equipment, net
Restricted cash

Capitalized software, net
Goodwill

Intangible assets, net

Other assets

Total assets

i3 Verticals, Inc.

AS OF MARCH 31, 2019

(in thousands, except share amounts)

Historical i3 Verticals, Historical Pace Pro Forma Pro Forma i3 Verticals,
Inc. Payment Systems, Inc. Adjustments Notes Inc.

$ 1,393 $ 184 (1,577) (a) $ =
11,703 526 — 12,229

439 — — 439

3,246 450 — 3,696

16,781 1,160 (1,577) 16,364

3,055 157 — 3,212

666 — — 666

7,041 330 — 7,371

104,651 15,675 25,209 (b) 145,535

82,661 — 18,700 (c) 101,361

3,644 — — 3,644

$ 218,499 $ 17,322 42,332 $ 278,153




Liabilities and equity

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Current portion of long-term debt
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Settlement obligations
Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, less current portion and debt issuance costs,
net

Other long-term liabilities
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders' equity (deficit)

Redeemable preferred stock, Series A, $0.001 par value
(including accrued dividends of $9,154,952), 1,228,500
shares authorized and issued; 1,213,435 shares
outstanding
Preferred stock, Series B, $0.001 par value, 300,000
shares authorized, issued and outstanding
Preferred stock, par value $0.0001 per share, 10,000,000
shares authorized; 0 shares issued and outstanding

Common stock, $0.001 par value, 2,000,000 shares
authorized; 178,895 shares issued and outstanding;
198,507 restricted shares issued and 196,172 shares
outstanding

Class A common stock, par value $0.0001 per share,
150,000,000 shares authorized; 9,192,030 shares issued
and outstanding, actual, and 9,200,829 shares issued and
outstanding, pro forma

Class B common stock, par value $0.0001 per share,
40,000,000 shares authorized; 17,112,164 shares issued
and outstanding

Additional paid-in-capital
Accumulated (deficit) earnings

Treasury stock, 15,065 preferred shares, 2,335 common
shares, at cost

Total Stockholders' equity (deficit)
Non-controlling interest
Total equity (deficit)

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity (deficit)

i3 Verticals, Inc.
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

AS OF MARCH 31, 2019
(in thousands, except share amounts)

See Notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet

Historical i3 Verticals, Historical Pace Pro Forma Pro Forma i3
Inc. Payment Systems, Inc. Adjustments Notes Verticals, Inc.
3,359 § 758 — 4,117
5,000 600 (600) (d) 5,000
15,588 2,053 — 17,641
439 — = 439
4,413 — — 4,413
28,799 3,411 (600) 31,610
70,241 37,953 15,526 (e) 123,720
4,724 — 17,844 ) 22,568
103,764 41,364 32,770 177,898
— 21,440 (21,440) (9) —
_ 2,000 (2,000)  (h) -
— — — (i) —
1 — — i) 1
2 — — 2
41,284 2 223 (k) 41,509
(188) (47,333) 32,628 0] (14,893)
— (151) 151 (m) —
41,099 (24,042) 9,562 26,619
73,636 — — 73,636
114,735 (24,042) 9,562 100,255
218,499 $ 17,322 $ 42,332 278,153




i3 Verticals, Inc.

NOTES TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(in thousands, except share amounts)

Note 1. Summary of the Transaction

On May 31, 2019, i3-SDCR acquired all of the stock of Pace via a reverse triangular merger involving Pace and a special acquisition
subsidiary of i3-SDCR. Total preliminary estimated purchase consideration was $65,370, including $52,500 in cash consideration, funded by
revolving line of credit proceeds, $12,645 of contingent consideration as estimated on a preliminary basis and $225 of restricted shares of
Class A common stock in i3 Verticals.

Certain provisions in the merger agreement provide for additional consideration of up to $20,000 in the aggregate, to be paid based upon
achievement of specified financial performance targets, as defined in the purchase agreement, through December 31, 2021. We determined
the preliminary estimated acquisition date fair value of the liability for the contingent consideration based on a forecast of financial performance.
We plan to complete a Monte Carlo simulation to establish a final acquisition date estimated fair value of the liability for the contingent
consideration. In each subsequent reporting period we will reassess the current estimates of performance relative to the targets and adjust the
contingent liability to its fair value through earnings.

We are still evaluating the allocation of the preliminary estimated purchase consideration. The pro forma purchase price adjustments are
preliminary, subject to further adjustments as additional information becomes available and as additional analysis is performed. Such further
adjustments could be material.

The goodwill associated with the acquisition is not deductible for tax purposes.

The acquired merchant relationships intangible asset has a preliminary estimated amortization period of 15 years. The non-compete
agreement and trade name have preliminary estimated amortization periods of 3 and 5 years, respectively. The weighted-average preliminary
estimated amortization period all estimated intangibles is 14 years.

Estimated acquisition-related costs for Pace were $1,577, none of which were included in i3 Verticals' actual historical financial statements
or Pace's actual historical financial statements. The costs have been reflected as a pro forma adjustment in the unaudited pro forma condensed
consolidated balance sheet, as these costs are not reflected in either the historical financial statements of i3 Verticals or Pace, are non-
recurring and are directly related to the acquisition.

Note 2. Explanation of Pro Forma Adjustments

In accordance with the rules of Article 11 of Regulation S-X, the following adjustments were made for the acquisition of Pace (amounts in
thousands):

(a) Adjustments to cash and cash equivalents:

To reflect i3 Verticals' transaction costs, comprised of professional fees and expenses $ (410)

To reflect Pace's transaction costs, comprised of professional fees and expenses of $1,911, and restructuring

costs of $235, which includes severance payments (2,146)

To reflect proceeds from long term debt to cover transaction costs 979
$ (1,577)




i3 Verticals, Inc.

NOTES TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(in thousands, except share amounts)

(b) Adjustments to goodwill:

To eliminate Pace's historical goodwill

To reflect the preliminary goodwill for the amount of consideration paid in excess of fair value of assets
received and liabilities assumed

(c) Adjustments to intangibles, net:
To record the preliminary estimated fair value of separately identified merchant relationships

To record the preliminary estimated fair value of separately identified non-compete
To record the preliminary estimated fair value of separately identified trade names

(d) Adjustments to current portion of long-term debt:

To reflect the pay down of Pace's current portion of long-term debt

(e) Adjustments to long-term debt, less current portion and debt issuance costs, net:

To reflect proceeds from long term debt to cover transaction costs
To reflect the pay down of Pace's long-term debt, less current portion

To record the proceeds from the Company's 2019 Senior Secured Credit Facility used to finance the cash
consideration for the Pace Acquisition

(f) Adjustments to other long-term liabilities:

To record long-term contingent consideration as estimated on a preliminary basis
To record a deferred tax liability for the fair-market step-up of intangible assets

(g) Adjustments to redeemable preferred stock:

To eliminate Pace's redeemable preferred stock

(15,675)

40,884

25,209

17,100
100
1,500

18,700

(600)

979
(37,953)

52,500

15,526

12,645
5,199

17,844

(21,440)



i3 Verticals, Inc.

NOTES TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(in thousands, except share amounts)

(h) Adjustments to preferred stock, Series B:

To eliminate Pace's preferred stock $ (2,000)
(i) Adjustments to common stock:
To eliminate Pace's common stock $ —
(i) Adjustments to Class A common stock:
To record restricted shares of Class A common stock issued as purchase consideration $ —
(k) Adjustments to additional paid-in-capital:
To eliminate Pace's additional paid-in-capital $ (2)
To record restricted shares of Class A common stock issued as purchase consideration 225
$ 223
() Adjustments to accumulated deficit:
To eliminate Pace's accumulated deficit $ 34,490
To reflect i3 Verticals, Inc.'s estimated transaction costs, net of tax (313)
To reflect Pace's estimated transaction costs, net of tax (1,549)
$ 32,628
(m) Adjustments to treasury stock:
To eliminate Pace's treasury stock $ 151



i3 Verticals, Inc.
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Historical i3 Verticals,

Historical Pace

Pro Forma i3 Verticals,

Inc. Payment Systems, Inc. Pro Forma Adjustments Notes Inc.
Revenue $ 170,262 $ 14,343 § — $ 184,605
Operating expenses
Interchange and network fees 110,514 — — 110,514
Other costs of services 19,983 12,087 — 32,070
Selling, general and administrative 26,835 1,771 — 28,606
Depreciation and amortization 7,450 123 737 (a) 8,310
Change in fair value of contingent consideration 2,153 — — 2,153
Total operating expenses 166,935 13,981 737 181,653
Income from operations 3,327 362 (737) 2,952
Interest expense, net 2,069 3,135 (1,809) (b) 3,395
Income (loss) before income taxes 1,258 (2,773) 1,072 (443)
Provision (benefit from) for income taxes 129 — 556 (c) 685
Net income (loss) 1,129 (2,773) 516 (1,128)
Net income (loss) attributable to non-controlling
interest 2,053 — (1,540) (d) 513
Net (loss) income attributable to i3 Verticals, Inc. $ (924) $ (2,773) $ 2,056 $ (1,641)
Net loss per share available to Class A common
stock per share:
Basic $ (0.10) $ (0.19)
Diluted™ (e) $ (0.10) $ (0.19)
Weighted average shares of Class A common
stock outstanding:
Basic 8,849,431 8,849,431
Diluted™ (e) 8,849,431 8,849,431

1. The following securities were excluded from the historical and pro forma adjusted i3 Verticals, Inc. diluted weighted average shares of Class A common stock outstanding
because the effect would have been anti-dilutive:

17,112,164 shares of Class B common stock, along with the reallocation of net income assuming conversion of these shares,

33,000 stock options because the exercise price of these stock options exceeded the average market price of our Class A common stock during the period (“out-of-the-

a.
b.

C.

money”), and

884,823 shares resulting from estimated stock option exercises as calculated by the treasury stock method, and 277,758 and 286,557 restricted shares of Class A
common units were excluded from the historical and pro forma adjusted i3 Verticals, Inc., respectively.

See Notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations



i3 Verticals, Inc.

NOTES TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except unit, share and per share amounts)

In accordance with the rules of Article 11 of Regulation S-X, the following adjustments were made for the acquisition of Pace (amounts in
thousands except shares):
(a) Adjustments to depreciation and amortization:

To reflect the preliminary estimated amortization of separately identified merchant relationships $ 570
To reflect the preliminary estimated amortization of separately identified non compete 17
To reflect the preliminary estimated amortization of separately identified trade names 150

$ 737

Increased amortization expense reflects identified intangible assets in the acquisition of Pace. The weighted average amortization
period for all intangibles is 14 years.

(b) Adjustments to interest expense, net:

To eliminate Pace's interest expense on debt paid down at closing $ (3,135)

To reflect the interest expense on proceeds from the 2019 Senior Secured Credit Facility used to finance cash

consideration for the Transaction 1,326
$ (1,809)

Interest has been adjusted to reflect the full repayment of Pace's outstanding long-term debt as of October 1, 2017, and the increased

borrowings to fund the acquisition using a 5.1% interest rate, which represents our incremental borrowing rate as of October 1, 2018. If the

interest rate were increased or decreased by 1.25% it would result in a $328 change in net interest expense for the six months ended
March 31, 2019.

(c) Adjustments to (benefit from) provision for income taxes:
To reflect the income tax effect of pro forma adjustments $ 556

Income tax expense has been adjusted to reflect the increased pre-tax loss resulting from pro forma adjustments. For pro forma

adjustments impacting Pace pre-tax loss, a marginal tax rate of 27.8% was applied. For pro forma adjustments impacting the Company, a

reduction for non-controlling interest and a marginal tax rate of 23.7% was applied.

(d) Adjustments to net income (loss) attributable to non-controlling interest:

Contributed loss from Pace and associated pro forma adjustments $ (1,041)

Contributed loss from interest expense on proceeds from the 2019 Senior Secured Credit Facility used to

finance the cash consideration for the Transaction (1,326)

Total contributed loss prior to non-controlling interest in i3 Verticals (2,367)

Non-controlling interest in i3 Verticals 65.1 %
$ (1,540)

i3 Verticals is the sole managing member of i3 LLC, and as a result, consolidates the financial results of i3 LLC and its subsidiaries, which

will include Pace, and reports a non-controlling interest representing the Common Units of i3 LLC held by other parties.



i3 Verticals, Inc.

NOTES TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except unit, share and per share amounts)

(e) Under the terms of the merger agreement, at the close of the Transaction the Company issued 8,799 restricted shares of Class A common
stock in i3 Verticals to certain former equity holders of Pace upon their service with the Company. The restricted Class A common shares
issued under the Company's 2018 Plan are included in our pro forma diluted earnings per share calculation.



i3 Verticals, Inc.

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Historical i3 Verticals, Historical Pace Pro Forma i3 Verticals,
Inc. Payment Systems, Inc. Pro Forma Adjustments  Notes Inc.

Revenue $ 323,508 $ 28,978 $ — $ 352,486
Operating expenses
Interchange and network fees 214,543 — — 214,543
Other costs of services 40,314 24,375 — 64,689
Selling, general and administrative 40,585 3,676 — 44,261
Depreciation and amortization 11,839 129 1,473 (a) 13,441
Change in fair value of contingent consideration 3,866 — — 3,866
Total operating expenses 311,147 28,180 1,473 340,800
Income from operations 12,361 798 (1,473) 11,686
Other expenses
Interest expense, net 8,498 5,801 (2,796) (b) 11,503
Change in fair value of warrant liability 8,487 — — 8,487
Total other expenses 16,985 5,801 (2,796) 19,990
(Loss) income before income taxes (4,624) (5,003) 1,323 (8,304)
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes 337 — 921 (c) 1,258
Net (loss) income (4,961) (5,003) 402 (9,562)
Net income attributable to non-controlling interest 1,937 — (849) (d) 1,088
Net (loss) income attributable to i3 Verticals, Inc.  $ (6,898) $ (5,003) $ 1,251 $ (10,650)
Net loss per share available to Class A common
stock per share ();
Basic $ 0.08 $ 0.04
Diluted® (e) $ 0.08 $ 0.04
Weighted average shares of Class A common
stock outstanding:
Basic 8,812,630 8,812,630
Diluted® (e) 26,873,878 9,668,871

1. 17,213,806 shares of Class B common stock, along with the reallocation of net income assuming conversion of these shares, were excluded from the pro forma adjusted i3

Verticals, Inc. diluted weighted average shares of Class A common stock outstanding because the effect would have been anti-dilutive.

See Notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Statement of Operations

10



i3 Verticals, Inc.

NOTES TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except unit, share and per share amounts)

In accordance with the rules of Article 11 of Regulation S-X, the following adjustments were made for the acquisition of Pace (amounts in
thousands except shares):

(a) Adjustments to depreciation and amortization:

To reflect the preliminary estimated amortization of separately identified merchant relationships $ 1,140
To reflect the preliminary estimated amortization of separately identified non compete 33
To reflect the preliminary estimated amortization of separately identified trade names 300

$ 1,473

Increased amortization expense reflects identified intangible assets in the acquisition of Pace. The weighted average amortization
period for all intangibles is 14 years.

(b) Adjustments to interest expense, net:

To eliminate Pace's interest expense on debt paid down at closing $ (5,801)

To reflect the interest expense on proceeds from the 2019 Senior Secured Credit Facility used to finance cash

consideration for the Transaction 3,005
$ (2,796)

Interest has been adjusted to reflect the full repayment of Pace's outstanding long-term debt as of October 1, 2017, and the increased
borrowings to fund the acquisition using a 5.7% interest rate, which represents our incremental borrowing rate as of October 1, 2017. If the
interest rate were increased or decreased by 1.25% it would result in a $656 change in net interest expense for the year ended September
30, 2019.

(c) Adjustments to (benefit from) provision for income taxes:
To reflect the income tax effect of pro forma adjustments $ 921
Income tax expense has been adjusted to reflect the increased pre-tax loss resulting from pro forma adjustments. For pro forma
adjustments impacting Pace pre-tax loss, a marginal tax rate of 27.8% was applied. For pro forma adjustments impacting the Company, a

reduction for non-controlling interest and a marginal tax rate of 27.2% was applied.

(d) Adjustments to net income (loss) attributable to non-controlling interest:

Contributed loss from Pace and associated pro forma adjustments for the period 6/25/18-9/30/18 $ (499)

Contributed loss from interest expense on proceeds from the 2019 Senior Secured Credit Facility used to

finance the cash consideration for the Transaction for the period 6/25/18-9/30/18 (799)

Total contributed loss prior to non-controlling interest in i3 Verticals (1,298)

Non-controlling interest in i3 Verticals 65.4 %
$ (850)

i3 Verticals is the sole managing member of i3 LLC, and as a result, consolidates the financial results of i3 LLC and its subsidiaries, which
will include Pace, and reports a non-controlling interest representing the Common Units of i3 LLC held by other parties.
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i3 Verticals, Inc.

NOTES TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except unit, share and per share amounts)

(e) Under the terms of the merger agreement, at the close of the Transaction the Company issued 8,799 restricted shares of Class A common
stock in i3 Verticals to certain former equity holders of Pace upon their service with the Company. The restricted Class A common shares
issued under the Company's 2018 Plan are included in our pro forma diluted earnings per share calculation.
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